











2021 Multijurisdictional

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

Volume 2b—Planning Partner Annexes Municipalities: East Palo Alto – Pacifica

Public Review Draft



August | 2021



2021 Multijurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

August 2021

PREPARED FOR

County of San Mateo Department of Emergency Management

501 Winslow Redwood City, CA 94063

PREPARED BY

Tetra Tech 1999 Harrison St., Suite 500 Oakland, CA 94612 510-302-6300 | tetratech.com

NOTE ABOUT VOLUME 2

Volume 2 of the San Mateo County 2021 Multijurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, which presents annexes for all planning partners who participated in this plan, has been divided into multiple parts to maintain manageable file sizes.

Parts 2a through 2d include the complete table of contents and the introduction, along with annexes for the following partners:

- Volume 2a—San Mateo County and municipalities alphabetically from Atherton through Daly City
- Volume 2b—Municipalities alphabetically from East Palo Alto through Pacifica
- Volume 2c—Municipalities alphabetically from Portola Valley through Woodside
- Volume 2d—Special-purpose districts

Part 2e includes the complete table of contents and the Volume 2 appendices.

Tetra Tech Project #103s7389

\\tts121fs1\Data\EMCR_Projects\California\SanMateoCounty\HMP_2021_103S7389\Plan Development\Plan Documents\2021-08_PublicReviewDraft\2021-08-05_SanMateoHMP_Vol2_PublicReviewDraft.docx

CONTENTS

Introduction	xvii
Background	xvii
The Planning Partnership	xvii
Partner Annex Development	XX
1. San Mateo County	
1.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
1.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
1.3 Current Trends	
1.4 Capability Assessment	
1.5 Integration Review	
1.6 Risk Assessment	
1.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
1.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
1.9 Public Outreach	
1.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
1.11 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	
2. Town of Atherton	
2.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
2.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
2.3 Current Trends	
2.4 Capability Assessment	
2.5 Integration Review	
2.6 Risk Assessment	
2.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
2.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
2.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
3. City of Belmont	
3.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
3.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
3.3 Current Trends	
3.4 Capability Assessment	
3.5 Integration with Other Planning Initiatives	
3.6 Risk Assessment	
3.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
3.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
3.9 Public Outreach	
3.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
4. City of Brisbane	
4.1 Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	4-1

4.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
4.3 Current Trends	
4.4 Capability Assessment	
4.5 Integration Review	
4.6 Risk Assessment	
4.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
4.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
4.9 Public Outreach	
4.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
4.11 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	
5. City of Burlingame	5-1
5.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
5.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
5.3 Current Trends	
5.4 Capability Assessment	
5.5 Integration with Other Planning Initiatives	
5.6 Risk Assessment	
5.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
5.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
5.9 Public Outreach	
5.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
C. Town of Colmo	6 1
6. Town of Colma	0-1
6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 6.2 Jurisdiction Profile 6.3 Current Trends 	
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1 6-1 6-2 6-3 6-3 6-10 6-11 6-12 6-14 6-14 6-18 6-18 6-18 6-18 7-1 7-1
 6. Town of Coima. 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 6.2 Jurisdiction Profile	6-1 6-1 6-2 6-3 6-3 6-10 6-11 6-12 6-14 6-14 6-18 6-18 6-18 6-18 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-2
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 6.2 Jurisdiction Profile. 6.3 Current Trends	6-1 6-1 6-2 6-3 6-3 6-10 6-11 6-12 6-14 6-14 6-18 6-18 6-18 6-18 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-2 7-3
 6. I own of Colma. 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 6.2 Jurisdiction Profile	6-1 6-1 6-2 6-3 6-3 6-10 6-11 6-12 6-14 6-14 6-18 6-18 6-18 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-2 7-3 7-9
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1 6-1 6-2 6-3 6-3 6-10 6-11 6-12 6-14 6-14 6-18 6-18 6-18 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-2 7-3 7-3 7-9 7-10
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1 6-1 6-2 6-3 6-3 6-10 6-11 6-12 6-14 6-14 6-18 6-18 6-18 6-18 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-2 7-3 7-9 7-10 7-10 7-11
 6. Town of Colma. 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 6.2 Jurisdiction Profile. 6.3 Current Trends. 6.4 Capability Assessment. 6.5 Integration with Other Planning Initiatives. 6.6 Risk Assessment 6.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions. 6.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 6.9 Public Outreach. 6.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex. 7. City of Daly City. 7.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 7.2 Jurisdiction Profile. 7.3 Current Trends. 7.4 Capability Assessment. 7.5 Integration Review. 7.6 Risk Assessment. 7.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions. 7.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan. 	6-1 6-1 6-2 6-3 6-3 6-10 6-11 6-12 6-14 6-14 6-18 6-18 6-18 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-2 7-3 7-9 7-10 7-11 7-11 7-13
 6.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	6-1 6-1 6-2 6-3 6-3 6-10 6-11 6-12 6-14 6-14 6-18 6-18 6-18 7-1 7-1 7-1 7-2 7-3 7-9 7-10 7-11 7-13 7-17

	ð-1
8.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
8.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
8.3 Current Trends	
8.4 Capability Assessment	
8.5 Integration with Other Planning Initiatives	
8.6 Risk Assessment	
8.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
8.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
8.9 Public Outreach	
8.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
9. City of Foster City	
9.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
9.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
9.3 Current Trends	
9.4 Capability Assessment	
9.5 Integration Review	
9.6 Risk Assessment	
9.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
9.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
9.9 Public Outreach	
9.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
9.11 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	
10. City of Half Moon Bay	10-1
10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile	10-1 10-1
10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team10.2 Jurisdiction Profile10.3 Current Trends	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment 	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment 10.5 Integration Review 	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile 10.3 Current Trends 10.4 Capability Assessment 10.5 Integration Review 10.6 Risk Assessment 	10-1 10-1 10-3 10-4 10-10 10-11
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 10.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
 10.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	

	11.9 Public Outreach	
	11.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
12	. City of Menlo Park	
	12.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
	12.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
	12.3 Current Trends	
	12.4 Capability Assessment	
	12.5 Integration Review	
	12.6 Risk Assessment	
	12.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
	12.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
	12.9 Public Outreach	
	12.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
13	. City of Millbrae	
	13.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
	13.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
	13.3 Current Trends	
	13.4 Capability Assessment	
	13.5 Integration Review	
	13.6 Risk Assessment	
	13.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
	13.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
	13.9 Public Outreach	
	13.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
14	. City of Pacifica	
	14.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
	14.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
	14.3 Current Trends	
	14.4 Capability Assessment	
	14.5 Integration Review	
	14.6 Risk Assessment	
	14.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
	14.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
	14.9 Public Outreach	
	14.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
	14.11 Additional Comments	
15	. Town of Portola Valley	
	15.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
	15.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
	15.3 Current Trends	
	15.4 Capability Assessment	
	15.5 Integration Review	
	15.6 Risk Assessment	

19.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
19. City of San Mateo	19-1
18.12 Additional Comments	
10.10 Information Sources Used for Tills Annex	
18.10 Information Sources Used for This Annoy	
18.0 Public Outrooch	
18./ Status of Previous Plan Actions	
18.6 Risk Assessment	
18.5 Integration Review	
18.4 Capability Assessment	
18.3 Current Trends	
18.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
18.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
18. City of San Carlos	
17.12 Additional Comments	17-22
17.11 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	17-21
17.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
17.0 Public Outreach	
17.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
1 / .0 KISK ASSESSMENT	
1 / .5 Integration Keview	I/-9
1/.4 Capability Assessment	
1/.3 Current Trends	
17.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
17.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
TIT. City of San Bruno	
17 City of Son Bruno	A7 A
16.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
16.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
16.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
16.6 Risk Assessment	
16.5 Integration Review	16-11
16.4 Canability Assessment	
16.2 Current Trends	
16.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
16.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Toom	16 1
16. City of Redwood City	
15.11 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	
15.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
15.9 Public Outreach	
15.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
15.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	

	19.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
	19.3 Current Trends	
	19.4 Capability Assessment	
	19.5 Integration Review	
	19.6 Risk Assessment	
	19.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
	19.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
	19.9 Public Outreach	
	19.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
	19.11 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	
20). City of South San Francisco	20-1
	20.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
	20.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
	20.3 Current Trends	
	20.4 Capability Assessment	
	20.5 Integration Review	
	20.6 Risk Assessment	
	20.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
	20.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
	20.9 Public Outreach	
	20.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
21	. Town of Woodside	21-1
21	. Town of Woodside 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
21	 Town of Woodside 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 21.2 Jurisdiction Profile 	
21	 Town of Woodside 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 21.2 Jurisdiction Profile 21.3 Current Trends 	21-1 21-121-121-2
21	 Town of Woodside. 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 21.2 Jurisdiction Profile. 21.3 Current Trends	21-1 21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-4
21	 Town of Woodside. 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 21.2 Jurisdiction Profile. 21.3 Current Trends	21-1 21-1 21-1 21-2 21-4 21-10
21	. Town of Woodside 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 21.2 Jurisdiction Profile. 21.3 Current Trends . 21.4 Capability Assessment. 21.5 Integration Review. 21.6 Risk Assessment	21-1 21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-4 21-10 21-12
21	 Town of Woodside. 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 21.2 Jurisdiction Profile. 21.3 Current Trends	21-1 21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-4 21-10 21-12 21-13
21	 Town of Woodside. 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 21.2 Jurisdiction Profile. 21.3 Current Trends . 21.4 Capability Assessment. 21.5 Integration Review. 21.6 Risk Assessment . 21.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions . 21.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan . 	21-1 21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-10 21-12 21-13 21-15
21	 Town of Woodside. 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 21.2 Jurisdiction Profile	21-1 21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-4 21-4 21-10 21-12 21-13 21-15 21-18
21	 Town of Woodside. 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 21.2 Jurisdiction Profile. 21.3 Current Trends . 21.4 Capability Assessment. 21.5 Integration Review. 21.6 Risk Assessment . 21.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions . 21.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan . 21.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex . 21.10 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	21-1 21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-4 21-10 21-12 21-13 21-15 21-18 21-19
21	 Town of Woodside. 21.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team. 21.2 Jurisdiction Profile 21.3 Current Trends 21.4 Capability Assessment 21.5 Integration Review 21.6 Risk Assessment 21.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions 21.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan 21.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex 21.10 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability 21.11 Additional Comments 	21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-2 21-4 21-10 21-12 21-13 21-15 21-18 21-19 21-19
21	. Town of Woodside	21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-2 21-4 21-10 21-12 21-13 21-15 21-18 21-19 21-19 21-19 21-1
21 22	 Town of Woodside	21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-2 21-4 21-10 21-12 21-13 21-15 21-18 21-19 21-19 21-19 22-1
21 22	 Town of Woodside	21-1 21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-4 21-10 21-12 21-13 21-15 21-18 21-19 21-19 21-19 22-1
21 22	 Town of Woodside	21-1
21	 Town of Woodside	21-1
21	 Town of Woodside	21-1
21	 Town of Woodside	21-1
21	 Town of Woodside	21-1 21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-4 21-10 21-12 21-13 21-15 21-18 21-19 21-19 21-19 21-19 22-1 22-1 22-1
21	 Town of Woodside	21-1 21-1 21-1 21-2 21-2 21-4 21-10 21-12 21-13 21-15 21-15 21-18 21-19 22-1 22-1 22-1 22-1 22-2 22-2 22-2 22-2 22-6 22-7 22-8 22-10 22-10

23. Colma Fire Protection District	
23.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
23.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
23.3 Current Trends	
23.4 Capability Assessment	
23.5 Integration Review	
23.6 Risk Assessment	
23.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
23.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
23.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
24. Highlands Recreation District	
24.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
24.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
24.3 Current Trends	
24.4 Integration Review	
24.5 Risk Assessment	
24.6 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
24.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
24.8 Public Outreach	
24.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
25. Menlo Park Fire Protection District	
25.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
25.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
25.3 Current Trends	
25.4 Capability Assessment	
25.5 Integration Review	
25.6 Risk Assessment	
25.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
25.8 Public Outreach	
25.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
26. Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District	
26.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
26.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
26.3 Current Trends	
26.4 Capability Assessment	
26.5 Integration Review	
26.6 Risk Assessment	
26.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
26.8 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
27. Mid-Peninsula Water District	
27.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
27.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
27.3 Current Trends	

27.4 Capability Assessment	
27.5 Integration Review	
27.6 Risk Assessment	
27.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
27.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
27.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
28. Montara Water & Sanitary District	
28.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
28.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
28.3 Current Trends	
28.4 Capability Assessment	
28.5 Integration Review	
28.6 Risk Assessment	
28.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
28.8 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
29. North Coast County Water District	
29.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
29.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
29.3 Current Trends	
29.4 Capability Assessment	
29.5 Integration Review	
29.6 Risk Assessment	
29.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
29.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
29.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
29.10 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	
30. San Mateo Community College District	
30.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
30.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
30.3 Current Trends	
30.4 Capability Assessment	
30.5 Integration Review	
30.6 Risk Assessment	
30.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
30.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
30.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
30.10 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	
30.11 Additional Comments	
31. San Mateo County Flood & Sea Level Rise Resiliency Distric	t
31.1 Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
31.2 JURISDICTION PROTILE	
31.3 Current Trends	
51.4 Capability Assessment	

-	21 11
31.6 Risk Assessment	
31.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	31-14
31.8 Public Outreach	31-22
31.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	31-23
32. San Mateo County Harbor District	32-1
32.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	32-1
32.2 Jurisdiction Profile	32-1
32.3 Current Trends	32-4
32.4 Capability Assessment	32-4
32.5 Integration Review	32-7
32.6 Risk Assessment	
32.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	32-10
32.8 Public Outreach	32-11
32.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	32-11
33. San Mateo County Office of Education	33-1
33.1 Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	33-1
33.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
33.3 Current Trends	
33.4 Capability Assessment	
33.5 Integration Review	
33.6 Kisk Assessment	
33.7 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
55.8 Information Sources Used for This Annex	55-10
34. San Mateo Resource Conservation District	34-1
34.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
34.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
34.3 Current Trends	
34.4 Capability Assessment	
34.5 Integration Review	
34.0 KISK Assessment	
34.8 Information Sources Used for This Anney	54-11
34.9 Additional Comments	
25 Weetherough Water District	2E 4
	35-1
35.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
35.2 Jurisaiculon Prolite	
35.5 Current richus	
35.5 Integration Review	
35.6 Risk Assessment	
35.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
35.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	35-10

35.9 Information Sources Used for This Annex	
35.10 Future Needs to Better Understand Risk/Vulnerability	
36. Woodside Fire Protection District	
36.1 Local Hazard Mitigation Planning Team	
36.2 Jurisdiction Profile	
36.3 Current Trends	
36.4 Capability Assessment	
36.5 Integration Review	
36.6 Risk Assessment	
36.7 Status of Previous Plan Actions	
36.8 Hazard Mitigation Action Plan	
36.9 Public Outreach	
36.10 Information Sources Used for This Annex	

Appendices

Appendix A. Planning Partner Expectations

Appendix B. Procedures for Linking to Hazard Mitigation Plan

Appendix C. Annex Instructions and Templates

ACRONYMS

The following acronyms are used throughout the annexes in this volume:

- AB—Assembly Bill
- ACWA—Association of California Water Agencies
- BART—Bay Area Rapid Transit
- BAWSCA—Bay Area Water Supply & Conservation Agency
- BCEGS— Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule
- BMP—best management practice
- BRIC—Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities
- C/CAG— City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County
- Cal OES—California Office of Emergency Services
- CAL FIRE—California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
- CBC—city building code
- CCFD—Central County Fire Department
- CCR—California Code of Regulations
- CCWD—Coastside County Water District
- CDAA—California Disaster Assistance Act
- CDFA—California Department of Food and Agriculture
- CDD—Community Development Department
- CEQA— California Environmental Quality Act
- CERPP—Citizens' Emergency Response and Preparedness Program
- CERT—Community Emergency Response Team
- CFPD—Colma Fire Protection District
- CFR—Code of Federal Regulations

- CIP—capital improvement program
- CMAP—Climate Mitigation and Adaptation Plan
- COOP/COG—continuity of operations plan and continuity of government
- CPAW—Community Partners for Wildfire Assistance
- CSM—College of San Mateo
- CWPP—community wildfire protection plan
- DEM—San Mateo County Department of Emergency Management
- DWR—Department of Water Resources
- EAP—emergency action plan
- EIR—Environmental Impact Report
- EMID—Estero Municipal Improvement District
- EOC—emergency operations center
- EOP—emergency operations plan
- EPA—Environmental Protection Agency
- FEMA—Federal Emergency Management Agency
- FMA—Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant Program
- FPD—fire protection district
- FSLRRD—Flood & Sea Level Rise Resiliency District
- GHG—greenhouse gas
- GIS—geographic information system
- HMA—Hazard Mitigation Assistance
- HMB—Half Moon Bay
- HMGP—Hazard Mitigation Grant Program
- HMP—hazard mitigation plan

- HRD—Highlands Recreation District
- IBC—International Building Code
- ISO—Insurance Services Office (insurance underwriter)
- JPA—joint powers authority
- LCP— Local Coastal Program
- LHMP—local hazard mitigation plan
- LUP—land use plan
- MJLHMP—Multijurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
- MPFPD—Menlo Park Fire Protection District
- MPWD—Mid-Peninsula Water District
- MRP— Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit
- MWSD—Montara Water and Sanitary District
- NCCWD— North Coast County Water District
- NEPA—National Environmental Policy Act
- NFIP—National Flood Insurance Program
- NIMS— National Incident Management System
- NOAA—National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
- NRCS—Natural Resources Conservation Service
- OPC—California Ocean Protection Council
- POC—point of contact
- RCD—resource conservation district
- RHNA—Regional Housing Needs Allocation
- RICAPS—Regionally Integrated Climate Action Planning Suite
- SB—Senate Bill
- SCC—California State Coastal Conservancy
- SFHA—special flood hazard area

- SFO—San Francisco International Airport
- SFPUC—San Francisco Public Utilities Commission
- SLR—sea-level rise
- SMCCD—San Mateo Community College District
- SMCFire or SMCFD—San Mateo County Fire Department
- SMCO—San Mateo County
- SMRCD—San Mateo Resource Conservation District
- SSF—South San Francisco
- SSFFD—South San Francisco Fire Department
- SSMP—Sanitary Sewer Management Plan
- SWRCB—California State Water Resources Control Board
- TEP—Training and Exercise Program
- THIRA—Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment
- TMDL—total maximum daily load
- UASI—Urban Area Security Initiative
- USDA—U.S. Department of Agriculture
- UWMP—urban water management plan
- WFPD—Woodside Fire Protection District
- WUI—wildland urban interface
- WWD—Westborough Water District

INTRODUCTION

BACKGROUND

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) encourages multi-jurisdictional planning for hazard mitigation. All participating jurisdictions must meet the requirements of Chapter 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations (44 CFR):

"Multi-jurisdictional plans (e.g., watershed plans) may be accepted, as appropriate, as long as each jurisdiction has participated in the process and has officially adopted the plan." (Section 201.6(a)(4)).

For the *San Mateo County 2021 Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan*, a planning partnership was formed to leverage resources and to meet requirements of the federal Disaster Mitigation Act for as many eligible local governments as possible. The Disaster Mitigation Act defines a local government as follows:

"Any county, municipality, city, town, township, public authority, school district, special district, intrastate district, council of governments (regardless of whether the council of governments is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under State law), regional or interstate government entity, or agency or instrumentality of a local government; any Indian tribe or authorized tribal organization, or Alaska Native village or organization; and any rural community, unincorporated town or village, or other public entity."

In addition, federally recognized tribes may participate in local/tribal multi-jurisdictional plans as long as the requirements of Section 201.7 of 44 CFR are met for tribal components of the plan.

Two types of planning partners participated in this process for the 2021 Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, with distinct needs and capabilities:

- Incorporated municipalities
- Special districts

Each participating planning partner prepared a jurisdiction-specific annex to this plan. These annexes, as well as information on the process by which they were created, are contained in this volume.

THE PLANNING PARTNERSHIP

Initial Solicitation and Letters of Intent

A planning team made up of San Mateo County and consultant staff solicited the participation of all eligible municipalities and special districts at the outset of this project. A kickoff meeting was held on January 5, 2021, to identify potential stakeholders and planning partners for this process. The purpose of the meeting was to introduce

the planning process to jurisdictions in the County that could have a stake in the outcome of the planning effort. All eligible local governments in the planning area were invited to attend. The goals of the meeting were as follows:

- Provide an overview of the Disaster Mitigation Act.
- Review the 2016 San Mateo County Hazard Mitigation Plan and planning partnership
- Outline the work plan for this hazard mitigation plan.
- Describe the benefits of multi-jurisdictional planning.
- Outline planning partner expectations.
- Solicit planning partners.
- Solicit volunteers/recommendations for the steering committee.

Local governments wishing to join the planning effort were asked to provide the planning team with a "letter of intent to participate" that agreed to the planning partner expectations (see Appendix A) and designated lead and alternate points of contact for their jurisdiction. In all, the planning team received formal commitment from 37 planning partners in addition to the County. A map showing the location of participating special purpose districts is provided at the end of this introduction. Maps showing risk assessment results for participating cities are provided in the individual annexes for each city. Risk assessment maps for all planning areas countywide are provided in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Planning Partner Expectations

The planning team developed the following list of planning partner expectations, which were provided and discussed at the kickoff meeting (see Appendix A for details):

- Complete a "letter of intent to participate."
- Designate lead and primary points of contact for this effort.
- Support and participate in the selection and function of the Steering Committee.
- Provide support required to implement the public involvement strategy.
- Participate in the process through opportunities such as:
 - Steering Committee meetings
 - Public meetings or open houses
 - Workshops and planning partner specific training sessions
 - > Public review and comment periods prior to adoption.
- Attend the mandatory Phase 3 jurisdictional annex workshop.
- Complete the jurisdictional annex.
- Perform a "consistency review" of all technical studies, plans and ordinances specific to hazards.
- Review the risk assessment and identify hazards and vulnerabilities specific to the jurisdiction.
- Review and determine if the mitigation recommendations chosen in Volume 1 will meet the needs of the jurisdiction.

- Create an action plan that identifies each project, who will oversee the task, how it will be financed, and when it is estimated to occur.
- Formally adopt the hazard mitigation plan.

By adopting this plan, each planning partner also agrees to the plan implementation and maintenance protocol established in Volume 1. Failure to meet these criteria may result in a partner being dropped from the partnership by the Steering Committee, and thus losing eligibility under the scope of this plan.

Final Coverage

Two jurisdictions that submitted letters of intent to participate withdrew from the planning process prior to its completion. The rest fully met the participation requirements for this update, completed an annex template, and will be covered by the updated hazard mitigation plan upon FEMA approval and adoption by their governing bodies. This final coverage will apply to the following jurisdictions:

- Cities/County
 - ➢ Town of Atherton
 - ➢ City of Belmont
 - City of Brisbane
 - City of Burlingame
 - Town of Colma
 - City of Daly City
 - City of East Palo Alto
 - City of Foster City
 - City of Half Moon Bay
 - Town of Hillsborough
 - City of Menlo Park
 - City of Millbrae
 - City of Pacifica
 - Town of Portola Valley
 - City of Redwood City
 - City of San Bruno
 - City of San Carlos
 - City of San Mateo
 - City of South San Francisco
 - Town of Woodside
 - San Mateo County

Linkage Procedures

Eligible local jurisdictions that did not participate in development of this multi-jurisdictional plan may comply with Disaster Mitigation Act requirements by linking to this plan following procedures outlined in Appendix B.

- Special Purpose Districts
 - Coastside County Water District
 - Colma Fire Protection District
 - Highlands Recreation District
 - Menlo Park Fire Protection District
 - Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District
 - Mid-Peninsula Water District
 - Montara Water & Sanitary District
 - North Coast County Water District
 - San Mateo Community College District
 - San Mateo County Flood & Sea Level Rise Resiliency District
 - San Mateo County Harbor District
 - San Mateo County Office of Education
 - San Mateo Resource Conservation District
 - Westborough Water District
 - Woodside Fire Protection District

PARTNER ANNEX DEVELOPMENT

Capability Assessment

All participating jurisdictions compiled an inventory and analysis of existing authorities and capabilities called a "capability assessment." A capability assessment creates an inventory of a jurisdiction's mission, programs, and policies, and evaluates its capacity to carry them out. This assessment identifies potential gaps in the jurisdiction's capabilities. If the capability assessment identified an opportunity to add a missing core capability or expand an existing one, then doing so has been selected as an action in the jurisdiction's action plan. The sections below describe the specific capabilities evaluated under the assessment.

Planning and Regulatory Capabilities

Jurisdictions can develop policies and programs and implement rules and regulations to protect and serve residents. Local policies are typically identified in planning documents, implemented via a local ordinance, and enforced by a governmental body. Because the planning and regulatory authority of municipal partners is generally broader than that of special-purpose districts, the assessment of these capabilities is more detailed for the municipal partners.

Development and Permitting Capability

This set of capabilities is not applicable to special purpose districts and was assessed only for municipal partners (cities and the County). Municipal jurisdictions regulate land use through the adoption and enforcement of zoning, subdivision, and land development ordinances, building codes, building permit ordinances, floodplain, and stormwater management ordinances. When effectively prepared and administered, these regulations can lead to hazard mitigation.

Fiscal Capabilities

Assessing a jurisdiction's fiscal capability provides an understanding of the ability to fulfill the financial needs associated with hazard mitigation projects. This assessment identifies both outside resources, such as grant-funding eligibility, and local jurisdictional authority to generate internal financial capability, such as through impact fees.

Administrative and Technical Capabilities

Without appropriate personnel, the mitigation strategy may not be implemented. Administrative and technical capabilities focus on the availability of personnel resources responsible for implementing all the facets of hazard mitigation. These resources include technical experts, such as engineers and scientists, as well as personnel with capabilities that may be found in multiple departments, such as grant writers.

Education and Outreach Capability

Regular engagement with the public on issues regarding hazard mitigation provides an opportunity to directly interface with community members. Assessing this outreach and education capability illustrates the connection between the government and community members, which opens a two-way dialogue that can result in a more resilient community based on education and public engagement.

Compliance with National Flood Insurance Program Requirements

The National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) is not available to special purpose districts, so this set of capabilities was assessed only for municipal partners (cities and the County). Flooding is the costliest natural hazard in the United States and homeowners face increasingly high flood insurance premiums. Community participation in the NFIP opens up opportunity for additional grant funding associated specifically with flooding issues. Assessment of a jurisdiction's current NFIP status and compliance provides a greater understanding of the local flood management program, opportunities for improvement, and available grant funding opportunities.

Participation and Classification in Other Programs

Other programs, such as the Community Rating System, Storm/Tsunami Ready, and Firewise USA, can enhance a jurisdiction's ability to mitigate, prepare for, and respond to natural hazards. These programs indicate a jurisdiction's desire to go beyond minimum requirements set forth by local, state, and federal regulations in order to create a more resilient community. These programs complement each other by focusing on communication, mitigation, and community preparedness to save lives and minimize the impact of natural hazards on a community. The programs reviewed here are applicable to municipal partners only so they are not included in the capability assessments for special-purpose districts.

Adaptive Capacity

An adaptive capacity assessment evaluates a jurisdiction's ability to anticipate impacts from future conditions. By looking at public support, technical adaptive capacity, and other factors, jurisdictions identify their core capability for resilience against issues such as sea level rise. The adaptive capacity assessment provides jurisdictions with an opportunity to identify areas for improvement by ranking their capacity high, medium, or low.

Mitigation Action Plan Development

Risk Ranking

In the risk-ranking exercise, each planning partner was asked to review the ranked risk specifically for its jurisdiction, based on the impact on its population and/or facilities. Municipalities based this ranking on probability of occurrence and the potential impact on people, property, and the economy. Special purpose districts based this ranking on probability of occurrence and the potential impact on their constituency, their vital facilities, and the facilities' functionality after an event. Additionally, to support the social equity lens for this plan update, a social vulnerability ranking factor and weighting was established to support planning partners wishing to apply an equity lens to their risk ranking and project identification and prioritization. The risk-ranking methodology for partner annexes was the same as that used for the countywide risk ranking, as described in Volume 1.

The objectives of this exercise were to familiarize the partnership with how to use the risk assessment as a tool to support other planning and hazard mitigation processes and to help prioritize types of mitigation actions that should be considered. Hazards that were ranked as "high" and "medium" for each jurisdiction as a result of this exercise were considered to be priorities for identifying mitigation actions, although jurisdictions also identified actions to mitigate "low" ranked hazards, as appropriate.

Information Reviewed to Develop Action Plan

The tool kits were used during the workshops and in follow-up work conducted by the planning partners. A large portion of the workshop focused on how the tool kit should be used to develop the mitigation action plan. Planning partners were specifically asked to review the following to assist in the identification of actions:

- The Jurisdiction's Capability Assessment—Reviewed to identify capabilities that the jurisdiction does not currently have but should consider pursuing or capabilities that should be revisited and updated to include best available information; also reviewed to determine how existing capabilities can be leveraged to increase or improve hazard mitigation in the jurisdiction.
- The Jurisdiction's National Flood Insurance Program Compliance Table—Reviewed to identify opportunities to increase floodplain management capabilities.
- The Jurisdiction's Review of Its Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change—Reviewed to identify ways to leverage or continue to improve existing capacities and to improve understanding of other capacities.
- The Jurisdiction's Identified Opportunities for Future Integration—Reviewed to identify specific integration actions to be included in the mitigation strategy.
- Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities—Reviewed to identify actions that will help reduce known vulnerabilities.
- The Mitigation Best Practices Catalog—Reviewed to identify actions that the jurisdiction should consider including in its action plan.
- Public Input—Reviewed to identify potential actions and community priorities.

Action Plan Prioritization

The actions recommended in the action plan were prioritized based on the following factors:

- Cost and availability of funding
- Benefit, based on likely risk reduction to be achieved
- Number of plan objectives achieved
- Timeframe for project implementation
- Eligibility for grand funding programs

Two priorities were assigned for each action:

- A high, medium, or low priority for implementing the action (with and without considerations of social equity)
- A high, medium, or low priority for pursuing grant funding for the action.

The sections below describe the analysis of benefits and costs and the assignment of the two priority ratings.

Benefit/Cost Review

The action plan must be prioritized according to a benefit/cost analysis of the proposed actions (44 CFR, Section 201.6(c)(3)(iii)). For this hazard mitigation plan, a qualitative benefit-cost review was performed for each action by assigning ratings for benefit and cost as follows:

- Cost:
 - High—Existing funding will not cover the cost of the action; implementation would require new revenue through an alternative source (for example, bonds, grants, and fee increases).
 - Medium—The action could be implemented with existing funding but would require a reapportionment of the budget or a budget amendment, or the cost of the action would have to be spread over multiple years.
 - Low—The action could be funded under the existing budget. The action is part of or can be part of an ongoing existing program.
- Benefit:
 - > High—Action will provide an immediate reduction of risk exposure for life and property.
 - Medium—Action will have a long-term impact on the reduction of risk exposure for life and property, or action will provide an immediate reduction in the risk exposure for property.
 - **Low**—Long-term benefits of the action are difficult to quantify in the short term.

To assign priorities, each action with a benefit rating equal to or higher than its cost rating (such as high benefit/medium cost, medium benefit/medium cost, medium benefit/low cost, etc.) was considered to be cost-beneficial. This is not the detailed level of benefit/cost analysis required for some FEMA hazard-related grant programs. Such analysis would be performed at the time a given action is being submitted for grant funding.

Implementation Priority

Implementation priority ratings were assigned as follows:

- **High Priority**—An action that meets multiple objectives, has benefits that exceed costs, and has a secured source of funding. Action can be completed in the short term (1 to 5 years).
- **Medium Priority**—An action that meets multiple objectives, has benefits that exceed costs, and is eligible for funding though no funding has yet been secured for it. Action can be completed in the short term (1 to 5 years), once funding is secured. Medium-priority actions become high-priority actions once funding is secured.
- Low Priority—An action that will mitigate the risk of a hazard, has benefits that do not exceed the costs or are difficult to quantify, has no secured source of funding, and is not eligible for any known grant funding. Action can be completed in the long term (1 to 10 years). Low-priority actions may be eligible for grant funding from programs that have not yet been identified.

Social Equity Implementation Priority

For planning partners that chose to apply an equity lens to their prioritization scheme, the following parameters were established:

- **High Priority**—The mitigation action is designed to reduce harm to multiple socially vulnerable groups in the County from one or more of the hazards identified in the hazard mitigation plan.
- **Medium Priority** The mitigation action is designed to reduce harm to a single socially vulnerable population in the County from at least one hazard identified in the hazard mitigation plan.
- Low Priority— The mitigation action fails to advance social equity in any measurable way in the County

Grant Pursuit Priority

Grant pursuit priority ratings were assigned as follows:

- **High Priority**—An action that meets identified grant eligibility requirements, has high benefits, and is listed as high or medium implementation priority; local funding options are unavailable or available local funds could be used instead for actions that are not eligible for grant funding.
- **Medium Priority**—An action that meets identified grant eligibility requirements, has medium or low benefits, and is listed as medium or low implementation priority; local funding options are unavailable.
- Low Priority—An action that has not been identified as meeting any grant eligibility requirements.

Classification of Actions

Each recommended action was classified based on the hazard it addresses and the type of mitigation it involves. Mitigation types used for this classification are as follows:

- **Prevention**—Government, administrative or regulatory actions that influence the way land and buildings are developed to reduce hazard losses. Includes planning and zoning, floodplain laws, capital improvement programs, open space preservation, and stormwater management regulations.
- **Property Protection**—Modification of buildings or structures to protect them from a hazard or removal of structures from a hazard area. Includes acquisition, elevation, relocation, structural retrofit, storm shutters, and shatter-resistant glass.
- **Public Education and Awareness**—Actions to inform residents and elected officials about hazards and ways to mitigate them. Includes outreach projects, real estate disclosure, hazard information centers, and school-age and adult education.
- **Natural Resource Protection**—Actions that minimize hazard loss and preserve or restore the functions of natural systems. Includes sediment and erosion control, stream corridor restoration, watershed management, forest and vegetation management, wetland restoration and preservation, and green infrastructure.
- **Emergency Services**—Actions that protect people and property during and immediately after a hazard event. Includes warning systems, emergency response services, and the protection of essential facilities.
- **Structural Projects**—Actions that involve the construction of structures to reduce the impact of a hazard. Includes dams, setback levees, floodwalls, retaining walls, and safe rooms.
- **Climate Resiliency**—Actions that incorporate methods to mitigate and/or adapt to the impacts of climate change. Includes aquifer storage and recovery activities, incorporating future conditions projections in project design or planning, or actions that specifically address jurisdiction-specific climate change risks, such as sea-level rise or urban heat island effect.
- **Community Capacity Building**—Actions that increase or enhance local capabilities to adjust to potential damage, to take advantage of opportunities, or to respond to consequences. Includes staff training, memorandums of understanding, development of plans and studies, and monitoring programs.

Annex-Preparation Process

Templates

Templates were created to help the planning partners prepare their jurisdiction-specific annexes. Separate templates were created for the two types of jurisdictions participating in this plan. The templates were created so that all criteria of Section 201.6 of 44 CFR for local governments would be met based on the partners' capabilities and mode of operation. Separate templates were available for partners updating a previous hazard mitigation plan and those developing a first-time hazard mitigation plan. These templates were deployed in three phases during the course of this plan update process. These phases are described as follows:

- Phase 1—Profile, Trends, Previous Plan Status
 - Deployed: February 19, 2021
 - ➢ Due: March 19, 2021
- Phase 2—Capability Assessment and Information Sources
 - Deployed: April 2, 2021
 - ➢ Due: May 21, 2021
- Phase 3—Risk Ranking, Action Plan, and Information Sources
 - Deployed: June 11, 2021
 - ➢ Workshops: June 14 − 16, 2021
 - ▶ Due: July 23, 2021

The templates were set up to lead all partner through steps to generate Disaster Mitigation Act-required elements specific to their jurisdictions. The templates and their instructions are included in Appendix C of this volume.

Tool Kit

Each planning partner was provided with a tool kit to assist in completing the annex template and developing an action plan. The tool kits contained the following:

- The 2016 San Mateo County Hazard Mitigation Plan annexes
- A catalog of mitigation best practices and adaptive capacity
- The guiding principle, goals and objectives developed for the update to the plan
- A list of jurisdiction-specific issues noted during the risk assessment
- Information on the FEMA Hazard Mitigation Assistance grant program
- Information on past hazard events that have impacted the planning area
- County-wide and jurisdiction-specific maps for hazards of concern
- Special district boundary maps showing the sphere of influence for each special purpose district partner
- The risk assessment results developed for this plan
- Information on climate change and expected impacts in the planning area

- Jurisdiction-specific annex templates, with instructions for completing them
- FEMA guidance on plan integration
- The results of a public survey conducted as part of the public involvement strategy
- A copy of the presentation that was given at the workshop sessions.

Workshop

All partners were required to participate in a technical assistance workshop, where key elements of the template were discussed and the templates were subsequently completed by a designated point of contact for each partner and a member of the planning team. Multiple online workshops were held the week of June 14, 2021 and attended by at least one representative from each planning partner, addressed the following topics:

- The templates and the tool kit
- Natural events history
- Jurisdiction-specific issues
- Risk ranking
- Status of prior actions
- Developing your action plan
- Cost/benefit review
- Prioritization protocol
- Next steps.





San_Mateo Resource Conservation District

Data Sources: San Mateo Co.

8. CITY OF EAST PALO ALTO

8.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Daniel Berumen, Senior Planner 1960 Tate Street East Palo Alto, CA 94303 650-853-3151 dberumen@cityofepa.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Elizabeth Lam, Community Service Officer 141 Demeter Street East Palo Alto, CA 94303 650-853-5939 elam@cityofepa.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 8-1.

Table 8-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name Title				
Daniel Berumen	Senior Planner			
Elizabeth Lam Community Service Officer				
Humza Javed City Engineer				
Amy Chen	Community and Economic Development Director			
Kamal Fallaha	Public Works Director			
Elena Lee	Planning Manager			
Janet Nunez Building Permit Technician				

8.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

8.2.1 Location and Features

The City of East Palo Alto is a community located in Silicon Valley at the southernmost edge of San Mateo County. The city is approximately 2.6 square miles in size. The city currently employs 105 people. The city is surrounded by the City of Menlo Park to the north and to the west, the City of Palo Alto to the south, and San Francisco Bay to the east.

The City of East Palo Alto has a Mediterranean Climate with cool, wet winters and warm, dry summers. The average annual precipitation is around 16 inches per year.

8.2.2 History

East Palo Alto was incorporated on July 1, 1983. The area that is now East Palo Alto has supported human settlement for over two millennia. Various tribes of Costanoan Native Americans, also known as the Ohlone, were the first known human inhabitants in the San Francisco Bay Area. The first European settlers in the area were Spanish ranchers and Gold Rush enriched land speculators. In 1849, a wharf was built at the foot of Bay Road – then just an unimproved dirt cart road – and the community of "Ravenswood" grew around it. The community was primarily agricultural in nature but there was also some shipping activity through the wharf, largely related to the bricks produced at a local factory. The area remained generally in agricultural use through the rest of the 19th century.

The development of East Palo Alto into primarily a residential suburban community began after World War II. Housing tract developers acquired larger tracts from nearby farms along with some of the colony lots and began subdividing them into much smaller, densely populated residential parcels. African American migrants first arrived in East Palo Alto around the end of World War II. Most of these Southern migrants moved in to take advantage of low cost housing and because, unlike surrounding peninsula communities, the area had few restrictive housing covenants. By the 1960s jobs and the possibility for higher education brought a second wave of African American settlers.

As the high-tech industry in Silicon Valley enjoyed an economic boom in the 1980s and 1990s, East Palo Alto was one of the most affordable places to live as property values in nearby communities skyrocketed. The city's prime location near Highway 101 and the Dumbarton Bridge, combined with affordable housing rates, attracted a very diverse population to the growing community. Today, Hispanic, African American, and Pacific Islander residents represent the largest ethnic groups in East Palo Alto, making it one of the most multicultural and multilingual communities in the San Francisco Bay Area.

8.2.3 Governing Body Format

A General Law City with a Council Manager form of government and as a municipal corporation, the City of East Palo Alto establishes its own zoning and land use regulations.

The Planning Commission will make a recommendation to City Council to adopt the Hazard Mitigation Plan and direct the City Manager to direct staff to implement the plan.

8.3 CURRENT TRENDS

8.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of East Palo Alto as of January 2020 was 30,794. Since 2016, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.2 percent.

8.3.2 Development

The City of East Palo Alto has been experiencing a steady amount of growth since the adoption of the previous hazard mitigation plan. There has been a significant push for more housing with projects like rehabilitation of Light Tree Apartments, Serenity Senior Apartments on University Avenue, and the 965 Weeks Street affordable housing development that were entitled within the past 5 years. Proposals for office developments have also

increased. Projects like the Sobrato Phase I and II project on University Avenue were either built or entitled. Major activity is occurring in the Ravenswood / 4 Corners Specific Plan area of the city with multiple multi-family residential, office, and mixed-use projects being proposed.

Table 8-2 summarizes development trends in the performance period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 8-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends						
Criterion	Response					
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan? If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures.	No					
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan? If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses. If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas?	No					
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas	Yes The Ravenswood/4 Corners TOD Specific Plan Area. A portion of this area is in the designated Special Flood Hazard Area.					
How many permits for new construction were		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	1	1	0	4	4
preparation of the previous hazard mitigation	Multi-Family	0	0	0	0	2
piun	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	0	0	2	2	0
	Total	3	1	2	6	6
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: 4 Landslide: N/A High Liquefaction Areas: N/A Tsunami Inundation Area: N/A Wildfire Risk Areas: N/A 					
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	The City is currently experiencing a high amount of development permit applications. There are a number of proposed commercial building, mixed-use, and residential projects that are under review by the Planning Division. A majority of the activity is occurring in the Ravenswood Business District.					

8.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning. This section summarizes the following findings of the assessment:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 8-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 8-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 8-5.

- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 8-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 8-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 8-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 8-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 8-10.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions.

Table 8-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability				
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements				
Building Code	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment: CBC 2019				
Zoning Code	Yes	No	No	No
Comment: EPA Development Code, adopted 207	18			
Subdivisions	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment: EPA Development Code, Article 5, ad	lopted 2018			
Stormwater Management	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment: Chapter 13.12 adopted in November	19, 2013			
Post-Disaster Recovery	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment: Emergency Management Plan adopte	ed in April 2011			
Real Estate Disclosure	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment: CA. State Civil Code 1102 requires fu	ll disclosure on natu	ral hazard exposure of the	sale/re-sale of any an	d all real property.
Growth Management	Yes	No	No	No
Comment: Vista 2035 General Plan, Ravenswoo	d/ 4 Corners TOD S	pecific Plan adopted in 20	12.	
Site Plan Review	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment: EPA Development Code, Article 2, ad	Code, Article 2, adopted 2018			
Environmental Protection	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment: Title 17, adopted in November 19, 20	er 19. 2013			
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment: Muni Code Chapter 15.52, adopted in November 19, 2013				
Emergency Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Multi Aid Agreements with the County	, Police Department	, Public Works, Building D	ivision	
Climate Change	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment: Vista 2035 General Plan adopted 2016				
Other	Yes	No	No	No
Comment: Chapter 8.12 (Environmental Health), Chapter 8.16 (Fire Code and Prevention), Chapter 8.44 (Individual Sewage Disposal				
Systems), Chapter 13.08 (Sanitary Sewers), Chapter 15.44 (Backflow Prevention)				

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Planning Documents	Loourruthonty	- Autority			
General Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? Comment: Last updated in 2016	s the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? Yes Comment: Last updated in 2016				
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
How often is the plan updated? Every 2 years Comment: Currently being updated by the Public	c Works Division				
Disaster Debris Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Countywide planning process - expect	ted plan in 2022				
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	
Comment: San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers	Authority, City of Ea	st Palo Alto Storm Drain N	laster Plan		
Stormwater Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: Storm Drain Master Plan (City of East	Palo Alto website),	adopted October 23, 2012)		
Urban Water Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	
Comment: Currently being updated, to be adopte	d end June				
Habitat Conservation Plan	No	Yes	Yes	No	
Comment: General Plan adopted in 2016					
Economic Development Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: Ravenswood 4/ Corners TOD Specific	Plan, adopted in 20	012.			
Shoreline Management Plan	No	No	Yes	No	
Comment:					
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: Chapter 7a of the Building Code (Wild	lland Urban Interface	e) adopted in January 201	1		
Forest Management Plan	No	No	Yes	No	
Comment:					
Climate Action Plan	Yes	No	No	No	
Comment: Climate Action Plan, adopted in 2014.					
Emergency Operations Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Multi Agency Committee (MAC), Public Works Mutual Aid Agreement (adopted 2015), California Building Officials/ OES Mutual Aid Agreement (adopted 2009), California Conservation Corps.(adopted December 2012), updated NIMS program; Emergency Operations Plan, adopted April 2011.					
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: A threat assessment was conducted when compiling the Emergency Operation Plan (EOP) which was adopted in April 2011. The outcome was published in EOP Volume 1: Threat Summary Assessment					
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: Emergency Operations Plan, Volume	1; Chapter 4: Recov	very.			
Continuity of Operations Plan	Yes	No	Yes	No	
Comment: Emergency Operations Plan, Volume	2; page 28, adopted	1 in 2011.			
Public Health Plan	Yes	No	No	No	
Comment: Section in 1999 General Plan. MOU w	vith clinic, part of Em	nergency Plan, COAD of S	outh San Mateo Count	^t Y	
Other	Yes	Yes	No	No	
Comment: Ravenswood/4 Corners Transit-oriented Development Specific Plan (2012), Bicycle Transportation Plan (2016), Gateway 101 Specific Plan (1993), Water System Master Plan (2010), Updated Urban Water Management Plan (2021)					

Table 8-4. Development and Permitting Capability			
Criterion	Response		
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department?	Yes Planning Division		
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	Yes, flood zone		
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	Yes		

Table 8-5. Fiscal Capability			
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?		
Community Development Block Grants	Yes		
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes		
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes		
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes (established fee schedule)		
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes		
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes		
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes		
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes		
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes, Cal-OES Hazard grants		
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes		
Other	N/A		

Table 8-6. Administrative and Technical Capability			
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?	Department/Agency/Position	
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes	Community and Economic Development Department/ Planning Division/ Engineering Division	
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	Community and Economic Development Department/ Engineering Division	
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes	Community and Economic Development Department/ Engineering Division	
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis	Yes	Community and Economic Development Department/ Management Analyst	
Surveyors	Yes	State Licensed Consultants	
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications	Yes	Staff, Contract IT	
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area	Yes	USGS, Cal-Conservation, UC Berkley	
Emergency manager	Yes	Administrative Services Director	
Grant writers	No	No one on staff	
Other	No	N/A	

Table 8-7. Education and Outreach Capability			
Criterion	Response		
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes		
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes		
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes Cityofepa.org (Flood Preparedness Webpage, Hazard Mitigation Plan link, etc.)		
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes East Palo Alto Next Door, Facebook		
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes Program for Public Information (PPI) Group		
Do you have any other programs already in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes COAD of South San Mateo County		
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes SMC Alert		

Table 8-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance			
Criterion	Response		
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Community and Economic Development/ Planning and Public Works		
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Public Works Director		
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	Yes		
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	2018		
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements? <i>If exceeds, in what ways?</i>	Exceeds 18" minimum freeboard requirement		
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	Fall of 2020		
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed? <i>If so, state what they are.</i>	No		
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction? If so, state what they are.	No		
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	Yes		
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed?	Yes There may be a transition from Planning to Public Works. City would need a Certified Floodplain Manager (CFM).		
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program?	Yes Yes		
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? What is the insurance in force? What is the premium in force?	830 \$225,732,400 \$1,040,343		
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? What were the total payments for losses?	32 \$156,763		
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021			

Table 8-9. Community Classifications				
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified	
FIPS Code	Yes	0608120956	N/A	
DUNS#	Yes	155104870	N/A	
Community Rating System	Yes	8	October 8, 2020	
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes	3	2019	
Public Protection	Yes	2	2012	
Storm Ready (Flood Warning)	Yes	7	1/27/2012	
Firewise	Yes	2	2012	
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A	

Table 8-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change

Criterion		Jurisdiction Ratings
Technical Capacity		
Jurisdiction-level understan	iding of potential climate change impacts	Medium
Comment: The jurisdiction	has participated in sea level rise workshops/ assessments	
Jurisdiction-level monitorin	g of climate change impacts	Medium
Comment: The City is more	nitoring climate change impacts, but no direct department is designated	
Technical resources to asse	ess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Low
Comment: The City is lack	ring internal resources at this time	
Jurisdiction-level capacity f	or development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Low
Comment: This work has	not been done, it's project-specific at this time	
Capital planning and land us	se decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Medium
Comment: The Rave Climate change	enswood Business District is an area of the city that is being evaluated through a Sp e impacts are being reviewed.	ecific Plan Update.
Participation in regional gro	ups addressing climate risks	High
Comment: Cooling Center	rs, San Francisquito Creek JPA, Reach Code adoption	
Implementation Capacity		
Clear authority/mandate to	consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Medium
Comment: Specific project	ts are being evaluated and considered for climate change impacts	
Identified strategies for gree	enhouse gas mitigation efforts	Medium
Comment: Transportation	Demand Management Ordinance	
Identified strategies for ada	ptation to impacts	Medium
Comment: Energy Reach	Code	
Champions for climate action	on in local government departments	Medium
Comment: Public Works/	Community and Economic Development	
Political support for implem	enting climate change adaptation strategies	High
Comment: City Council an	d local support is strong when it comes to climate change adaptation strategies	
Financial resources devoted	d to climate change adaptation	Low
Comment: Limited financial resources have been allocated for climate change adaptation. Grant funding is needed		
Local authority over sectors	s likely to be negative impacted	Low
Comment: Limited authori	ty exists at this time	
Criterion		Jurisdiction Ratings
--------------	---	----------------------
Public Capa	sity	
Local reside	nts knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	High
Comment:	Local residents have a strong interest and understanding of climate risk.	
Local reside	nts support of adaptation efforts	Medium
Comment:	City Council and local residents support adaptation efforts but direct programs still need to be impl	emented
Local reside	nts' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
Comment:	Resiliency is a strength of the community, but more attention needs to be placed on countering clin	nate impacts
Local econo	my current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	Local economy needs improvement and will need more time build up adaptation to climate impacts	S
Local ecosy	stems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure
Comment:	This is difficult to answer at this time, depends on the scale or range of change	
a. High = C	apacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improv	/ement;

Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

8.5 INTEGRATION WITH OTHER PLANNING INITIATIVES

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

8.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

• The General Plan 2035 Update fulfills requirements for AB2140. Chapter 10: Safety and Noise, subchapter goal and policies. We have conducted public outreach and have adopted a comprehensive list of codes including Title 24. We also have a collaborative enforcement of CCR Titles 8, 19, 24, and 25. We adopted floodplain and earthquake safety requirements as per the state and national standards.

8.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment presented in this annex identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- The city will upgrade the levees and increase partnerships with COAD and the Program for Public Information group. Applying resources to abate the special flood hazard areas of the city. The city will remove any and all impediments of storm water flow in the floodplain. Building, Planning, Public Works, County of San Mateo, and San Francisquito Joint Powers Authority are working on mitigation efforts for sea level rise.
- *Disaster Debris Management Plan* The City of East Palo Alto is currently working with the San Mateo County Joint Powers Authority and San Mateo County Emergency Manager's Association on this plan.

• *Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan/Emergency Management Plan* – The City of East Palo Alto has an Emergency Management Plan on file and currently working to update this plan.

8.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

8.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 8-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 8-11. Past Natural Hazard Events										
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment							
Severe Storm/ Flooding	N/A	12/10/2016	\$0.00							
Severe Storm / Flooding	N/A	December 23, 2012	\$2,627,000							
Severe Storm / Flooding	DR-1203	February 9, 1998	\$12,000,000							
Severe Storm(s)	DR-1155	January 4, 1997	Unknown							
Severe Storm(s)	DR-1046	March 12, 1995	Unknown							
Severe Storm(s)	DR-1044	January 10, 1995	Unknown							
Earthquake	DR-845	October 18, 1989	Unknown							

8.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 8-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions target hazards with high and medium rankings.

	Table 8-12. Hazard Risk Ranking (Social Equity Lens applied)								
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category						
1	Sea Rise Level Rise / Climate Change	63	High						
2	Flood	57	High						
3	Landslide/Mass Movements	45	High						
4	Earthquake	42	High						
5	Dam Failure	30	Medium						
6	Severe Weather/Extreme Weather	24	Medium						
7	Drought	9	Low						
8	Tsunami	2	Low						
9	Wildfire	0	Low						

8.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: None
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: None
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: *None*

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Soft-Story Retrofit
- Concrete Tilt-up Building Seismic Retrofit
- Unreinforced masonry

8.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 8-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

	Table 8-13.Status of Previous Plan	Actions			
			Removed;	Carried O Up	ver to Plan date
Action Item		Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
Action EPA-7 Authority	I Partner on the new levee project from San Francisquito Joint Powers	\checkmark			
Comment:	Improvements have been made on the levee project in Gardens area of	f the city in 201	8.		
Action EPA -	2 Conduct Water main upgrades and improvements			\checkmark	EPA-8
Comment:	The Public Works Department is looking to make improvements in the f	uture.			
Action EPA-3	B Ensure Potable water access via Pad D and Gloria Way Wells	\checkmark			
Comment:	Gloria Way Well was completed in 2018. Pad D Emergency Water Well December 2020.	went through a	an environmen	tal impact a	analysis in
Action EPA-4	Establish New Water Storage Tanks for Commercial Projects			\checkmark	EPA-9
Comment:	No action yet, proposed projects are discussing this possibility.				
Action EPA-	5 Conduct Storm Drain Improvements			\checkmark	EPA-8
Comment:	Ongoing efforts with the Public Works Department.	I	I	I	
Action EPA-6	Develop a Soft Story Retrofit Ordinance			\checkmark	EPA-6
Comment:	No action during this mitigation cycle due to staff turnover.				
Action EPA-7	Develop database for unreinforced masonry			\checkmark	EPA-6
Comment:	No action during this mitigation cycle due to staff turnover.				

		Removed;	Carried O Up	ver to Plan date
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
Action EPA-8 Develop a Concrete Tilt-up Building Seismic Retrofit Ordinance			\checkmark	EPA-6
Comment: No action during this mitigation cycle due to staff turnover.				
Action EPA-9 Participate in programs such as Firewise and StormReady.			\checkmark	EPA-7
Comment: The city is continuing to work with our CERT partners on Palo Alto outreach programs.	and in the Menlo Pa	ark Fire district	for commu	nity
Action G-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase, or relocation of structures in hazard-prone areas to prevent future structure damage. Give priority properties with exposure to repetitive losses.	y to		\checkmark	EPA-1
Comment: No action on this item yet, staff will need to prioritize for next cycle				
Action G-2—Maintain good standing under the National Flood Insurance Program and continue participation in CRS by exceeding the minimum NFIP requirements	m		\checkmark	EPA-4
Comment: Staff maintains in good standing with CRS, currently a Class 7 rati	ng.			
Action G-3—Where feasible, implement a program to record high water marks following high-water events.			\checkmark	EPA-11
Comment: Ongoing effort in coordination with the JPA and City of Palo Alto.				
Action G-4—Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, programs, or resources that dictate land use or redevelopment.			\checkmark	EPA-2
Comment: Ongoing efforts to integrate within the General Plan.				
Action G-5—Provide incentives for eligible non-profits and private entities, include homeowners, to adapt to risks through structural and nonstructural retrofitting.	ling	\checkmark		
Comment: No action during this mitigation cycle due to staff turnover.				
Action G-6— Support the County-wide initiatives identified in Volume I of the haz mitigation plan.	zard		\checkmark	EPA-3
Comment: Ongoing through collaborative efforts with San Mateo County.				
Action G-7— Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.			\checkmark	EPA-3
Comment: Ongoing through collaborative efforts with San Mateo County.				

8.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 8-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 8-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 8-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 8-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix									
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a			
Action EPA-1—Whe have experienced re	Action EPA-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.								
Hazards Mitigated: Climate Change/Sea Level Rise, Earthquake, Flood, Landslide/ Mass Movements, Severe Weather, Tsunami, Wildfire									
Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 9	Building Division	County of San Mateo	High	Grant funding	Short-term			

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a			
Action EPA-2— Inte community, including	grate the hazard mitiga EPA Municipal Code a	ition plan into other and Capital Improve	plans, ordinances and p ment Program (CIP)	rograms that o	dictate land use decisions	in the			
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Climate Change/Sea Drought, Tsunami, W	Level Rise, Dam F /ildfire	ailure, Earthquake, Floo	ding, Landslid	e/ Mass Movements, Seve	ere Weather,			
New & Existing	All	Planning Division	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing			
Action EPA-3 Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan. Hazards Mitigated: Climate Change/Sea Level Rise, Dam Failure, Earthquake, Flood, Landslide / Mass Movements, Severe Weather, Drought, Tsunami, Wildfire									
New & Existing	All	Planning Division	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term			
Action EPA-4—Con implementation of flo • Enforce the flood • Participate in flood • Provide public ass <u>Hazards Mitigated</u> :	 Action EPA-4—Continue to maintain good standing and compliance under the NFIP and Community Rating System (CRS) through mplementation of floodplain management programs that, at a minimum, meet the NFIP requirements: Enforce the flood damage prevention ordinance. Participate in floodplain identification and mapping updates. Provide public assistance/information on floodplain requirements and impacts. 								
Existing	1, 2, 5, 8	Planning Division	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing			
Action EPA-5—Iden	tify and pursue strategi Se Climate Change/Sea	es to increase adap ea Level Rise, Flood Level Rise, Flood	otive capacity to climate ling, Severe Weather, an Severe Weather/ Extrem	change includi nd Drought ne Weather, D	ing but not limited to the fo	llowing:			
New & Existing	1, 2, 6,7	Planning Division	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term			
Action EPA-6— Dev unreinforced masonr Hazards Mitigated:	velop Soft Story Retrofit y. Earthquake Landslic	and Concrete Tilt-u	up Building Seismic Retr	ofit Ordinance	s as well as developing da	tabase for			
Existing	3,4	Building Division	Planning Division	Low	Staff Time	Short-term			
Action EPA-7—Part Hazards Mitigated:	icipate in programs suc Flood, Dam Failure,	h as Firewise and S Severe Storm, Wild	StormReady. fire						
Existing	2, 5, 6, 8, 9	Planning Division	Public Works/ Environmental Services	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing			
Action EPA-8— Cor	nduct Water main upgra	ades and storm drai	n improvements						
New and Existing	2, 5, 6, 8	Public Works	CEDD	High	Water capital improvement surcharge	Long-term			
Action EPA-9—Esta Hazards Mitigated:	blish New Water Stora Drought	ge Tanks for Comm	ercial Projects.						
Existing	7	Public Works	Planning	High	Water capital improvement surcharge	Long-term			
Action EPA-10— Er Hazards Mitigated:	nsure Potable water acc Earthquake, Drought	cess via new emerg	ency well projects.						
Existing	4, 7	Public Works	Planning	High	Water capital improvement surcharge	Ongoing			

			I									
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	ectives Met Lead Agency Support Agency Cost Sources of Funding		q Timeline ^a								
Action EPA-11— De damage estimates, c mitigation plan.	Action EPA-11— Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g., high water marks, preliminary lamage estimates, damage photos) to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard nitigation plan.											
Hazards Mitigated:	Is Mitigated: Climate Change/Sea Level Rise, Flood, Severe Weather, Tsunami											
New and Existing	1, 5, 6, 7, 8	San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District (FSLRRD)	County, All municipalities	Medium	General Fund	Short-term						
Action EPA-12 —	Request a new Flood Creek are completed.	nsurance Study (F	IS) from FEMA for Garde	ens Area after	evee upgrades to San	Francisquito						
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Existing	Climate Change, Flood 1,2 S	d an Francisquito F Creek Joint owers Authority/ Public Works	Planning Division	Low	FEMA Grant Funds (Public Assistance)	Short-term						
Action EPA-13—	Incorporate considerat into land use planning City actions regarding Climate Change/Sea I	Incorporate consideration of the FEMA 100-year tide and sea level rise, and climate change-driven extreme storms, nto land use planning and shoreline development. This includes new policies by local jurisdictions, and County and City actions regarding their General Plans, Climate-related Plans, and the development applications.										
New and Existing	1, 2, 6	San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District (FSLRRD)	County, All municipalities	Low	General Fund, Priva Developers, City Cap Project Funding	te Ongoing ital						
Action EPA-14—	Improve stormwater dr San Mateo County Flo	ainage to alleviate od and Sea Level F	repeated localized floodi Rise Resiliency District (F	ng, especially FSLRRD) Floo	storm drain systems c d Zone channels and i	onnected to nfrastructure.						
Hazards Mitigated:	Climate Change/Sea L	evel Rise, Flood, S	Severe Weather									
New and Existing	1, 2, 6	San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District (FSLRRD)	County, All municipalities	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood Zones, Property/Vehi Fees, Stormwater Fe State Grants (Caltrar CA DWR), Federal Grants (EPA), City Capital Project Fundi	Ongoing cle es, is, ng						
Action EPA-15— Ac San Francisquito Cre environmental, recre	dvance long-term resilie eek and nearby areas of ation, community/conn	ence to sea level ris of the shoreline with ectivity enhanceme	e and extreme storms fo the Cities of Menlo Park ints where possible.	r the communi and East Palo	ties and critical assets o Alto, as well as provi	adjacent to the de						
Hazards Mitigated: New and Existing	Climate Change/Sea L 1, 2, 6	Evel Rise, Flood, S East Palo Alto,	Severe vveather San Francisquito	Medium	State Grant (CA DW	R), Long-term						

New and Existing	1, 2, 6	East Palo Alto, Menlo Park, (FSLRRD)	San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority, Caltrans, Metropolitan Transportation Commission	Medium	State Grant (CA DWR), Federal Grants (FEMA BRIC/HMGP), City Capital Project Funding	Long-term
------------------	---------	--	--	--------	--	-----------

	1	1	1		1						
Benefits New or	Objectives Net			Estimated	Sources of Funding	Timeline					
Action EDA 16 Continue to develop maintain and aphance the County's classification under the Community Dating System by											
Action EPA-16—Continue to develop, maintain, and ennance the County's classification under the Community Rating System by											
 Upgrade and exp 	Improving community response to nood emergencies in various ways, including but not inflited to:										
Conduct community flood preparation, education, and recovery outreach											
Hazards Mitigated:	Climate Change/Sea I	evel Rise, Flood, S	evere Weather								
New and Existing	1. 2. 6	San Mateo	County	Low	State Grant (CA DWR	Short-term					
non and Exioting	., _, 0	County Flood and	ooung	2011	SWERG)						
		Sea Level Rise			,						
		Resiliency									
		District, All									
A. (1		municipalities				•					
Action EPA-17-00	ontinue to identify and p	channel and culver	ty systems, equipment, and the structure	and critical fac	clittles, including pump stat	ions,					
Hazarde Mitigatod:	Climate Change/Sea I	evel Pise Flood S	overe Westher								
<u>Max and Eviating</u>		Son Motoo		Madium	Tay Fundad Flood	Ongoing					
New and Existing	1, 2, 0	County Flood and	municipalities	Medium	Zones State Grants	Ongoing					
		Sea Level Rise	manopanico		Federal Grants						
		Resiliency District									
Action EPA-18-S	upport green infrastruct	ure projects that enl	hance resiliency to natur	al disasters a	nd incorporate green desig	n elements					
into hazard mitigatio	n projects where feasib	le.									
Hazards Mitigated:	Climate Change/Sea L	evel Rise, Flood, S	evere Weather. Landslid	le/ Mass Move	ements, Drought						
New and Existing	1, 2, 3, 6, 7	County, C/CAG	San Mateo County	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood	Ongoing					
			Flood and Sea Level		Zones, Property/Vehicle						
			Rise Resiliency		Fees, Stormwater Fees,						
			DISTRICT (FSLRRD), All		State Grants (Caltrans,						
			municipanties		Grants (FPA) City						
					Capital Project Funding						
a. Short-term = C	ompletion within 5 year	s: Lona-term = Com	pletion within 10 years:	Ongoing= Coi	ntinuing new or existing pro	ogram with					
no completion	date	-,g .c 0011			g i en er er er en en g pri						
Aaranyma ugad har	a ara dafinad at the bac	inning of this volum	•								

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

				Table 8-	15. Mitigati	on Action Prior	ity		
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	ls Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Outside Funding Source Pursuit Priority ^a	Social Equity Priority ^a
1	7	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	High
2	9	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	Medium
3	9	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	Medium
4	4	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
5	4	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium	High
6	2	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	Medium
7	5	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	Medium	Medium
8	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	High	High	High
9	1	High	High	No	Yes	No	Medium	Medium	Low

Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	ls Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Outside Funding Source Pursuit Priority ^a	Social Equity Priority ^a
10	2	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium	Medium
11	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	Medium
12	2	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	High
13	3	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	Medium
14	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	Medium
15	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	High
16	3	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Low	High
17	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	Medium
18	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	Medium
0	a								

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 8-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions									
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building	
High-Risk Hazards									
Sea Level Rise / Climate Change	EPA-1, 2, 3, 5, 11, 15	EPA-1, 15	EPA-1, 2, 4, 16	EPA-13, 15		EPA 8, 9. 10, 16, 18	EPA-5, 13, 15 17, 18	EPA-13	
Flood	EPA-1, 2, 3, 4, 12, 15	EPA-1, 8, 14, 15	EPA-1, 2, 4, 12, 16	EPA-13, 15	EPA-7, 10	EPA-8, 17, 18	EPA-5, 12, 15, 17, 18	EPA-13	
Landslide/ Mass Movements	EPA-1, 2,	EPA-1, 6	EPA-2, 3		EPA-6, 10	EPA-10, 18	EPA-18	EPA-2, 3	
Earthquakes	EPA-1, 2, 3	EPA-1, 6	EPA-2, 3		EPA-10	EPA 8, 9. 10	EPA-18	EPA- 2, 3	
Medium-Risk Hazard	s								
Dam Failure	EPA-1, 2, 3	EPA-1	EPA-2, 3			EPA-10,		EPA-2, 3	
Severe Weather/ Extreme Weather	EPA-1, 2, 3, 15	EPA-1	EPA-4, 15, 16		EPA-7	EPA-8, 18	EPA-15	EPA-2, 3, 13	
Low-Risk Hazards									
Drought	EPA-2, 3	EPA-7	EPA-2, 3		EPA-9, 10	EPA-7, 8, 9. 10	EPA-9	EPA-2, 3	
Tsunami	EPA-2, 3		EPA-11			EPA-8		EPA-2, 3	
Wildfire	EPA-1, 2, 3	EPA-1, 7	EPA-7		EPA-7	EPA-1	EPA-1	EPA-2, 3	
a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.									

8.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 8-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 8-17. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity Date Involved						
Nuestra casa hazard mitigation focus group	June 10, 2021	38				
CRC LHMP Workshop	June 23, 2021	24				

8.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **East Palo Alto Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **East Palo Alto Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- East Palo Alto Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Infrastructure Projects
- City of East Palo Alto Vista 2035 General Plan Goals and Policies
- City of East Palo Alto Development Code- Zoning and Development Standards

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.



























East Palo Alto

Sea Level Rise



Inundation areas are a combination of Our Coast Our Future 200cm (6.6 feet) of SLR with 100-year storm for the Pacific Ocean coastline, and Adapting to Rising Tides 108 inches (9 feet) of SLR for the San Francisco Bay coastline.

Data Sources: ESRI Basemap, San Mateo Co., ART, OCOF

0 0.125 0.25 0.5 Miles



9. CITY OF FOSTER CITY

9.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Kacey Treadway, Emergency Services Specialist 1900 O'Farrell St, Ste. 375 San Mateo, CA 94403 650-522-7962 ktreadway@smcfire.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Peter Pirnejad, City Manager 610 Foster City Boulevard Foster City, CA 94404 650-286-3288 ppirnejad@fostercity.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 9-1.

Table 9-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members				
Name	Title			
Leslie Carmichael	Consulting Planner			
Sofia Mangalam	Planning Manager			
Kai Ruess	Associate Attorney			
David Liu	Human Resources Analyst			
Yelena Capello	Deputy City Clerk			
Jennifer Phan	Principal Management Analyst			
Peter Pirnejad	City Manager			
Fiti Rusli	Assistant Finance Director			
Rob Lasky	IT Manager			
Bill Sandri	Police Lieutenant			
Martin Ticas	Police Captain			
Frank Fanara	Parks Manager			
Laura Galli	Public Works Engineering Manager			
Marty Cooper	Chief Building Official			
Robert Marshall	Fire Marshal			
Kacey Treadway	Emergency Services Specialist			
Pat Halleran	Emergency Services Specialist			
Bill Euchner	Battalion Chief			

9.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

9.2.1 Location and Features

Foster City is located midway between San Francisco and San Jose on the western shoreline of the San Francisco Bay, east of U.S. 101. The City is bisected by State Route 92 (the J. Arthur Younger Freeway), which runs between Half Moon Bay to the west and to Hayward and Highway 880 to the east via the San Mateo-Hayward Bridge. The City encompasses 12,345 acres, of which 8,726 acres are part of the San Francisco Bay and Belmont Slough, and 2,619 acres are reclaimed marshland. This equates to approximately 4 square miles of land area.

Foster City enjoys a marine-like climate characterized by mild and moderately wet winters and dry, cool summers. The summer weather is dominated by a cool sea breeze. Low overcast often occurs for a few hours in the morning. Summer nights are comfortably cool, with minimum temperatures averaging in the fifties. The average minimum and maximum temperature range is 47.1 °F to 71.1 °F.

Historical records show that sea level in San Francisco Bay has risen about seven (7) inches over the past 100 years. Scientists agree that the rate of sea level rise is accelerating, but projections of future sea levels vary considerably. Present California coastline projections reported by the California Natural Resource Agency and the California Energy Commission predict 10 to 18 inches of sea level rise by 20250 (using 200 as the base line) and between 40 and 55 inches by 2100, depending upon the emission scenario used.

California in general should expect overall the hotter and drier conditions with a reduction in winter rain (and concurrent snow in the mountains), as well as increased average temperatures. There is a likelihood that extreme weather events, including heat waves, wildfires, droughts, and floods will be among the earliest climate impacts experienced. In San Mateo County, higher average sea levels means that storms will impact the Pacific Coast and Bay shore more severely with high storm surges, more extensive inland flooding, and increased erosion.

9.2.2 History

Foster City had its beginnings as reclaimed marshlands devoted to dairy farming and evaporation ponds. At the turn of the century, the approximately 2,600 acres of tidal marshlands now occupied by Foster City were owned by Frank Brewer, and the land was called Brewer Island. During the late 1950s, T. Jack Foster, in association with Bay Area developer Richard Grant, purchased an option to acquire Brewer Island for the development of a complete community. In 1960 the California Legislature created the Estero Municipal Improvement District (EMID or District), the state's first such public agency. EMID was granted most of the government powers associated with an incorporated municipality, except the powers to zone and approve development and certain police powers. T. Jack Foster prepared a master plan for the development of Brewer Island (Foster City) and submitted it to the County in 1961. The plan envisioned a self-contained community with a variety of housing types, waterfront lots and parks, an internal lagoon for public recreation, marinas, offices, stores, industry, and public services. The engineering firm of Wilsey Ham developed a plan to raise the surface level of the island four to five feet and to dig a central drainage basin area that would also serve as a runoff storage area. This drainage basin is the Foster City Lagoon. EMID issued bonds to finance the improvements, including the lagoon, water systems, sewer system, roads, bridges, and other necessary improvements. Foster City was incorporated in April 1971, with the newly elected City Council assuming the powers of the EMID Board. Foster City's Master Plan was amended and adopted as the City's General Plan.

9.2.3 Governing Body Format

The City of Foster City and the Estero Municipal Improvement District provide governmental services to the citizens of Foster City. The members of the City Council serve as the policy-making body for both governmental agencies. City voters elect Council members to staggered terms of four years each. The City uses the Council-Manager form of government, with the City Manager appointed by and responsible to the five-member City Council.

The City Council assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the City Manager will oversee its implementation.

9.3 CURRENT TRENDS

9.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of Foster City as of January 2020 was 33,033. Since 2015, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.39 percent.

9.3.2 Development

Identifying previous and future development trends is achieved through a comprehensive review of permitting since completion of the previous plan and in anticipation of future development. Tracking previous and future growth in potential hazard areas provides an overview of increased exposure to a hazard within a community. Table 9-2 summarizes development trends in the performance period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 9-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends						
Criterion		Respo	nse			
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan? <i>If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures.</i>	No					
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan? If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses. If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas?	No					
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas	Yes Mariners Point Golf Center					
How many permits for new construction were issued in		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
your jurisdiction since the preparation of the previous	Single Family	0	0	0	1	0
nazard mitigation plan?	Multi-Family	5	0	0	5	3
	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	9	4	6	13	7
	Total	14	4	6	19	10

Criterion	Response
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred. – CDD (raising the levee – where are we designated right now)	Special Flood Hazard Areas: 0 Landslide: 0 High Liquefaction Areas: 2 Tsunami Inundation Area: 0 Wildfire Risk Areas: 0
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	We are fully built out within the City proper there is one area within the wetlands that might be developed in future.

9.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 9-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 9-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 9-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 9-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 9-7.

- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 9-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 9-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 9-10.

I able 9-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability					
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirem	ents				
Building Code	Yes (ordinance 629)	Yes – SMCFD and Estero Municipal Improvement District (EMID)	Yes – changing state laws	Yes	
Zoning Code	Yes – Title 17	No	Yes – see above	Yes	
Subdivisions	Yes Chapter 16.28	Yes – SMCFD and Estero (reviewing)	Yes –State Subdivision Map Act?	No	
Stormwater Management	Yes Chapter 13.12	Yes –San Mateo Water Pollution Prevention Program	Yes - MRP & Regional Water Quality Control Board	Yes – pollution incident or fuel leak	

. . . .

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Post-Disaster Recovery	Yes Chapters 2.40 and 17.82	Yes - FEMA, mutual aid agreements, Cal OES	Yes – State Emergency Orders	Yes – have pieces of a plan but could be an opportunity for a project
Real Estate Disclosure	No	No	No	No
Growth Management –	No	No	No	No
Site Plan Review —	Yes – (Chapter 17.72)	Yes – SMCFD reviews and EMID	No	No
Environmental Protection	Yes – (CEQA Guidelines)	Yes	Yes	Yes

Comment: Foster City has Environmental Review Guidelines adopted 10/1/2007. Actions must be consistent with California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

Flood Damage Prevention	Yes (Chapter 15.36)	Yes – FEMA, neighboring agencies potentially	Yes – in FEMA costal flood hazard studies, NFIP	Yes
Emergency Management	Yes - (Chapter 2.4)	Yes – SMCFD, FEMA, Cal OES, mutual & automatic aid agreement	Yes – CA Emergency Services Act	Yes
Climate Change	Yes – <u>Climate</u> <u>Action Plan</u>	Yes - CA	No	Yes

Comment: Climate Action Plan is being updated.

Planning Documents						
General Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Is the plan compliant with Asser	nbly Bill 2140? Yes	3				
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes –	No – unless driven by a regulation like FEMA	No – good budgetary practice	Yes		
How often is the plan updated?	updated annually, d	etailed 5 years, and projected for	r 10			
Disaster Debris Management Plan	Yes - language in franchise agreement with Recology	Yes – County, EPA, Cal OES	No	Yes		
Comment: Countywide Annex in	development					
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes – Lagoon Management Plan	No	Yes– Regional Quality Board	Yes		
Comment: Lagoon Management	Plan					
Stormwater Plan	Yes – MRP	No	Yes – Regional Quality Board Permit	Yes		
Comment: This is technically our	permit from MRP					
Urban Water Management Plan	Yes – updated every 5 years, 2020 is year of update and is currently being updated	Yes- PW to review SFPUC and BAWSCA allocations that inform the plan	Yes- 1983 Act – CA Water Code Section 10610- 10657 and submit to Department of Water Resources – AB 2067	Yes		
Habitat Conservation Plan	No	No	No	No		
Economic Development Plan	Yes – City Manager's Office to confirm year 2016/2017	No	No	No		

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Shoreline Management Plan	No	Yes – San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District (FSLRRD)	No	Yes
Comment: County led initiative flo been started	ood and sea level rise	agency – paying for startup cost	year 3 of 3 - erosion and res	iliency study has
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	No	Yes – CAL FIRE	No	No
Forest Management Plan	No	No	No	No
Climate Action Plan	Yes - <u>CAP</u>	No	No	Yes
Emergency Operations Plan	Yes – EOP 2007	Yes - SMCFD	Yes –CA Emergency Services Act	Yes
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Bay Area UASI THIRA	Plan			
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	No	Yes SMCFD	No – OES to review	Yes
Continuity of Operations Plan	Yes	No – SMCFD assists with updates	No - recommend	Yes
Public Health Plan	No	Yes – County Health	No	No – County driven
Other - America's Water Infrastructure Act – Emergency Response Plans and Risk Assessment – Plan being produced end of this fiscal year Dam Annexes such as Crystal Springs	No - pending	No	Yes- EPA	Yes

Table 9-4. Development and Permitting Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits?	Yes			
If no, who does? If yes, which department?	CDD (Community Development Department)			
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	No			
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	Yes			

Table 9-5. Fiscal Capability				
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?			
Community Development Block Grants	Yes			
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes			
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes			
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes - water and sewer in master fee services schedule			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes			
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No			
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes			

Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes
Other – Property Taxes, Transient Occupancy Tax, Business License Fees, Franchise Fees, Misc. State Fees	Yes

Table 9-6. Administrative and Technical Capability			
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?	Department/Agency/Position	
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes	CDD & PW/Parks	
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	Chief Building Official and Senior Engineer	
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes	CDD & PW/Parks	
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis	Yes	Finance	
Surveyors	No		
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications	Yes	IT	
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area	No		
Emergency manager	Yes	City Manager & Fire (Fire Chief)	
Grant writers	Yes	Citywide	
Other	No		

Table 9-7. Education and Outreach Capability			
Criterion	Response		
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes		
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes		
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes Hazard Mitigation Plan and Maps		
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes Foster City's Facebook, Twitter, and City Newsletters		
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes City Council Subcommittee		
Do you have any other programs already in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes CERT, Parks and Recreation Classes & social media		
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes SMC Alert & Nixle		

Table 9-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance		
Criterion	Response	
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	CDD	
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Community Development Director	
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No	
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	Ordinance 626 - 2019 Chapter 15.36	
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements? <i>If exceeds, in what ways?</i>	Meets	
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	Unknown	
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed? If so, state what they are.	No In designated Zone X until levee is completed	
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction? If so, state what they are.	No	
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	No In designated Zone X until levee is completed	
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed?	Yes	
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program?	No No No	
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a What is the insurance in force? What is the premium in force?	188 \$63,075,000 \$82,662	
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a	11	
What were the total payments for losses?	\$103,099	
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021		

Table 9-9. Community Classifications			
	Participating?	Classification	Date Classified
FIPS Code	Yes	0608125338	Unknown
DUNS#	Yes	091847145	Unknown
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes	2	2014
Public Protection (Fire)	Yes	ISO Class 2	2012
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A

	Table 9-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion		Jurisdiction Ratings
Technical Ca	apacity	
Jurisdiction	level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High
Comment:	The City is raising the levee in anticipation of sea level rise; understand reduced snowpack impacts of	on water supply;
Jurisdiction	level monitoring of climate change impacts	High
Comment:	The City has and continues to collaborate with the multiple regional groups (County of San Mateo, S and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District (FSLRRD), and the Bay Area Clean Water Agency) including applicable monitoring information.	an Mateo County Flood sharing of any
Technical re	sources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Medium
Comment:	The City utilizes technical experts as needed.	
Jurisdiction	level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Low
Comment:	The City utilizes technical experts as needed.	
Capital plan	ning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Medium
Comment:	As new information becomes available, it will be shared and factored into considerations for future la capital planning.	nd uses and the City's
Participation	n in regional groups addressing climate risks	Medium
Comment:	The City continues to collaborate with multiple regional groups.	
Implementat	ion Capacity	
Clear author	ity/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Medium
Comment:	Per Climate Action Plan	
Identified str	rategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	High
Comment:	Per Climate Action Plan	
Identified str	rategies for adaptation to impacts	High
Comment:	Per Climate Action Plan	
Champions Comment:	for climate action in local government departments Per Climate Action Plan	Medium
Political sup	port for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	High
Comment:	Political support for updating Climate Action Plan and Levee Improvements	
Financial res	sources devoted to climate change adaptation	High
Comment:	Resources allocated to update Climate Action Plan and Levee Improvement.	S
Local author	ity over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Low
Comment:	Individual privately held properties that are likely to be negatively impacted due to their location may sectors from residential, commercial and utilities. The City may exert limited authority over privately h development review process.	include a range of neld property through its
Public Capa	city	
Local reside	nts' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium
Comment:	The draft Local Hazard Mitigation Plan will include identification of climate risk factors such as urban plan will be shared with the community to build knowledge and understanding of climate risk. The Cit meeting on the draft plan and consider community input prior to adoption.	fire zone, etc. The draft y will hold public
Local reside	nts' support of adaptation efforts	High
Comment:	Overwhelming support of levee bond measure.	
Local reside	nts' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure
Comment:	No information available.	

Criterion	Jurisdiction Ratings
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure
Comment: No information available.	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure
Comment: No information available.	

a. High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

9.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

9.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- Capital Improvement Program Planning The City Council annually approves a detailed Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for a five-year period and identifies and begins to fund upcoming infrastructure projects on a 10-year horizon. The Planning Commission reviews the CIP for consistency with the General Plan. The City Council annually appropriates funding for the current year phases of Capital Improvement Projects. Infrastructure projects identified in this document have been or will be included in the five-year Capital Improvement Project Plan for the years in which they are planned for implementation.
- Annual Budget The City Council annually adopts a Fiscal Year Budget which authorizes the funding for all operations, services, and projects for the fiscal year planning. Priority projects identified in the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan/Safety Element that require an expenditure output will be included in the Annual Budget in the years in which they are planned for implementation. The Annual Budget includes the appropriation of funding for the Capital Improvement Program discussed above.
- Five Year Financial Plan The City Council annually approves a Five-Year Financial Plan which includes revenue and expenditure expectations for the five-year period. Approved projects in the Capital Improvement Plan, including any related to the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan/Safety Element would be included in the five-year plan to ensure that appropriate funding is available for project completion.
- Foster City Municipal Code The City Municipal Code includes several ordinances that would directly impact mitigation measures identified in the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan/Safety Element, for instance updates to the Code may be required in order to implement the post- disaster response measures and/or building code recommendations. Chapter 15.36 includes the City's Flood Plain Management Regulations related to the City's participation in the National Flood Insurance Program.
- Estero Municipal District Code The District Code includes several ordinances that would directly impact mitigation measures identified in the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan/Safety Element, for instance

updates to the Code may be required in order to implement the post- disaster response measures and/or changes to the Water Distribution system or Wastewater Collection system.

- **Crime Prevention Programs** Proactive crime prevention makes Foster City a place where residents and visitors are safe from crime. Foster City is frequently listed among the safest cities in the State of California because of the efforts that go into preventing crime before it happens.
- **CERT** The Community Emergency Response Teams train regularly to be prepared for emergency response and recovery. Having these teams in place with training in triage, medical response and search and rescue will enhance responsiveness after a disaster and mitigate the impact that effects would have had on individuals and property if left unattended.
- General Plan Annual Report This annual report assesses progress in implementation of programs included in the General Plan and in turn, helps shape the City Council's annual priorities for staff work efforts, the budget, and the capital improvement program.
- Climate Action Plan The Climate Action Plan was adopted by the City Council in February 2016 and contains 40 measures that will be prioritized to improve the environmental sustainability of Foster City and the Bay Area region. Specific to the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan/Safety Element, the Climate Action Plan measures are intended to reduce the production of greenhouse gasses and mitigate the potential impact of sea level rise.

9.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment presented in this annex identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

Please see the following from the above tables of where LHMP could be integrated in the future.

- Building Code
- Zoning Code
- Stormwater Management
- Post-Disaster Recovery
- Environmental Protection
- Flood Damage Prevention
- Emergency Management
- Climate Change
- General Plan
- Capital Improvement Plan
- Disaster Debris Management Plan
- Lagoon Management Plan
- Stormwater Plan
- Urban Water Management Plan
- Shoreline Management Plan

- Climate Action Plan
- Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan
- Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)
- Post-Disaster Recovery Plan
- Continuity of Operations Plan
- America's Water Infrastructure Act: Emergency Response Plans and Risk Assessments—Plan being produced end of this fiscal year
- Dam Annexes—such as Crystal Springs
- Clean Water Program

9.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

9.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 9-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction. Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 9-11. Past Natural Hazard Events			
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment (Description)
Power Outages/ Disruption	N/A	Fall 2019 Summer 2020 Fall 2020	Pacific Gas & Electric's Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) program and Rolling Blackouts done in response to Climate Change and Severe Weather Conditions to help prevent wildfires and prevent strain on the power grid (Secondary Hazard to Climate Change, Extreme Weather, Windstorms, Severe Storms and Wildfire Hazards) Damage Assessment: Unknown
Extreme Weather	N/A	Winter 2018 Fall 2019 Winter 2019 Summer 2020	Extreme temperatures including summer heat and winter cold linked to Climate Change. Foster City has activated cooling centers and shelters for citizens in response. Damage Assessment: Unknown
Windstorm	N/A	2021	Strong winds and storms throughout the Bay Area. Damage to Foster City included down trees. Damage Assessment: Unknown
Severe Storm	N/A	2019	Downed trees in this storm impacted Foster City and residents. Damage Assessment: Unknown
Drought	N/A	2014-2017 July 8, 2021	In January 2014, the Governor proclaimed a State of Emergency and directed State officials to take all necessary actions to prepare for drought conditions. As of July 8, 2021, San Mateo County has been included in the Governor's emergency declaration. Damage Assessment: Unknown
Winter Storm	N/A	2014	Winter Storm damage resulted in San Mateo County's Proclamation of State of Emergency on December 19, 2014, and the Governor's Proclamation of a State of Emergency on December 22, 2014. Foster City personnel worked overtime and provided sandbags to City residents. Damage Assessment: Unknown
Loma Prieta Earthquake	DR-845	October 17, 1989	Minor damage to City owned facilities. Damage Assessment: Unknown
9.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 9-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions target hazards with high and medium rankings.

	Table 9-12. Hazard Risk Ranking (Social Equity Lens applied)								
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category						
1	Sea Level Rise / Climate Change	63	High						
2	Flood	63	High						
3	Dam Failure	42	High						
4	Earthquake	42	High						
5	Severe Weather/Extreme Weather	24	Medium						
6	Drought	9	Low						
7	Tsunami	2	Low						
8	Landslide/Mass Movements	0	Low						
9	Wildfire	0	Low						

9.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

• Evacuation – Due to Foster City's geographical nature and infrastructure, the egress and ingress routes are limited which would present issues when evacuation is needed in response to an emergency.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan for this annex.

9.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 9-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 9-13. Status of Previous Plan Actions						
			Removed;	Carried Plan L	Over to Ipdate	
Action Item		Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
S-A-1-a Prote infrastructure proper design Comment:	ect City's Infrastructure and Facilities. The City will protect the City's and facilities from damage due to seismic and geologic hazards through and retrofitting older facilities to current standards. This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	X Ilan.	FOS-1	
S-A-1-b Polic Department fa improve the fa building. Comment:	E Station Assessment. Conduct an assessment of the Police acility and its use related to an earthquake to identify strategies that can acility's resilience, including determining the feasibility of replacing the This item is not completed and should carry over to the next plan with lange	uage modifica	tions.	Х	FOS-1	
S-A-1-c Recre Center facility earthquake to determining th	eation Center Assessment. Conduct an assessment of the Recreation (a potential emergency shelter location) and its use related to an identify strategies that can improve the facility's resilience, including he feasibility of replacing the building. (High Priority)			Х	FOS-1	
Comment:	This item has been worked on such as the red cross partnerships for the sh the next plan and was not completed because of budget allocation.	eltering aspe	ct. This shou	ld be carrie	d over to	
S-A-1-d Emer power at critic CIP will replac Comment:	rgency Power for Critical Infrastructure. The City provides emergency al City facilities such as major sewer lift stations and lagoon pumps. A new be ten sewer lift station generators that are at the end of its useful life. This item is an ongoing action that should be carried over to the next 5-year and meintenance of emergency power is perpetual. In EX 2021.22 replace	r plan becaus	e the need fo	X or emergence	FOS-2	
	District's major wastewater lift stations is scheduled.		line generator	s localeu a		
S-A-1-e Moni maintains a S system, the w hours a day b	toring of Water, Sewer and Lagoon Systems . The City provides and upervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) for the water distribution astewater collection system, and the lagoon system that is monitored 24 y Public Works staff or Police Department staff.			Х	FOS-1	
Comment:	Monitoring is an ongoing process that will carry over to the next 5-year plan SCADA measures the following: Wastewater System: effluent flow from LS water levels in the District's 48 lift stations and pump station 59; Water Syst the tank levels in tanks 1-4, the 4 engines in the water booster pump station locations on the lagoon (rainbow bridge, pitcairn by intake, lagoon pump st 660, which is currently in Design will address repairs to the transmitters on 2022. Staff is installing an analyzer on Tank 4 to measure chlorine residual 24-inch transmission main as a part of CIP 636- construction to be completed	since the new 59 pump stat tem: the flow i n; Lagoon Sys ation by outfal two of the wa s in 2021. A fl e by early 202	ed for monito ion to the WV n the 24-inch stem: The lag I) and the lev ter tanks-Cor ow probe will 22.	ring is perp VTP, the pu transmissi oon levels el of the ba struction so be replace	etual. Imps and on main, at 3 y. CIP chedule for d on the	
S-A-1-f Bridg inspections by bridges (Bicer an active CIP	e Inspections. Facilitate 2-year (above water) and 5-year (underwater) the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) of City owned intennial, Foster City Boulevard, Rainbow and Shell Boulevard) and there is to address any deficiencies noted in the inspections.			Х	FOS-3	
Comment:	Bridge Inspections are perpetual and are required every 2-years for above- water elements of the bridges. In FY2022/23 to 2023/2024 a project will ad improvements necessary based on the latest Caltrans inspection reports.	water elemen dresses the de	ts and every esign and co	5-years for nstruction o	under- f	

		Removed;	Carried Plan l	Over to Jpdate
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
S-A-1-g Earthquake Resilient Pipelines. The City utilizes flexible expansion joints to protect the City's pipelines from stresses produced by seismic activity or gradual soil subsidence.			Х	FOS-4
Comment: The District has installed flexible connections on each of the steel waterlin installation of flexible expansion joints at the City's water tanks.	es at bridge cr	ossings. CIP	660 include	es the
S-A-2-a Levee Protection Planning and Improvements. CIP 657 is an active project to raise the City's levees in order to retain FEMA accreditation and protect the City against sea level rise. (High Priority) The project is anticipated to be completed by January 2024.			Х	FOS-5
Comment: Project under construction. Keep as ongoing.				
S-A-2-b Maintain Levees and Lagoon for Flood Protection. The City will maintain the City's levees and lagoon for flood protection pursuant to the "Operation and Maintenance Manual, Foster City Levees and Pump Station" and the "Lagoon Management Plan."			X	FOS-5
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	ould carry over	r to the next p	olan.	
S-A-2-c Lagoon Pump Station Building Seismic Evaluation. New CIP will provide recommendations for seismic improvements for this 60-year-old building to meet current code standards. (High Priority)			Х	FOS-6
Comment: Analysis to be completed in FY 2022/2023 and design and construction in	subsequent y	ears. Keep as	s ongoing.	
S-A-3-a Water Supply and Delivery for Fire-Fighting. The City will maintain a water supply and delivery system that can meet potential firefighting demands through annual exercising of fire hydrants and periodic review of storage needs.			Х	FOS-7
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	ould carry over	r to the next p	olan.	
S-A-3-b Water Supply. The District stores 20 MG of water, which is more than adequate to meet fire and domestic water demands of the City. City will be pursuing alternative water supplies in response to water cutbacks by SFPUC during periods of drought. The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan to be completed by June 30, 2021.			Х	FOS-7
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	ould carry over	r to the next p	olan.	
S-A-3-c Water Delivery System. The City's Public Works Maintenance Division performs regular hydrant flushing, exercises water valves, and replaces failed parts as identified on a regular basis.			Х	FOS-8
Comment: Ongoing.				
S-A-3-d Water Booster Pump Station Seismic Retrofit. CIP 660 incorporates a seismic vulnerability assessment, design, and construction to bring the pump station to meet seismic code. (High Priority)			Х	FOS-8
Comment: PW – Construction is anticipated to begin in Fall 2021 - This item has been so it should carry over to the next plan.	n worked on in	the past 5 ye	ears but it is	ongoing
S-A-3-e Potable Water Tank Seismic Evaluation Retrofit. CIP 660 incorporates a seismic vulnerability assessment, design, and construction to bring the City's water tanks to current seismic code. (High Priority)			Х	FOS-8
Comment: PW – Construction anticipated to begin in Fall 2021 - This item has been wit should carry over to the next plan.	vorked on in th	ie past 5 yea	rs but it is o	ngoing so
S-A-3-f Water Transmission Main Evaluation. Continue to evaluate the single 24-inch water supply transmission main on an ongoing basis. (High Priority)			Х	FOS-8
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it she	ould carry over	to the next p	olan.	

			Removed;	Carried Plan l	Over to Jpdate
Action Item		Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
S-A-3-g Water the water press system pressu	r System Pressure Reducing Station Evaluation. Continue to evaluate sure reducing stations that reduce SFPUC's supply pressure to EMID re. (High Priority)			Х	FOS-8
Comment:	This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-A-4-a Waste project (CIP 65 requirements.	ewater Treatment Plant Improvements. The WWTP Improvements 52) will replace the facility's aging infrastructure and meet regulatory (High Priority)			Х	FOS-9
Comment:	Ongoing – Anticipated commissioning of the WWTP is FY 2023/24.				
S-A-4-b Lift Se wastewater lift redundancy.	tation #59 Improvements. Maintain and improve the City's main station with replacement of components that provide adequate levels of			Х	FOS-10
Comment:	Assessment done next week to commence in 2022 - This item has been we it should carry over to the next plan.	orked on in the	e past 5 year	s but it is o	ngoing so
S-A-4-c Evalu between Lift S basis and are r	ation/Replacement of Air Release Valves on Wastewater Line Station #59 and WWTP. The air release valves are evaluated on a yearly replaced in-house and on an as-needed basis. (High Priority)			Х	FOS-10
Comment:	Ongoing perpetually.				I
S-A-4-d Waste incorporates th by performing durability, and	ewater Lift Stations Rehabilitation. The City's Wastewater Master Plan ne rehabilitation of the City's 49 sewer lift stations via a phased approach preventative maintenance and upgrades to improve the reliability, sustainability of the lift stations. (High Priority)			Х	FOS-10
Comment:	This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-B-1-a Emergethrough use of of the City's Er	gency Response. The City will prepare to respond to emergencies established procedures, programs of ongoing training, periodic exercises mergency Operations Plan, and mutual aid agreements.			Х	FOS-11
Comment:	This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carrv over	to the next p	lan.	
S-B-1-b Emerg	gency Plan. The City will maintain the City's Emergency Operations Plan	,		Х	FOS-11
Comment:	This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan. CDD v	vill verify
S D 1 o Mutur	Aid Derticing to in general mutual aid agreement and agreements with			v	EOS 11
adjoining juriso disasters.	dictions for cooperative response to fires, floods, earthquakes, and other			^	FU3-11
Comment:	Completed but ongoing – ratified agreements – check with city clerk. This it it songoing so it should carry over to the next plan.	tem has been	worked on in	the past 5	years but
S-B-1-d Police equipment to s	e Services. The City will provide adequate personnel, training, and support the provision of police services.			Х	FOS-12
Comment:	This item needs addition language but is in accordance with other items inc plan.	clude here so	it should carr	y over to th	e next
S-B-2-a Emerg	gency Operations Center. Maintain the local government's emergency ter in a full functional state of readiness.			Х	FOS-13
Comment:	This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-B-2-b Back- designate a ba systems.	up Emergency Operations Center. As an infrastructure operator, ack-up Emergency Operations Center with redundant communications			Х	FOS-13
Comment:	This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	

		Removed;	Carried Plan L	Over to Ipdate
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
 S-B-2-c Emergency Power for Critical Buildings. Pre-position emergency power generation capacity (or have generation rental/lease agreement for these generators) in critical buildings to maintain continuity of government and services. Comment: PW to verify some generators available. his item has been worked on in the 	e past 5 years	but it is ongo	X bing so it sh	FOS-2 ould carry
S-B-2-d Critical Traffic Signalized Intersections. All City signalized intersections either have an emergency generator or battery-back up power in case of loss of permanent power. Maintenance and replacement of battery back-ups and generators is allocated.			Х	FOS-2
Comment: Ongoing perpetually since need for maintenance of battery back-ups and e S-B-2-e Post-Disaster Repair of Water and Wastewater Systems. Public Works Maintenance Division maintains an inventory of spare parts for emergency use (e.g., valves, pumps, pipelines of critical size) at the City's Corporation Yard. Comment: PW - Ongoing perpetually.	mergency ger	nerators.	Х	FOS-14
S-C-1-a Incorporate Sea Level Rise Consideration into Planning Process. Incorporate consideration of sea level rise into the development review and infrastructure planning processes, including response strategies that increase resilience to mid-century sea level rise risks for both new and existing development.			Х	FOS-15
Comment: The levee project will increase the height and width of the levee to improve level rise projections through 2050, and make the levee more resistant to e implemented with either a concrete flood wall, earthen levee, or hybrid shee 2020 and is anticipated to be complete in January 2024.	protection ag arthquakes. T et pile wall. Co	ainst storm/tion The improvem Construction st	de surges, ients will be arted in Se	meet sea ptember
S-C-2-a Use of Uniform Codes. The City will adopt and enforce the most current uniform codes with additional local requirements as necessary tailored to Foster City. Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	X lan.	FOS-22
S-C-2-b Site Specific Geotechnical Analyses. The City will require site specific geotechnical and engineering reports for new structures.	uld carry over	to the next n	X	FOS-16
S-C-3-a Flood Plain Regulations. The City will evaluate any proposed development within special flood hazard areas for conformance with the City's flood plain regulations as contained in Chapter 15.36 of the Foster City Municipal Code.	uld carry over	to the next p	X	FOS-17
S-C-3-b FEMA's National Flood Insurance Program. Participate in FEMA's National Flood Insurance Program for affected properties.		to the next p	X	FOS-18
S-C-3-c Protect Flood Protection Qualities of Natural Areas. The City will protect and preserve natural features such as wetlands that serve as natural mitigation against the impacts of flooding.		to the next p	X	FOS-19
S-C-4-a Development Review for Fire Safety. The City will review proposals for new and modified buildings to ensure that fire safety provisions are included as required by the most current uniform codes and local regulations.		to the next p	X	FOS-20

		Removed;	Carried Plan L	Over to Jpdate
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
S-C-4-b Annual Inspections for Fire Safety and Hazardous Materials. The City will conduct annual inspections of businesses and multi-family dwellings in order to ensure compliance with fire safety and hazardous materials requirements. The City will continue to provide inspections of residential care facilities at the request of the Department of Social Services.			X	FOS-20
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-C-4-c Fire Sprinklers. Require fire sprinklers in all new or substantially remodeled housing, regardless of distance from a fire station. Comment: Ongoing – R. Marshall			Х	FOS-20
S-C-5-a Hazardous Materials. The City will continue to enforce applicable codes related to hazardous materials.			Х	FOS-20
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-C-6-a Post-Disaster Services. Consider and adopt regulations to guide City operations following a disaster, such as suspension of some types of government services.			Х	FOS-11
Comment: Some preliminary work has been done but due to prioritization, should carr worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it should carry over to the	y over to next e next plan.	year cycle Th	nis item has	s been
S-D-1-a CERT Classes. Continue to provide emergency preparedness classes and Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) training.			Х	FOS-21
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-D-1-b Emergency Preparedness Education and Outreach. Continue to utilize available means to educate the public, including schools, businesses, and community groups, about emergency preparedness, including but not limited to the City's website, media, classes, and special events. (High Priority)			Х	FOS-21
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-D-2-a Geotechnical Reports Library. The City will maintain a geotechnical report library.			Х	FOS-16
Comment: Currently in Docuphase.				
S-D-2-b Seismic Safety Education. The City will include seismic safety education in the Fire Department's public education programs, such as Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) training and earthquake preparedness training.			Х	FOS-21
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-D-2-c Non-Structural Hazards Assessment. The City will include an assessment of non-structural seismic hazards as part of annual inspections of businesses as part of a public education program.			Х	
Comment: I his function is not supported by the fire code, this item should be removed	1.			
S-D-2-d Private Utility Lines at Bridges. City performs general public outreach to homeowner associations to educate them about the need for earthquake- resistant flexible connections when pipes enter and exit the bridges.			Х	FOS-21
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-D-3-a Fire Education/Prevention. The City will provide a fire education/prevention program to the public, including schools, businesses and community groups through publications, training classes and other means.			Х	FOS-20
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	

		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
S-D-4-a Crime Prevention/Education. The City will provide a variety of crime prevention programs to educate and involve the community, including but not limited to Neighborhood Watch, Apartment Watch, Business Watch, newsletter, security surveys, and programs with community groups and organizations.	Х			
S-D-4-b Development Review for Crime Prevention. The City will review proposals	e. X			
for new and modified buildings for compliance with crime prevention requirements.	~			
Comment: Police representatives say this ongoing item is completed enough to remov	<i>'</i> e.			
S-E-1-a Community Events. The City will actively promote community events in order to bring together individuals and groups within the community for a common purpose.			Х	FOS-21
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-E-1-b Cross-Cultural Events. The City will actively promote cross-cultural events in order to celebrate the diversity of the community as well as to bring together individuals and groups so that they become more inter-connected.			Х	FOS-21
Comment: This item has been worked on in the past 5 years but it is ongoing so it sho	uld carry over	to the next p	lan.	
S-E-1-a Police Services. The City will provide adequate personnel, training, and equipment to support the provision of police services.	Х			
Comment: Police confirmed that this is completed and can be removed from future pla	ins.			
S-E-2-a Crime Prevention. The City will promote community-based crime prevention through Neighborhood Watch, Apartment Watch, Business Watch, newsletter, security surveys, and programs with community groups and organizations.	Х			
Comment: Ongoing item but Police representatives say it is completed enough to reme	ove from the p	olan.		

9.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 9-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 9-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 9-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 9-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix								
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		

Action FOS 1 - Protect and Assess City's Infrastructure and Facilities – Protect infrastructure and facilities from damage due to seismic and geologic hazards through proper design and retrofitting older facilities to current standards. Also, identify strategies that can improve the facility's resilience, including determining the feasibility of replacement where appropriate. This includes identified projects such as:

- S-A-1-a Protect City's Infrastructure and Facilities
- S-A-1-b Police Station Assessment
- S-A-1-c Recreation Center Assessment
- S-A-1-e Monitoring of Water, Sewer and Lagoon Systems

Hazards Mitigated: Climate Change, Earthquake, Severe Weather/Extreme Weather, Flood, Tsunami, Sea Level Rise

New & Existing	1, 6, 7, 8, 9	Foster City	Medium	Staff Time,	Long-Term
				General Fund,	
				Grant Funding	

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action FOS 2 - En	nergency Power for Crit	ical Infrastructure &	Facilities – Ensure a	adequate emergenc	y power at critical C	City facilities
including major sev	wer lift stations and lago	on pumps for conti	nuity of government a	and services.		
 S-A-1-d – Emer S-B-2 a Emer 	gency Power for Critica	I Infrastructure				
 S-B-2-C – Effet S-B-2-d Critical 	Traffic Signalized Inters	sections				
Hazards Mitigated	Climate Change Far	thquake Severe W	eather/Extreme Wea	ther Flood Drough	nt Tsunami Sealle	vel Rise
New & Existing	1, 5, 6, 7, 8	Foster City		High	Staff Time, Grant Funding	Short-Term
Action FOS 3 - B	ridge Inspections - Facil	itate 2-year (above	water) and 5-year (u	nderwater) inspection	ons by the Californi	a Department of
Transportation (Ca	Itrans) of City owned br	idges (Bicentennial	, Foster City Bouleva	rd, Rainbow and Sh	nell Boulevard) and	there is an
active CIP to addre	ess any deficiencies not	ed in the inspection	s (S-A-1-f).			
Hazards Mitigated.	Earthquake, Flood, I	sunami, Sea Level	Rise	I .		
New & Existing	1, 6, 7,8	Foster City		Low	Staff Time, General Fund	Ongoing
Action FOS 4 - Ea	urthquake Resilient Pipe	lines - Utilize flexibl	e expansion joints to	protect the City's p	ipelines from stress	ses produced by
seismic activity or	gradual soil subsidence	(S-A-1-g).		r		
Hazards Mitigated.	Earthquake					
New & Existing	1, 6, 7, 8	Foster City		Low	Staff Time,	Ongoing
Action EOS 5	vee Dretection Diagning	and Improvements	CID 657 is an activ	la project to raise th	General Fund	order to rotain
FEMA accreditatio	n and protect the City a	gand improvements gainst sea level rise	The project is antici	inated to be comple	ted by January 202	V4 Maintenance
and communication	n for the project will be i	needed. This include	es identified projects	such as:		
• S-A-2-a - Levee	Protection Planning ar	d Improvements				
S-A-2-b Maintai	n Levees and Lagoon f	or Flood Protection				
<u>Hazards Mitigated.</u>	Climate Change, Ear	thquake, Severe W	eather/Extreme Wea	ther, Flood, Tsunan	ni, Sea Level Rise	
New & Existing	1, 6, 7, 8	Foster City	San Mateo County	Low	Staff Time,	Ongoing
			Flood and Sea		General Fund,	
			Resiliency District		Grant Funding	
			(FSLRRD)			
Action FOS 6 - La	goon Pump Station Bui	lding Seismic Evalu	ation - New CIP will p	provide recommend	lations for seismic i	mprovements for
this 60-year-old bu	ilding to meet current c	ode standards (S-A-	-2-c).			
Hazards Mitigated.	Climate Change, Ear	thquake, Severe W	eather/Extreme Wea	ther, Flood, Tsunan	ni, Sea Level Rise	
New & Existing	1, 6, 7, 8	Foster City		Medium	Staff Time,	Short-Term
					General Fund, Grant Funding	
Action EOS 7 - Th	e Estero Municipal Imp	rovement District (F	MID) stores 20 MG c	of water, which is m	ore than adequate	to meet fire and
domestic water de	mands of the City. City	will be pursuing alte	rnative water supplie	s in response to wa	ater cutbacks by SF	PUC during
periods of drought.	The 2020 Urban Wate	r Management Plan	to be completed by	June 30, 2021. This	includes identified	projects such
as:		-				
S-A-3-a Water S	Supply and Delivery for	Firefighting				
• S-A-3-b - Water	Supply					
Hazards Mitigated.	Climate Change, Ear	thquake, Severe W	eather/Extreme Wea	ther, Flood, Drough	it, Sea Level Rise	.
New & Existing	1, 6, 7, 8	Foster City	EMID	Medium	Statt Time,	Long-Term
					Grant Funding	
	I		I	1	Statt i driang	

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a			
Action FOS 8 - Err stations are assess • S-A-3-c Water E • S-A-3-d Water E • S-A-3-e Potable • S-A-3-f Water T • S-A-3-g Water S Hazards Mitigated: New & Existing	sure that potable water sed, designed, and cons Delivery System Booster Pump Station S Water Tank Seismic E ransmission Main Evalu System Pressure Reduct Earthquake, Drought 1, 5, 6, 7, 8	r supply system inc structed to meet cur eismic Retrofit valuation Retrofit uation sing Station Evaluat Foster City	luding but not limited rent seismic codes (r ion City of San Mateo	to; water tanks, tra ef CIP 660). This in	ansmission mains a acludes identified pr Staff Time,	nd booster pump ojects such as: Short-Term			
					General Fund, Grant Funding				
Action FOS 9 - Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements - The WWTP Improvements project (CIP 652) will replace the facility's aging infrastructure and meet regulatory requirements (S-A-4-a).									
New & Existing	1, 5, 6, 7, 8	Foster City		Low	Staff Time, General Fund	Short-Term			
Action FOS 10 - Maintain and improve the City's main wastewater system to ensure improved reliability, durability, redundancy and sustainability through preventative maintenance and upgrades. This includes identified projects such as: • S-A-4-b Lift Station #59 Improvements • S-A-4-c Evaluation/Replacement of Air Release Valves on Wastewater Line between Lift Station #59 and WWTP • S-A-4-d Wastewater Lift Stations Rehabilitation Hazards Mitigated: New & Existing 1, 5, 6, 7, 8 Foster City Medium Staff Time, General Fund,									
Action FOS 11 - M responding to eme response to fires, fi regular exercising o • S-B-1-a Emerge	Action FOS 11 - Maintain and update the City's Emergency Operations Plan including outlining of responsibilities and procedures for responding to emergencies through participation in general mutual-aid and other agreements with adjoining jurisdictions for cooperative response to fires, floods, earthquakes, and other disasters. Also, use established procedures and programs of ongoing training, and regular exercising of the City's Emergency Operations Plan, and mutual aid agreements. This includes identified projects such as: • S-B-1-a Emergency Response								

- S-B-1-b Emergency Plan
- S-B-1-c Mutual Aid
- S-C-6-a Post-Disaster Services.

Hazards Mitigated: Climate Change, Dam Failure, Earthquake, Severe Weather/Extreme Weather, Flood, Drought, Tsunami, Sea Level Rise

New & Existing	1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10	Foster City	SMCFire	Medium	Staff Time, General Fund	Short-Term			
Action FOS 12 - Police Services - The City will provide adequate personnel, training, and equipment to support the provision of police									

services for continuity of operations (S-B-1-d).

<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Earthquake, Severe Weather/Extreme Weather

New & Existing	1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9,11	Foster City	Low Staff Time,		Ongoing
				General Fund	

Benefits New or	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of	Timelinea	
Action EOS 13 M	aintain the City's Emer	Lead Agency	onter in a full function	Listimated Cost	s and designate a	hack up	
Emergency Operat	tions Center with redun	dant communication	is systems. This inclu	ides identified proie	cts such as:	back-up	
S-B-2-a Emergency Operations Center							
S-B-2-b Back-up Emergency Operations Center							
 Develop and im 	plement MAC policy an	d procedures with o	ther SMCFire JPA cit	ties			
Hazards Mitigated: Climate Change, Dam Failure, Earthquake, Severe Weather/Extreme Weather, Flood, Drought, Tsunami, Sea Level Rise							
New & Existing	1, 5, 6, 7, 8,10	Foster City	SMCFire	Medium	Staff Time,	Ongoing	
Ū					General Fund,	0 0	
					Grant Funding		
Action FOS 14 - N	Maintain Inventory of Cr	itical Parts for Wate	r and Wastewater Sy	stems – The City to	prepare for emerg	jencies will	
maintain an invente	ory of critical spare part	s (e.g., valves, pum	ps, pipelines of critica	al size) at the City's	facility/facilities (S-	В-2-е).	
Hazards Mitigated.	Climate Change, Ear	thquake, Severe W	eather/Extreme Wear	ther, Flood, Drough	t, Tsunami, Sea Le	vel Rise	
New & Existing	1, 5, 6, 7, 8	Foster City	City of San Mateo	Medium	Staff Time,	Ongoing	
					General Fund,		
A // 500 / 5		0			Grant Funding		
Action FOS 15- In	corporate Sea Level Ri	se Consideration inf	o Planning Process-	Incorporate conside	eration of sea level	rise into the	
rise risks for both r	w and initiastructure pla	nment (S-C-1-a)	cluding response sur	alegies that increase		certury sea lever	
Hazards Mitigated	Climate Change Flo	nd Seal evel Rise					
New & Existing	1 3 5 6 7 8 11	Foster City		Medium	Staff Time	Short-Term	
New & Existing	1, 0, 0, 0, 7, 0, 11	1 Uster Oity		Mediain	General Fund	Short-renn	
Action FOS 16- T	he City will require site s	specific geotechnica	I and engineering rep	ports for new structu	ires and maintain a	ageotechnical	
report library. This	includes identified proje	ects such as:				geeteenneen	
• S-C-2-b Site Sp	ecific Geotechnical Ana	llyses					
• S-D-2-a Geoteo	hnical Reports Library						
Hazards Mitigated.	Earthquake						
New & Existing	1, 5, 6	Foster City		Medium	Staff Time,	Short-Term	
					General Fund		
Action FOS 17 - F	lood Plain Regulations.	The City will evaluate	ate any proposed dev	elopment within spe	ecial flood hazard a	areas for	
conformance with	the City's flood plain rec	julations as contain	ed in Chapter 15.36 c	of the Foster City M	unicipal Code (S-C	-3-a)	
Hazards Mitigated.	Climate Change, Sev	vere Weather/Extrer	ne Weather, Flood, S	Sea Level Rise			
New & Existing	1, 5, 6, 7, 8,9	Foster City	FSLRRD	Medium	Staff Time,	Ongoing	
					General Fund,		
Action FOC 40	l	a standing and as	anlian as under the NI	CID through implant	Grant Funding		
programs that at a	minimum meet the NF	IP requirements (S	-C-3-b).	FIP inrough implem	entation of hoodpla	an management	
 Enforce the floor 	d damage prevention o	rdinance	000).				
 Participate in flo 	odplain identification ar	nd mapping updates	6.				
Provide public a	issistance/information o	n floodplain require	ments and impacts.				
Hazards Mitigated.	Climate Change, Ear	thquake, Severe W	eather/Extreme Weat	ther, Flood, Tsunan	ni, Sea Level Rise		
New & Existing	1, 6, 7,8	Foster City	FSLRRD	Low	Staff Time,	Ongoing	
Ŭ		,			General Fund,		
					Grant Funding		

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		
Action FOS 19 - Protect Flood Protection Qualities of Natural Areas. The City will protect and preserve natural features such as wetlands that serve as natural mitigation against the impacts of flooding (S-C-3-c).								
Hazards Mitigated:	Hazards Mitigated: Climate Change, Flood, Drought, Tsunami, Sea Level Rise							
New & Existing	1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 14	Foster City		Medium	Staff Time, General Fund, Grant Funding	Ongoing		
Action FOS 20–Through the City's Joint Powers Authority Fire/Rescue provider, the San Mateo Consolidated Fire Department, adopt the most current uniform codes and local regulations, conduct annual inspections of businesses and multi-family dwellings to ensure compliance with fire/life safety and hazardous materials requirements, with inspections of residential care facilities done as requested by of the Department of Social Services. This includes identified projects such as:								

- S-C-4-b Annual Inspections for Fire Safety and Hazardous Materials
- S-C-4-c Fire Sprinklers
- S-C-5-a Hazardous Materials
- S-D-3-a Fire Education/Prevention
- Hazards Mitigated: Earthquake

New & Existing	1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9	Foster City	SMCFire	Low	Staff Time, JPA Budget	Ongoing

Action FOS 21 - Utilize available means to educate the public, including schools, businesses, and community groups, about emergency preparedness, including but not limited to the City's website, media, classes, and special events. This includes identified projects such as:

- S-D-1-a CERT Classes
- S-D-1-b Emergency Preparedness Education and Outreach
- S-D-2-b Seismic Safety Education
- S-E-1-a Community Events.
- S-E-1-b Cross-Cultural Events
- S-D-2-d Private Utility Lines at Bridges. (Outreach to homeowner associations to educate them about the need for earthquakeresistant flexible connections when pipes enter and exit the bridges.)

Hazards Mitigated:	d: Climate Change, Earthquake, Severe Weather/Extreme Weather, Flood, Drought, Tsunami, Sea Level Rise									
New & Existing	1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9,11	Foster City	SMCFire	High	Staff Time, General Fund, JPA Budget	Ongoing				
Action FOS 22- Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, ordinances and programs that dictate land use decisions in the community, including Foster City's General Plan.										
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Hazards Mitigated: Climate Change, Dam Failure, Earthquake, Severe Weather/Extreme Weather, Flood, Drought, Tsunami, Sea Level Rise										
New & Existing	1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11	Foster City	SMCFire	High	Staff Time, General Fund	Ongoing				
Action FOS 23 - A	ctively participate in the	e plan maintenance	protocols outlined in	Volume 1 of this ha	zard mitigation pla	n.				
Hazards Mitigated: Climate Change, Dam Failure, Earthquake, Severe Weather/Extreme Weather, Flood, Drought, Tsunami, Sea Level Rise										
New & Existing	1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11	Foster City	SMCFire	Low	Staff Time, General Fund	Ongoing				

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a			
 Action FOS 24 - Identify and pursue strategies to increase adaptive capacity to climate change including but not limited to the following: Conduct Climate Action Plan (CAP) Assessment to reevaluate previous 2015 Climate Action Plan (CAP) to build off of and initiate update of CAP to reflect new State legislation, changing priorities, and environmental sustainability and greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction policies and goals Adopt modifications to existing plans and procedures to meet climate change issues and impacts. <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Climate Change, Sea Level Rise 									
New & Existing	1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9,14	Foster City		Low	Staff Time, General Fund	Short-Term			
Action FOS 25 – E	Evacuation Planning - A	dopt current best pr	actices for evacuatio	n procedures and p	oublic education.				
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake								
New	1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 11	Foster City	SMCFire	Medium	Staff Time, General Fund	Short- Term/Ongoing			
Action FOS 26 - Community Engagement Platform – The City has identified a need for community engagement on various items of public interest to solicit feedback, including but not limited to projects for infrastructure to mitigate hazards. The platform would also help communicate and update stakeholders in these projects and development. Hazards Mitigated: Climate Change, Earthquake, Severe Weather/Extreme Weather, Flood, Drought, Tsunami									
New	1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9,11	Foster City		High	Staff Time, General Fund, Grant Funding	Short-Term			

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 9-15. Mitigation Action Priority									
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Eligible for Outside Funding?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Outside Funding Source Pursuit Priority ^a	Social Equity Priority
1	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	High
2	5	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	Low
3	4	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low	High
4	4	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low	High
5	4	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	High
6	4	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	Medium	High
7	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	Medium	High
8	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	Medium	High
9	5	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
10	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	Medium	High
11	9	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	High
12	8	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
13	6	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	Medium	Low
14	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	Medium	High
15	7	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low	High
16	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High

Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Eligible for Outside Funding?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Outside Funding Source Pursuit Priority ^a	Social Equity Priority
17	6	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	High
18	4	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	High
19	7	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	High
20	7	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low	High
21	8	Medium	High	No	No	No	Medium	Medium	High
22	9	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low	Low
23	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low	Low
24	8	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low	High
25	7	High	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
26	8	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	High

See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities. a.

		Table 9-16.	Analysis of	Mitigation	Actions			
		Actio	on Addressing	g Hazard, by	Mitigation T	ype ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building
High-Risk Hazard	s							
Sea Level Rise / Climate Change	2, 7, 11, 15, 17, 18, 19, 22, 23	1, 2, 5, 6, ,13 , 14, 18, 19	26	5, 14, 17, 18, 19, 24	1, 2, ,7, 11, 13	2, 5, 6	1, 5, 15, 24	16, 21, 26
High-Risk Hazard	S							
Dam Failure	11, 22, 23	13			11,13			
Earthquake	2, 7, 8, 11, 16, 18, 20, 22, 23	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 13, 14, 18, 20	20, 21, 25, 26	5, 14, 18	1, 2, 7, 8, 11, 12, 13, 25	2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9,10	1, 5	21, 26
Flood	1, 2, 7, 11, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 22, 23	1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 10, 13, 14, 18, 19	21, 26	5, 14, 17, 18, 19	1, 2, ,7, 11, 13	2, 3, 5, 6, 10	1, 5, 15	15, 21, 26
Medium-Risk Haz	ards							
Severe Weather/ Extreme Weather	2 ,7, 11, 17, 18, ,22,23	1, 2, 5, 6, 13, ,14,18	21, 26	5, 14, 17, 18	1, 2, 7, 11, 12, 13	2, 5, 6	1, 5	21,26
Low-Risk Hazards	5							
Drought	7, 8, 11, 19, 22	10, 13, 14, 19	21,25	14,19	7, 8, 11, 13, 25	10		21
Landslide/Mass Movement								
Tsunami	2, ,11, 18, 19, 22, 23	1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 13, 14, 18, 19	21, 26	5, 14, 18, 19	1, 2, 11, 13	2, 3, 5,6	1, 5	21,26
Wildfire								
a See the intro	duction to this volu	ume for explanation	on of mitigati	on types				

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

9.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 9-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction. Figure 9-1 shows example public outreach announcements.

Table 9-17. Local Public Outreach						
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved				
Distribution of Survey #1 Via City Newsletter and Social Media Platforms	May 6, 2021	94				
Distribution of CERT Survey Via Neon	June 11, 2021	62				





9.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- Foster City Municipal Code—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration. Flood damage prevention ordinance is included in Muni Code.
- Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.

- **City Budget** The budget was reviewed for funding of action items and assisted with prioritization setting.
- City Mutual Aid Agreements Foster City Mutual Aid Agreements were used to assess capacity.
- City's Emergency Operations Plan The City's EOP was used when doing the assessment of action items.
- Previous City's LHMP The prior LHMP was reviewed when creating this document.
- City's General Plan The City's General Plan was reviewed during this process for prioritization and mitigation action item building.
- **City's Climate Action Plan** The City's CAP was used in the mitigation action building phase as well as to assess the City's climate action assessment (see Table 9-10).

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.
- Various San Mateo County Plans and Resources Resources provided from the County, including previous plans, data sources, etc. were used in analyzing and preparing this document.
- California DWR Dam Inundation Map This resource was used to demonstrate to planning partners how dam inundation for the respective City appears.

9.11 FUTURE NEEDS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND RISK/VULNERABILITY

An analysis of risks including but not limited to flood and dam inundation need to be adjusted for local infrastructure (pumping abilities) for a more accurate risk assessment.

Foster City based on local knowledge does not have a previous history of flooding from prior storm events. There are systems with multiple redundancies in place for this risk.































10. CITY OF HALF MOON BAY

10.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Corie Stocker, Management Analyst 501 Main Street Half Moon Bay, CA 94404 650-750-2002 cstocker@hmbcity.com

Alternate Point of Contact

Veronika Vostinak, Sustainability Analyst 501 Main Street Half Moon Bay, CA 94404 650-750-2019 vvostinak@hmbcity.com

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 10-1.

Table 10-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members						
Name	Title					
Corie Stocker	Management Analyst					
Veronika Vostinak	Sustainability Analyst					
Matthew Chidester	Deputy City Manager					
Brittney Cozzolino	Associate Planner					
Jill Ekas	Community Development Director					
John Doughty	Public Works Director					
Lisa Lopez	Administrative Services Director					

10.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

10.2.1 Location and Features

The City of Half Moon Bay is a small city in San Mateo County, California. The City is 6.2 square miles in area and is approximately 6.5 miles long and a little less than a mile wide. It is located on the Pacific Coast 23 miles south of San Francisco. The developed portion of the City is located on relative flat land between coastal bluff tops to the west and foothills of the Santa Cruz Mountains to the east. State Route 1 provides the only contiguous access from north to south; State Route 92 provides access to the east side of the San Francisco Peninsula.

Half Moon Bay's weather is typical of the Northern California coast, with mild summers and cool, wet winters. It rarely freezes in the winter and it is rarely hot in the summer. Annual average rainfall is over 26 inches, with 80% between November to March. The average year-round temperature is 59°F. Humidity averages 57 to 100 percent. Winds speeds vary from 0 to 19 mph (calm breeze) and rarely exceed 23 mph (fresh breeze).

10.2.2 History

The Planning Area is in a region historically occupied by the tribelets of the Costanoan linguistic group. Descendants of Costanoan speakers prefer to be called by the name of the tribelet from which they are descended. When their heritage is mixed or the specifics have been lost over generations, they prefer the use of a native term, Ohlone, rather than the European-imposed term Costanoan ("coastal dwellers"). The rich resources of the ocean, bays, valleys, and mountains in the region provided Ohlone-speaking peoples with food and all their material needs. The primary food staple was the acorn, supplemented by a great variety of animal and plant resources.

The Ohlones were composed of 50 or more tribes in the southern San Francisco Bay Region, ten of which were situated along the peninsula. The Portola Expedition, set out to claim land for Spanish territory, encountered several Ohlone villages after their arrival in the late 1760's, including the Chinguan village in today's Half Moon Bay. Spanish explorer records indicate that the Spanish received meals, directions, and guidance from the Ohlones leading up to the 1769 ascent up Sweeney Ridge. This marked the point of Spanish discovery and settlement of the San Francisco Bay. When Mexico won its independence from the Spanish crown in 1821, California fell under rule of Mexican territorial governors who granted much of the former Spanish mission lands to Mexican subjects. These land grants effectively displaced the Ohlones, ignoring any of their remaining territorial rights.

The early community became known as "Spanishtown" because of the number of Spanish-speaking inhabitants. In 1874, Spanishtown officially became known as Half Moon Bay, named for the beautiful crescent-shaped harbor that lies just north of town. The City of Half Moon Bay was incorporated in 1959. The City of Half Moon Bay still has many reminders of its early beginnings in the mid-1800s as an agricultural town.

10.2.3 Governing Body Format

The City of Half Moon Bay is a General Law City with a council-manager form of governance. A five-member City Council establishes policy and provides direction for all City operations; while the City Manager serves as the chief executive officer for implementation and the day-to-day provision of services. The City Planning Commission has final authority under the Municipal Code and otherwise is advisory to City Council. The Parks and Recreation Commissions advisory to the City Council. From time to time, the City Council establishes task forces and advisory committees that focus on plans and projects. The City consists of five departments: The City Manager's Office, the Communication/City Clerk's Office, Administrative Services, Public Works, and Community Development. The City contracts with the San Mateo County Sheriff's Office for police services. The City is served by the Coastside Fire Protection District, the Coastside County Water District, and participates in the Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Joint Powers Authority. Services such as library, senior services and animal control are supported by the City; however, day-to-day operations are the responsibility of the respective agencies and non-profits.

The City Council is responsible for the adoption of the Half Moon Bay Annex of the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (Plan), and the City Manager will oversee its implementation.

10.3 CURRENT TRENDS

10.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance the population of Half Moon Bay as of January 2020 was 12,431. Since 2016, the population has decreased at an average annual rate of 0.2 percent.

10.3.2 Development

Half Moon Bay's development pattern is largely characterized by a defined town center, alternating residential and agricultural land uses outside of the town center, and public open space and recreation lands along the shoreline. Development is primarily comprised of infill residential, small-scale commercial, and town center mixed-use projects. Residential development is paced by a voter-adopted growth control measure that provides for an annual residential growth rate of 1-1.5%, while commercial projects typically involve changing uses within existing buildings or new small-scale projects in town center infill sites. In recent years, City Council priorities have led to incentivizing development in the town center and established neighborhoods where public infrastructure and services exist. Since 2016, the City has averaged approximately fifteen (15) building permits issued per year for new construction, the majority of which are for new single-family residences.

Table 10-2 summarizes development trends in the performance period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 10-2. Rece	Table 10-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends							
Criterion	Re	esponse						
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?		No						
If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures.		N/A						
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?		No						
If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses. If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas?		N/A N/A						
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known bazard risk areas	Yes Yes. The recently adopted Local Coastal Plan includes several Planned Development							
	partially subject to potential dam inundation. There is a development application under review for the Surf Beach/Dunes Beach PD, which is partially in the tsunami inundation zone. The City is in the process of redeveloping its Corporation Yard at 880 Stone Pine Road which is located in potential dam inundation and flood zone							
How many permits for new construction were		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020		
issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	10	24	11	5	15		
preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?	Multi-Family	0	0	0	1	0		
Pierre	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	6	3	0	1	0		
	Total	16	27	11	7	15		

Criterion	Response
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: 8 Landslide: 0 High Liquefaction Areas: 0 Tsunami Inundation Area: 4 Wildfire Risk Areas: 0
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	Approximately 2,600 acres out of Half Moon Bay's total of 3,990 acres (or about 65% of the city) are occupied by open space, park land, golf course, open field agriculture, and public right-of-way (streets, easements). Of the remaining potentially buildable lands with residential, non-residential, and mixed-use zoning, there are approximately 375 vacant/undeveloped acres (or about 9% of the city).

10.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 10-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 10-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 10-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 10-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 10-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 10-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 10-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 10-10.

Table 10-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability						
	ĺ	Other Jurisdiction		Integration		
	Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?		
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements						
Building Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Muni Code 14.04.020 , 2019						
Zoning Code	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Muni Code 18, 1996						
Subdivisions	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Muni Code 17, 1994						
Stormwater Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Muni Code 13.15, 1994						
LUP Chapter 6, 2020						
Post-Disaster Recovery	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Emergency Operations Plan, 2017; M	luni Code 2.25, 2007	7				
Real Estate Disclosure	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
	100			100		
Comment: CA. State Civil Code 1102 requires fu	II disclosure on Natu	iral hazard Exposure of the	e sale/re-sale of any ar	nd all real property.		
LUP Chapter 7, 2020						
Growth Management	Yes	No	No	No		
Comment: Muni Code 14.38, 1989 Muni Code 17.06, 2009						
Site Plan Poview	Voc	No	No	Voc		
Commont: Muni Codo 18 1006	165	INO	INO	165		
Environmental Protection	Voc	Voc	Voc	Voc		
Commont: CEOA	165	165	165	165		
Muni Code 18.38 1996						
LUP Chapter 6, 2020						
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Muni Code 14.34, 2002						
Emergency Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Emergency Operations Plan. 2017: M	luni Code 2.25. 2007	7				
Climate Change	No	Yes	Yes	No		
Comment:						
Other	N/A	N/A	N/A	No		
Comment:						
Planning Documents						
General Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
	Update Pending	100	100	100		
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140? No						
Comment: Land Use Element update completed	2020. Safety Eleme	nt update pending.				
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
How often is the plan updated? Annually						
Comment: <u>https://www.half-moon-bay.ca.us/Doc</u>	umentCenter/View/1	758/CURRENT-CIP?bidlc	<u>=</u> New CIP will be pub	lished in July 2021		
(Will use same link)	V	V	V	M a s		
Disaster Depris Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes		
Comment: San Mateo County Plan		••				
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Comment: Storm Drain Master Plan (2016)						

2021 Multijurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan; Volume 2-Planning Partner Annexes

		Other Jurisdiction		Integration		
	Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?		
Stormwater Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: Storm Drain Master Plan (2016), Gree	<u>en Infrastructure Plai</u>	<u>n 2019</u>				
Urban Water Management Plan	No	Yes	Yes	No		
Comment: 2020 UWMP pending adoption by Coa	astside County Wate	er District in 2021				
Habitat Conservation Plan	No	No	No	No		
Comment:						
Economic Development Plan	No	No	No	Future		
Comment: In progress						
Shoreline Management Plan	No	No	No	No		
Comment:						
Community Wildfire Protection Plan	No	No	No	No		
Comment:						
Forest Management Plan	No	No	No	No		
Comment:						
Climate Action Plan	Yes	No	No	No		
Comment: Draft Summer 2021, pending adoption	1 winter 2021-22					
Emergency Operations Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: Emergency Operations Plan, 2017						
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Assessment (THIRA)						
Comment: Emergency Operations Plan, 2017						
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	No	No	No	Future		
Comment: In progress	Comment: In progress					
Continuity of Operations Plan	No	No	No	Future		
Comment: In progress						
Public Health Plan	Yes	No	No	No		
Comment: San Mateo County						
San Maleo County						
Other	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A		
Comment:						

Table 10-4. Development and Permitting Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department?	Yes Community Development Department			
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	Yes			
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	Yes			
Table 10-5. Fiscal Capability				
--	---	--	--	
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?			
Community Development Block Grants	Yes, eligible to use through the County			
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes			
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes (subject to voter approval)			
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes (only Sewers)			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes			
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No			
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes			
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes			
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes			
Other	N/A			

Table 10-6. Administrative and Technical Capability					
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?	Department/Agency/Position			
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes	Community Development Director , Public Works Director, City Engineer, Senior Planner, others			
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	Building Inspector, City Engineer			
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes	CDD / Community Development Director Public Works Director, Senior Planner, City Engineer			
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis	Yes	With contractors			
Surveyors	Yes	With contractors			
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications	Yes	With contractors			
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area	Yes	With contractors			
Emergency manager	Yes	Management Analyst & Deputy City Manager			
Grant writers	Yes	All departments / Management Analyst			
Other	Yes	With contractors			

Table 10-7. Education and Outreach Capability			
Criterion	Response		
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes, Communications Department, Director is PIO		
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes		
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes 2010 Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Storm and Tsunami readiness		
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes We utilize email newsletters and various social media for community outreach, communication and for Storm and Tsunami readiness		

Criterion	Response
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes Coastside Emergency Action Program
Do you have any other programs already in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes Coastside Emergency Action Program Emergency Operations Plan
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events?	Yes
If yes, briefly describe.	San Mateo County Alert System / Tsunami Alerts Horns

Table 10-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance			
Criterion	Response		
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works		
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	City Engineer		
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No		
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	2002		
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements? <i>If exceeds, in what ways?</i>	Meet		
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	May 2021		
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed? <i>If so, state what they are.</i>	No		
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction? If so, state what they are.	No		
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	Unknown There is insufficient data on coastal flood plain smaller creeks and streams		
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed?	Yes FEMA Training, Association of State Floodplain Managers Training		
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program?	No N/A No		
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a What is the insurance in force? What is the premium in force?	80 \$27,080,400 \$42,629		
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a What were the total payments for losses?	8 \$56,296		
^{an} According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021			

Table 10-9. Community Classifications							
Participating? Classification Date Classified							
FIPS Code	Yes	0608131708	N/A				
DUNS#	Yes	020005971	N/A				
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A				
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A				
Public Protection (Coastside FPD)	No	ISO Class 3/3X	May 2018				
Storm Ready	Yes	N/A	N/A				
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A				
Tsunami Ready	Yes	N/A	N/A				

Table 10-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Medium
Comment: Climate Action and Adaptation Plan in progress	
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Low
Comment:	
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Medium
Comment: Technical assistance available through County RICAPS program	
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Medium
Comment: Available through County RICAPS program	
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	High
Comment: Addressed in Land Use Plan, will be further addressed in Climate Action and Adaptation Plan	
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	High
Comment: Dedicated staff member actively participates in and seeks out new regional group efforts to addrese applicable to Half Moon Bay	ss climate risks
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	High
Comment: City Council Priority	
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	High
Comment: Identified in Climate Action and Adaptation Plan draft	
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium
Comment: To be identified in Climate Action and Adaptation Plan	
Champions for climate action in local government departments	High
Comment: Dedicated Staff member in Public Works	
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	Medium
Comment: Strong public support demonstrated in past efforts	
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Low
Comment:	
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Low
Comment:	

Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Public Capa	sity	
Local reside	nts' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium
Comment:	Ongoing, active outreach efforts with local resident groups including those who reach vulnerable p English speakers, youth, and seniors	opulations such as non-
Local reside	nts' support of adaptation efforts	High
Comment:	High levels of participation and interest in past outreach and efforts	
Local reside	nts' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium
Comment:	High levels of local participation and interest in in climate impact outreach events	
Local econo	my current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure
Comment:		
Local ecosys	stems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure
Comment:		

High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist but is not used or could use some improvement;
 Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

10.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

10.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- Emergency Operations Plan The City integrates hazard mitigation for storm and tsunami readiness, along with annexes related to other natural disasters (i.e., earthquake, all hazard)
- Local Coastal Land Use Plan The City integrates hazard mitigation relative to environmental hazards including sea level rise and other shoreline hazards, geologic and seismic hazards, fire hazards, and fluvial flooding.
- General Plan The City integrates hazard mitigation for all pertinent hazards in the adopted Safety Element.

10.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment presented in this annex identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

• General Plan — The City is currently planning to integrate hazard mitigation for all pertinent hazards in an update to the adopted Safety Element.

- **Emergency Operations Plan** The City is currently planning to integrate the updated hazard mitigation plan. Other plans in progress include Continuity of Operations, Post Disaster recovery, etc.
- Climate Action and Adaptation Plan The City is planning to integrate climate change adaptation into the Climate Action and Adaptation Plan
- **Public Outreach** The City recognizes that there are currently opportunities available to facilitate public engagement regarding hazard mitigation. The City will continue to provide a robust and targeted program that involves using current capabilities to expand and enhance outreach to local residents.
- **Coastside Recovery Initiative-** The Coastside Recovery Initiative is a partnership between the City of Half Moon Bay, Half Moon Bay Coastside Chamber of Commerce, and San Mateo County. The goals of the Initiative are 1) to address immediate needs of business and the Coastside community to effectively recover from the impacts of COVID-19 and 2) advance strategies that lead to a more equitable, vibrant, and resilient Coastside economy. The City plans to utilize the relationships to identify areas of inequity and weakness in the community, which potentially can mitigate some of the recognized high risk category hazards.
- **Evacuation Plan-** The City is currently collaborating with the San Mateo County Department of Emergency Services on regional evacuation planning and will integrate hazard mitigation information into the final plans.

10.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

10.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 10-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 10-11. Past Natural Hazard Events					
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment		
CZU Lightning Complex fires	FM-5336-CA	August 16, 2020	Over 1,400 buildings damaged, covered 86, 000 acres. County opened a Resource Center at the HMB High School		
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	January 20, 2020	Not Available		
PSPS Power Shut Offs	Not Available	October 25, 2020	Not Available		
PSPS Power Shut Offs	Not Available	October 14, 2020	Not Available		
PSPS Power Shut Offs	Not Available	October 24, 2019	Not Available		
PSPS Power Shut Offs	Not Available	October 9, 2019	Community Resource Center (CRC) opened in HMB. Tom Lantos Tunnel closed temporarily. Local businesses took a loss of over \$1,000,000 in the October 2019 PSPS events combined		
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, and Coastal Erosion	DR-4308	February 1 – 23, 2017	\$411,065.50 in temporary repairs for emergency stabilization of Seymour Ditch.		
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding, and Coastal Erosion	DR-4305	January 18 – 23, 2017	Not Available		
Severe Storm / Flooding	Not Available	December 10, 2014	Not Available		

Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment
Earthquake Tsunami	Not Available	February 27, 2010	Not Available
Severe Storm	Not Available	April 1, 2006	Not Available
Severe Storm / Flooding	DR-1203	February 9, 1998	Not Available
Severe Storm / Flooding	DR-1155	January 4, 1997	Not Available
Severe Storm / Flooding	DR-1046	March 12, 1995	Not Available
Severe Storm / Flooding	DR-1044	January 10, 1995	Not Available
Earthquake	DR-845	October 18, 1989	Not Available
Flood	DR-758	February 21, 1986	Not Available
Flood	Not Available	1984	Not Available
Severe Storm	DR-677	February 9, 1983	Not Available
Flood	DR-651	January 7, 1982	Not Available
Drought	EM-3023	January 20, 1977	Not Available

10.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 10-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 10-12. Hazard Risk Ranking (Social Equity Lens applied)					
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category		
1	Earthquake	66	High*		
2	Wildfire	72	High		
3	Tsunami	27	High*		
4	Severe Weather	24	High*		
5	Dam Failure	46	Medium*		
6	Landslide/Mass Movement	42	Medium*		
7	Flood	51	Low		
8	Drought	9	Low		
9	Sea Level Rise/Climate Change	24	Low		

* Based on local knowledge, the following adjustments were made to the risk categories:

Earthquake was moved further up the list due to proximity to the San Andreas fault and fault lines. Evacuation for such event would be challenging.

Tsunami moves up due to our proximity to the ocean and residential properties in the new inundation maps.

Severe Weather was moved up due to the extreme heat episodes that have occurred and issues with cooling, as well as lightning storms and rainstorms.

Dam Failure's risk category was downgraded to Medium as the spread versus depth of the damage needs to be assessed. Landslide/Mass Movement was moved down and downgraded to Medium due to the lack of property where coastal erosion occurs. There is a low risk to life and property.

10.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan for this annex.

10.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 10-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 10-13. Status of Previous Plan Actions					
		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update		
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
HMB 1 – Rehabilitate the Main Street Bridge over Pilarcitos Creek.			\checkmark	HMB-9	
Comment: Listed as Capital Project in CIP, some grant funding has been secured,	in design, estin	nated construc	tion in 2023	3-2024	
HMB 2 - Continue to maintain good standing and compliance under the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). This will be accomplished through the implementation of flood plain management programs.			✓	HMB-4	
Comment: Ongoing. Community Assistance Visit (CAV) scheduled for this year					
HMB 3 - Create sea level rise vulnerability assessments of City's facilities and infrastructure.			\checkmark	HMB-14	
Comment: Ongoing. <u>HMB Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Assessment (2016) Sea Ch</u> the Ritz Carlton Hotel.	nange SMC (20	<u>18)</u> – includes	most of HM	1B but not	
HMB 4 - Continue to participate in developing and maintaining communications for first responders from cities, counties, special districts, state, and federal agencies. Comment: Ongoing.			~	HMB-13	
HMB 5 - Maintain and participate in the San Mateo County's Standardized Emergency Management System Plan.			✓	HMB-11	
Comment: Ongoing, creating updated City Emergency Operations Plan.					
HMB 6 - Participate in general mutual-aid agreements with adjoining jurisdictions for cooperative responses to fires, floods, earthquakes, and other disasters. Comment: Ongoing.			~	HMB-13	
HMB 7 - Continue to sponsor the training and maintenance of the Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) through partnership with local businesses.		\checkmark			
Comment: Coastside Fire Protection District took over sponsorship of CERT movin	g forward.				
HMB 8 –Maintain regulations to limit development in areas prone to landslide and erosion. Monitor slopes and hillsides during and after major storms.	✓				
Comment: Done in 2020 LUP update policies and will also address in Safety Eleme	ent				
HMB 9 - Continue to repair and make structural improvements to storm drains, pipelines, and/or channels to enable them to preform to their capacity in handling water flows as part of regular maintenance activities.			~	HMB-9	
Comment: Ungoing.					

		Removed;	Carried C Up	over to Plan date
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
HMB 10 – Develop a better understanding of the earthquake hazard through data collection. Comment: Ongoing.			~	
Action G-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase, or relocation of structures in hazard-prone areas to prevent future structure damage. Give priority to properties with exposure to repetitive losses.			\checkmark	HMB 1
Comment: 2020 LUP has some policies that address this, and this may not be rele	vant to all haza	rd areas.	-	
Action G-2—Consider participation in incentive-based programs such as the Community Rating System, Tree City, and StormReady.	\checkmark			
Comment: Currently participate in StormReady; may explore participation with other	er programs in t	he future.		
Action G-3—Where feasible, implement a program to record high water marks following high-water events.			✓	HMB-14
Comment:				
Action G-4—Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, programs, or resources that dictate land use or redevelopment.	~			
Comment: Will reference in Climate Action and Adaptation Plan. Referenced in 202 update.	20 LUP update	and will refere	nce in Safe	ty Element
Action G-5—Consider the development and implementation of a Capital Improvements Program (CIP) to increase regulatory, financial, and technical capability to implement mitigation actions.	~			
Comment: 2021 – 2026 5-year CIP adopted June 15, 2021 <u>https://www.half-moon</u> bay.ca.us/DocumentCenter/View/1758/CURRENT-CIP?bidId=	<u>-</u>			
Action G-6—Provide incentives for eligible non-profits and private entities, including homeowners, to adapt to risks through structural and nonstructural retrofitting.		\checkmark		
Comment: We have given some grant funds for rehabilitation. We don't have a lot development in high hazard risk areas.	of incentive/nee	ed for this since	e we don't h	ave a lot of
Action G-7— Support the County-wide initiatives identified in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.			\checkmark	HMB-3
Comment: Ongoing.				
Action G-8— Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.			\checkmark	HMB-3
Comment: Ongoing.				

10.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 10-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 10-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 10-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 10-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix										
Benefits New or		Lead		Estimated						
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline				
Action HMB-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.										
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Dam Failure, Ear	thquake, Flo	oding, Landslide/Mass Moveme	ents, Severe	Neather, Tsunami, Wildfi	re				
Existing	6, 8, 9, 10, 13	Half Moon Bay		High	Grant Funding	Short-term				
Action HMB-2— Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, ordinances and programs that dictate land use decisions in the community, including the Local Coastal Program, Climate Action and Adaptation Plan and Emergency Operations Plan.										
	Tsunami, Wildfire)	J ¹ , , , ,	J , J ,	,	,				
New & Existing	1, 2, 5, 7, 8, 10	Half Moon Bay		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing				
Action HMB-3—Act	ively participate in	the plan ma	intenance protocols and initiativ	es outlined ir	Nolume 1 of this hazard	mitigation plan.				
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding, Severe	Weather								
New & Existing	4, 6, 10	Half Moon Bay		Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term				
programs that, at a r • Enforce the flood • Participate in floo • Provide public as <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> New & Existing	ninimum, meet the damage prevention dplain identification sistance/information Flooding, Severe	NFIP require on ordinance n and mappi on on floodpl Weather Half Moon	rements: ing updates. lain requirements and impacts.	l ow	Staff Time General	Ongoing				
New & LAISting	1, 2, 3, 0, 3	Bay		LOW	Funds	Oligoling				
Action HMB-5—Ide • Adopt the City's f • Analyze local ecc <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> New & Existing	ntify and pursue s irst Climate Action nomy and ecosys Sea Level Rise/C 1, 4, 5,7	trategies to i and Adapta tems capacit Climate Chan Half Moon	ncrease adaptive capacity to clin tion Plan to outline and prioritize ty to adapt to climate change im ge, Flooding, Severe Weather, '	mate change city strategi pacts Wildfire Low	including but not limited t es for adaptation to impa Staff Time, General	to the following: cts Short-term				
Action HMB-6-Pu	Irchase generators	bay for critical f	acilities and infrastructure that la	ack adequate	hackup power including	the Half Moon				
Bay Library.	generation			ion adoquato	baonap ponon, moraanig					
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure, Ear	thquake, Flo	oding, Landslide/Mass Moveme	ents, Severe V	Neather, Tsunami, Wildfi	re				
Existing	8,9	Half Moon Bay		Medium	General Fund	Short-term				
Action HMB-7— Fir an analysis of erosic construction of perm enhancements wher	Action HMB-7— Finalize the design and environmental components for permanent erosion stabilization of the Seymour Ditch including an analysis of erosion stabilization alternatives, design of the preferred alternative, permitting for the preferred alternative and ultimate construction of permanent stabilization measures for the Seymour ditch. Provide environmental recreation, community/connectivity enhancements where possible.									
Hazards Mitigated:	Flooding, Severe	Weather, La	andslide/Mass Movements			• • • -				
New & Existing	4, 6, 7,8	Half Moon Bay	County of San Mateo, San Mateo Resource Conservation District, Peninsula Open Space Trust, Coastside Land Trust, FSLRRD	Medium	Capital Improvement Fund, General Fund	Short-Ierm				

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline				
Action HMB-8— Complete the Poplar Gateways Master Plan and implement a phased program for erosion mitigation, bluff restoration, and initiate work on the easterly re-alignment of the Coastal Trail between Poplar Street and Kelly Avenue.										
Hazards Mitigated:	Sea Level Rise/C	limate Chan	ige, Flooding, Severe Weather,	Landslide/Ma	ass Movements					
New & Existing	3, 5, 6, 7, 14	Half Moon Bay		Medium	Capital Improvement Fund, General Fund	Short-Term				
Action HMB-9—Continue to update and implement projects outlined within the Capital Improvement Projects, including rehabilitating Main St. Bridge over Pilarcitos Bridge Creek, addressing hazard mitigation and response. These actions include but are not limited to: The urban forestry management program, repairs and rehabilitations of stormwater outfalls, corporation yard improvements, flood management and coastal bluff preservation.										
Enter Response	4, 5, 6, 7, 8	Half Moon Bay		Medium	Capital Improvement Fund, Grant Funding	Ongoing				
Action HMB-10— Replace the existing main electrical service equipment at the Sewer Authority of Mid-Coastside's Wastewater Treatment Plant with new equipment to mitigate arc flash hazards, remove a single point of failure by creating a "main-tie-main" configuration, and to address the potential for flooding of the main electrical service components by relocating above flood level and SLR level.										
New & Existing	6, 7, 8, 9, 13	Half Moon Bay	Sewer Authority Midcoast	Medium	Capital Improvement Fund	Short-term				
Action HMB-11—Update the City's Emergency Operations Plan and work in tandem with the County on an Evacuation Plan. These documents will be continuously updated and address actions from mitigation all the way through recovery.										
Enter Response	1, 2, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11	Half Moon Bay	County	Low	Staff time, General Fund	Short-Term				
Action HMB-12— C (such as clean closu <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	continue to monito re) for the closed Sea Level Rise/C	bluff and dr Half Moon B limate Chan	rainage system regressions and ay landfill located on the coastange, Earthquake, Landslide/Mass	continue to a l bluffs near f s Movements	assess appropriate mitiga Poplar Beach. S	tion opportunities				
Enter Response	1, 5, 10	Half Moon Bay	County	Medium	General fund, Grant Funding	Long-Term				
Action HMB-13—Co the coastside for cor mutual aid agreement <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	reate broadband re nmunication prior nts, and identifying Dam Failure, Ear	edundancy t to, during ar y weak signa thquake, Flo	o allow for better digital infrastru nd after an emergency. This inclu nl areas to prevent hazard relate poding, Landslide/Mass Moveme	cture. The C udes working d disruptions ints, Severe	ity plans to add additional with other agencies, part Weather, Tsunami, Wildfi	connectivity on icipating in re				
New & existing	4, 8, 11	Half Moon Bay	County	Medium	Grant Funding	Short-term				
Action HMB-14— Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g., sea level rise, high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos) and critical facilities assessment to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation plan.										
New & Existing	1, 5, 6, 7, 8	Half Moon Bay	FSLRRD, County	Medium	General Fund	Short Term				
Action HMB-15— Ir into land use plannir their General Plans,	ncorporate conside ng and shoreline de Climate-related Pl	eration of the evelopment. lans, and the	FEMA 100-year tide and sea le This includes new policies by lo e development applications.	evel rise, and ocal jurisdictio	climate change-driven exons, and County and City	treme storms, actions regarding				
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Sea Level Rise/C	limate Chan	ige, Flood, Severe Weather							
New & Existing	1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 13, 14	Half Moon Bay	FSLRRD, County	Low	General Fund, Private Developers, City Capital Project Funding	Ongoing				

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline					
Action HMB-16-C	Continue to identify	and plan up	grades of utility systems, equipr	ment, and crit	tical facilities, including pu	mp stations,					
generators, tide gates, stream gages, open channel, and culvert/pipeline infrastructure.											
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Sea Level Rise/Climate Change, Flood, Severe Weather										
New & Existing	2, 6, 7,8	Half Moon Bay	FSLRRD, County	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood Zones, Grant Funding	Ongoing					
Action HMB-17—S	Support green infra	structure pro	jects that enhance resiliency to	natural disas	sters and incorporate gree	n design					
elements into hazaro	elements into hazard mitigation projects where feasible.										
Hazards Mitigated:	Sea Level Rise/C	limate Chan	ge, Landslide, Flood, Severe W	eather, Drou	ght						
					lax-Funded Flood						
New & Existing	2, 6, 7, 8, 14	Half Moon Bay	FSLRRD, County, C/CAG	Medium	Property/Vehicle Fees, Stormwater Fees, Grant Funding, City Capital Project Funding	Ongoing					
Action HMB-18— Ir	nprove stormwate	r drainage to	alleviate repeated localized floo	odina especi	ally storm drain systems (connected to San					
Mateo County Flood	and Sea Level Ri	se Resilienc	y District Flood Zone channels a	and infrastruc	ture.						
Hazards Mitigated:	Sea Level Rise/C	limate Chan	ge, Flood, Severe Weather								
<u> </u>					Tax-Funded Flood Zones,						
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 7,8	Half Moon Bay	FSLRRD, County	Medium	Property/Vehicle Fees, Stormwater Fees, Grant Funding, City	Ongoing					
					Capital Project Funding						
Action HMB-19— F roadways, and bridg Priorities Report.	Plan, design, and ir les in the vicinity o	nplement lor f other flood	ng-term resilience to sea level ris protection projects, including as	se, extreme s sets identifie	storms, and coastal erosio d in the Caltrans District 4	n for culverts, Adaptation					
Hazards Mitigated:	Sea Level Rise/C	limate Chan	ge, Landslide, Flood, Severe W	eather							
New & Existing	2, 4, 6, 7, 8,13	Half Moon Bav	FSLRRD, Caltrans, County	Medium	Grant Funding	Ongoing					
Action HMB-20— Id	dentify and pursue	strategies to	enhance recycled water infrast	tructure planr	ning/implementation in the	vicinity of San					
Maleo County Flood	Drought	se Resilienc	y District projects.								
Now & Existing			ESI DDD. County	Modium	Grant Euroding	Ongoing					
	1, 0, 7,0	rocilionoo to	FOLKED, County		orosion for Dillar Doint Ha	chyoling					
surrounding area.			sea level rise, extreme storms,	anu coastai							
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Sea Level Rise/C	limate Chan	ge, Flood, Severe Weather	I							
New & Existing	6, 7, 8, 13, 14	Half Moon Bay	FSLRRD, County, San Mateo County Harbor District, San Mateo Resource Conservation District	Medium	County Funding (Measure K), Grant Funding	Long-term					
Action HMB-22— A	dvance long-term	resilience to	sea level rise, extreme storms,	and coastal	erosion for the California	Coastal Trail.					
Hazards Mitigated:	Sea Level Rise/C	limate Chan	ge, Flood, Severe Weather								
	6 7 9 40 40		FSLRRD, County, Caltrans,		County Funding						
New & Existing	ο, 7, ο, 10, 13, 14	Hait Moon Bay	California State Coastal Conservancy	Low	(Measure K), Grant Funding	Long-term					
a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date											

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

	Table 10-15. Mitigation Action Priority									
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Eligible for Outside Funding?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Outside Funding Source Pursuit Priority ^a	Social Equity Priority ^a	
1	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	High	
2	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	Low	
3	3	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	Low	
4	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	Low	
5	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium	Medium	
6	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	High	
7	4	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	Low	
8	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	Low	
9	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	High	
10	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	High	
11	7	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High	
12	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Low	Low	
13	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	High	
14	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	Medium	
15	9	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	Medium	
16	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	Medium	
17	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	Medium	
18	6	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	Medium	
19	6	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	Medium	
20	4	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	Low	
21	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	Medium	
22	6	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	Medium	

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 10-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions									
		Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building	
High-Risk Hazard	ds								
Earthquake	HMB-1, 9, 12, 13	HMB-1,9	HMB-11		HMB-6, 9, 11, 13	HMB-9		HMB-2, 11, 13	
Wildfire	HMB-1, 9, 13	HMB-1,9	HMB-5,11		HMB-6, 9, 11, 13	HMB-9	HMB-2, 5	HMB-2, 11, 13	
Tsunami	HMB-1, 9, 13	HMB-1,9	HMB-11,14		HMB-6, 9, 11, 13	HMB-9		HMB-2, 11, 13	
Severe Weather	HMB-1, 3, 4, 7, 9, 10, 13, 14, 5, 16, 17, 18, 21, 22	HMB-1, 4, 9, 10, 18	HMB-4, 5, 11, 14, 16	HMB-7,8	HMB-6, 9, 11, 13	HMB-9, 10, 16, 19	HMB-2, 5, 19, 21, 22	HMB-2, 11, 13	

	Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building
Medium-Risk Ha	zards							
Dam Failure	HMB-1, 9, 13	HMB-1,9	HMB-11		HMB-6, 9, 11, 13	HMB-9		HMB-2, 11, 13
Landslide/ Mass Movement	HMB-1, 7, 9, 12, 13, 17	HMB-9	HMB-5,11	HMB-7,8	HMB-6, 9, 11, 13	HMB-9,19	HMB-2.5,19	HMB-2, 11, 13
Low-Risk Hazard	ls							
Flood	HMB-1, 3, 4, 7, 9, 10, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18, 21, 22	HMB-1, 4, 9, 10, 1	HMB-4, 5, 11, 14, 16	HMB-7,8	HMB-6, 9, 11, 13	HMB-9, 10, 16, 19	HMB-2, 5, 19, 21, 22	HMB-2, 11, 13
Drought	HMB-17,20							
Sea Level Rise/ Climate Change	HMB-12, 15, 16, 17, 18, 21, 22	HMB-18	HMB-5, 14, 16	HMB-8		HMB- 16,19	HMB-2, 5, 19, 21, 22	HMB-2
0 11 1 1								

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

10.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 10-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 10-17. Local Public Outreach							
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved					
Presentation/Discussion at Evergreen Coastsiders	May 13, 2021	11					

10.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **City of Half Moon Bay Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **City of Half Moon Bay Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- City of Half Moon Bay Local Coastal Land Use Plan—Chapter 7. Environmental Hazards of the Local Coastal Land Use Plan was utilized to identify hazards and land use policies for avoiding hazards in new development projects.
- **City of Half Moon Bay Emergency Operations Plan-**The Emergency Operations Plan was utilized to identify hazards and determine mitigation efforts.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

10.11 ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

Changes to the hazard risk rankings and categories noted in comments in that section.































11. TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH

11.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Mandy Brown, Senior Management Analyst 1600 Floribunda Avenue Hillsborough, CA 94010 (650) 375-7409 mbrown@hillsborough.net Alternate Point of Contact

Dena Gunning, Community Risk & Resilience Specialist 1399 Rollins Road Burlingame, CA (650) 558-7609 dgunning@ccfd.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 11-1.

Table 11-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members						
Name	Title					
Ann Ritzma	City Manager, Hillsborough					
Bruce Barron	Fire Chef, CCFD					
Mandy Brown	Senior Management Analyst, Hillsborough					
Dena Gunning	Community Risk and Resiliency Specialist					
Christine Reed	Fire Marshal					
Paul Willis	Director of Public Works					
Sarah Fleming	Director of Building & Planning					

11.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

11.2.1 Location and Features

The Town of Hillsborough is a residential community located in San Mateo County, California. It is west of U.S. Highway 101 and El Camino Real and east of Interstate 280 within a short commute to San Francisco and minutes from San Francisco International Airport. The Town is bordered on the north and east by the City of Burlingame, to the east and south by the City of San Mateo, and to the west by the San Francisco Peninsula watershed. The Town maintains about 250 acres of open space; the local police station has historic significance connected to the early days of Southern Pacific Railroad.

Hillsborough has a Mediterranean climate with the vast majority of the precipitation from the months of November to April. On average, Hillsborough receives 17 inches of rain. With coastal mountains to the west of Hillsborough, it is blocked in the winter from much of the rainfall over Half Moon Bay, and in the summer it is blocked from virtually all the fog of the coast. Hillsborough receives an average of 307 days of sunshine annually, with 52 days of recordable precipitation per year.

11.2.2 History

William Davis Merry Howard, son of a wealthy Hillsboro, New Hampshire shipping magnate, sailed on one of his father's ships from Boston around Cape Horn to the West Coast. Upon returning home, he convinced his father of the fortunes to be made in the West and returned to California some 15 years later. Howard became a partner in a general merchandising firm in 1845.

The following year, he purchased "Rancho San Mateo" from the Mexican governor, Pio Pico. The Rancho was a tract of land that became the city of San Mateo. He paid \$25,000 for the tract, or approximately \$3.88 an acre. For the next few years, Howard and his wife, Agnes, lived in a comfortable life on the isolated Peninsula. Here they built a fine home which they called "El Cerrito" and made San Mateo a successful working ranch.

When the gold rush began a few years later, the thousands of prospectors flooding California needed provisions and only a few outlets were present. In a short span of time, Howard and his partner became wealthier than even the most successful gold seekers.

As San Mateo and Burlingame continued to grow, the need for money to make improvements became acute, and the residents began to show interest in annexing the estate owners' lands. The owners of the estates were not well disposed to contributing tax dollars toward the improvement of neighboring city life; nor were they interested in any of the benefits incorporation would bring, e.g., sidewalks and other amenities which would detract from the rural atmosphere of their area. Accordingly, in 1910, residents filed incorporation papers with the County Board of Supervisors and on April 25 of the same year, by popular vote of 60-1 a "perfumed city" (as one San Francisco newspaper put it) was born. "Hillsborough" had 89 registered voters at the time out of an estimated population of 750. Women, children, and servants did not participate in the election. Hillsborough was incorporated on May 5, 1910.

Between 1910 and 1938, Hillsborough's population grew from an estimated 750 to over 2,500, but the era of large estates came a close. Uplands, Home Place, La Dolphine, and other classic estates were gradually subdivided into smaller lots, usually leaving the original house and several acres intact.

11.2.3 Governing Body Format

The Town is a general law city operating with a Council / Manager form of government. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in the governing City Council, which consists of a Mayor, a Vice-Mayor and three City Council members. City Council members are elected to overlapping 4-year terms, in even numbered years. The City Council members select the Mayor and Vice-Mayor every year. The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committee and board members, and hiring the City Manager and the City Attorney. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations and for appointing department heads. Central County Fire Department (a separate agency) provides fire and emergency management services for the city.

The Town of Hillsborough assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the Central County Fire Department will oversee its implementation.

11.3 CURRENT TRENDS

11.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of Hillsborough as of January 2020 was 11,418. Since 2016, the population has decreased at an average annual rate of 0.59 percent.

11.3.2 Development

The Town has one zoning district, "Residence District" or RD. Permitted uses within RD include single family homes and related accessory structures, public schools, private schools, open space, parks, Town facilities, one golf course and one country club. Future development is anticipated to be limited to replacement of existing homes, additions, and accessory dwelling units. The RD zone does allow multifamily rental housing to be developed on private school sites via a special permit, and the country club site by right. However, the Town has received no development applications for such housing in recent years and is not anticipating any submissions in the near future.

It is important to note that in recent years the State of California has become increasingly fixated on addressing the State's housing shortage through the bills aimed at deregulating land use and abrogating local control over such decisions. Given this, it is possible in the near future that the Town will be required to make changes to its development regulations in order to accommodate additional density as mandated by the State.

Table 11-2 summarizes development trends in the performance period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 11-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends							
Criterion	Re	esponse					
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?		No					
If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures.		N/A					
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan?	No						
If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses. If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas?	N/A N/A						
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas	Yes Potential redevelopment of Town Hall campus to upgrade facilities and possibly incorporate housing to address RHNA 6 allocation requirements– The campus is directly adjacent to El Camino Real, and is not in the Wildland Urban						
How many permits for new construction were		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	
issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	1	3	3	4	5	
preparation of the previous hazard mitigation	Multi-Family	0	0	0	0	0	
high :	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	0	0	0	0	0	
	Total	1	3	3	4	5	

Criterion	Response
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: 0 Landslide: 0 High Liquefaction Areas: 0 Tsunami Inundation Area: 0 Wildfire Risk Areas: 15
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	While no buildable lands inventory exists, the Town is generally considered to be at maximum build out for net new homes. Occasionally a property will be purchased and subdivided, however that is the exception and not the rule. The Town does expect to see continued increase in Accessory Dwelling Unit development on existing single-family lots.

11.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 11-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 11-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 11-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 11-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 11-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 11-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 11-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 11-10.

Table 11-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability								
		Other Jurisdiction		Integration				
	Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?				
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements								
Building Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes				
Comment: Last updated 2013. Municipal code Tit	le 15							
Zoning Code	Yes	No	No	Yes				
Comment: Last updated 2016. Municipal code Tit	le 17							
Subdivisions	Yes	No	Yes	No				
Comment: Last updated 2011. Municipal code Tit	le 16; State gov't co	ode section 66410 et seq						
Stormwater Management	Yes	No	Yes	No				
Comment: Annual program NPDS. Municipal cod	e Title 13; state gov	r't						
Post-Disaster Recovery	No	Yes	No	No				
Comment: Managed by Central County Fire Depa EOP currently being revised. Managed	a <i>rtment.</i> d by Central County	Fire Department						
Real Estate Disclosure	No	No	Yes	No				
Comment: CA. State Civil Code 1102 requires ful	l disclosure on Natu	Iral hazard Exposure of the	e sale/re-sale of any ar	nd all real property.				
Growth Management	Yes	No	No	No				
Comment: Last Building Code update 2013. Loca	I zoning code & ger	neral plan						
Site Plan Review	Yes	No	Yes	No				
Comment: Last Building Code update 2013. Loca	l municipal code an	d state codes						
Environmental Protection	Yes	No	Yes	No				
Comment: Title 14 last updated in 2004: Title 17 i 17) General Plan and state laws.	in 2008. General Pla	an scheduled for update in	2017. Local municipal	code (Titles 14,				
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	No	No	No				
Comment: Last updated 2014. Municipal code title	e 15							
Emergency Management	Yes	Yes	No	No				
Comment: Municipal code Title 2; chapter 2 – upo	dated in 2005. Mana	aged by Central County Fi	re Department					
Climate Change	Yes	No	Yes	No				
Comment: Local climate plan and general plan; s	tate laws							
Wildland-Urban Interface Code	Yes	Yes	No	No				
Comment: Municipal code Title 15; Chapter 21 -	Adopted in 2018. M	anaged by Central County	Fire Department					
Planning Documents								
General Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes				
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140?	Yes							
Comment: General Plan update beginning 2022								
Capital Improvement Plan	Yes	No	No	No				
Comment: CIP reviewed and updated annually	ally							
Disaster Debris Management Plan	No	No	No	Yes				
Comment: San Mateo County Debris Managemen	nt Plan currently out	t for RFP. Completion anti	cipated in early 2022.					
Floodplain or Watershed Plan	Yes	No	No	No				
Comment: Ongoing program/plan (updated every	2 - 3 years)							
Stormwater Plan	Yes	No	No	No				
Comment: Annual review. 2 year master departm	ent plan – Stormwa	ter Master Plan						
Urban Water Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	No				
Comment:								
Habitat Conservation Plan	Yes	No	No	No				
Comment: Habitat conservation policy								

			Other Jurisdiction		Integration	
		Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?	
Economic Development Plan		No	No	No	No	
Comment:	Does not have a plan					
Shoreline M	lanagement Plan	No	Yes	No	No	
Comment:	N/A – Town has no shoreline					
Community	Wildfire Protection Plan	No	Yes*	No	Yes	
Comment:	t: Annual review. *Managed by Central County Fire Department (CCFD) In 2010, a collaborative group consisting of CAL FIRE, Resource Conservation District of Santa Cruz County, San Mateo Resource Conservation District, and the US Fish and Wildlife Service worked together to create a draft Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP). The Plan identifies fire protection agencies with jurisdiction, volunteer organizations, large landowners, communities, neighborhoods, open spaces, and other environmental resources in the planning area that may be at risk of fire hazards. Community Risk Assessment In August 2018, the Central County Fire Department (CCFD) contracted with Anchor Point Group to perform a wildfire risk assessment for the three cities in its jurisdiction.					
Forest Man	agement Plan	No	Yes	No	No	
Comment:	None					
Climate Act	tion Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes	
Comment:	Climate Action Plan 2010					
	CCFD Emergency Management integ	rating Climate Adap	tation Planning for EOP co	ompleted training 06/20)19	
Emergency	Operations Plan	No	Yes	No	Yes	
Comment:	Managed by Central County Fire Department; current being updated; last revision 2007 CCFD hired a full time Community Risk & Resiliency Specialist to manage all aspects of the Emergency Management Plan for Burlingame/Hillsborough in January 2019.					
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)		Yes	No	No	Yes	
Comment:	CCFD, Public Works, and Building Departments CCFD continues to assess all threats, hazards and risks including those that have climate change impacts such as severe weather and drought. CCFD continues to participate in the Northern California Regional Intelligence Center to stay informed of trends and local threats. CCFD also utilizes Haystax (Cal COP) to maintain current critical infrastructure inventory and provide a common operating picture.					
Post-Disast	ter Recovery Plan	No	Yes	No	Yes	
Comment:	Included with the EOP. Managed by Central County Fire Department; current being updated; last revision 2007 In process. Due to COVID-19 will look at establishing Disaster Recovery Planning Team in early 2022.					
Continuity	of Operations Plan	No	Yes	No	Yes	
Comment:	Included with the EOP. Managed by Central County Fire Department; current being updated; last revision 2007 Updating current plan and compiling department continuity plans from the last 18 months of COVID-19 response. In progress of updating Critical Transportation and Supply chain information based on the current regional trainings and exercise coming up in November.					
Public Heal	th Plan	No	Yes	No	No	
Comment:	Managed by County Health agency					
Other Comment:						

Table 11-4. Development and Permitting Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department?	Yes Building & Planning			
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	Yes			
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	No			
Table 11-5. Fiscal Capability				
--	--------------------------------	--	--	
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?			
Community Development Block Grants	No			
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes			
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes			
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes – Water and Sewer			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes			
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Yes			
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No			
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes			
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes			

Table 11-6. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?	Department/Agency/Position		
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes	Planning & Public Works		
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	Engineering / Public Works		
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes	Public Works		
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis	Yes	Public Works		
Surveyors	Yes	Contractors		
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications	Yes	Public Works		
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area	No	N/A		
Emergency manager	Yes	Central County Fire Dept. (CCFD) – Community Risk & Resiliency Specialist/ Emergency Manager		
Grant writers	Yes	Public Works, CCFD (Community Risk & Resiliency Specialist/Emergency Manager/CERT Program Manager)		

Table 11-7. Education and Outreach Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes – Hillsborough Police Captain and Senior Management Analyst			
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	No			
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website?	Yes			
If yes, briefly describe.	Link under Current Town Projects			
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach?	Yes			
If yes, briefly describe.	Through neighbor network program and the emergency and disaster information webpage.			

Criterion	Response
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation?	Yes
If yes, briefly describe.	Neighborhood network program; drought advisory board; Firewise USA community group FireSAFE San Mateo County; Zonehaven (evacuation management software)
Do you have any other programs already in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes Neighborhood network program; Firewise USA community group; CERT Program
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes SMC Alert (<u>https://cmo.smcgov.org/smc-alert</u>) is an opt-in countywide notification system that can alert mobile devices, landlines and send emails Alert Center (<u>http://www.hillsborough.net/AlertCenter.aspx</u>) allows residents to sign up for notifications or to check on Town website for emergency alerts, heat advisories, severe drought notices, severe weather advisories, traffic advisories, and urgent public meeting information. Zonehaven Evacuation Management Platform which is linked to our SMCAlert mass notification system.

Table 11-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance			
Criterion	Response		
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works		
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Public Works Director		
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	Yes		
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	2014		
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements? <i>If exceeds, in what ways?</i>	Meets		
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	2014		
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed? <i>If so, state what they are.</i>	No		
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction? If so, state what they are.	No		
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	Yes		
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed?	No		
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program?	No No – flood plain area is too small		
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a What is the insurance in force? What is the premium in force?	51 \$16,715,300 \$26,817		
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a What were the total payments for losses?	12 \$58,359		
a. According to FEMA statistics as of May 14, 2021			

Table 11-9. Community Classifications						
Participating? Classification Date Classified						
FIPS Code	Yes	0608133798	2021			
DUNS#	Yes	004952255	N/A			
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A			
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes	2	2010			
Public Protection	Yes	ISO 3	2012			
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A			
Firewise	Yes	Firewise Community	2020			

Table 11-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts Comment:	High
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	High
Comment: Utilizing and monitoring data from the National Weather Service (NWS) on changing conditions such risks.	as Drought and Wildfire
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities Comment:	Medium
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory Comment:	Medium
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts Comment:	Medium
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks Comment: Emergency Manager has attended Climate adaptation course and continues to participate in Climate locally and regionally. Participation in the Bay Area UASI planning efforts that include climate change	High e change discussions e.
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes Comment:	Medium
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts Comment:	Medium
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts <i>Comment:</i>	Medium
Champions for climate action in local government departments Comment:	Medium
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies Comment:	High
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation Comment:	Medium
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted Comment:	Medium

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a	
Public Capacity		
Local residents knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	High	
Comment: Residents engaged and educated through various community groups: Hillsborough Neighborhood Network, CERT Program, and Firewise. Facilitate various community events throughout the year to promote emergency preparedness, including topics related to climate risk.		
Local residents support of adaptation efforts		
Comment:		
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	High	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts Comment:	High	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts <i>Comment:</i>	High	

High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist but is not used or could use some improvement;
 Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

11.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

11.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- **Retroactive Fire Sprinkler Program** This plan has a retroactive requirement for commercial and residential occupancies to be retroactively equipped with fire sprinklers. The next planned review is 2017.
- **SAFER Smoke Alarm Program** Our fire department engine companies retroactively install fire smoke alarms in existing dwelling units as needed upon discovery during incident calls.
- CA Bolt & Brace Program CA mitigation program to strengthen house foundations.
- The current General Plan is AB 2140 compliant.
- Interdepartmental Departmental Development Program utilizing CRW software that analyzes and update local hazard information
- **Burlingame/Hillsborough Emergency Operations Plan** The Burlingame/Hillsborough Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) provides the structure and processes that the jurisdictions utilize to respond to and initially recover from an incident and/or event.
- **Firewise** The national Firewise USA recognition program provides a collaborative framework to help neighbors in a geographic area get organized, find direction, and take action to increase the ignition

resistance of their homes and community and to reduce wildfire risks at the local level. Any community that meets a set of voluntary criteria on an annual basis and retains an "In Good Standing Status" may identify itself as being a Firewise® Site.

11.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment presented in this annex identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- **Public Outreach** The Town of Hillsborough recognizes that there are currently public information opportunities available to facilitate public engagement regarding hazard mitigation. The Town will look into developing a more robust and targeted program that involves using current capabilities to expand and enhance outreach to local residents.
- General Plan update is proposed to begin in fiscal year 2022/2023 and may include programs and/or ordinances related to resiliency, strategies, climate adaptations, water conservation plan (drought), and storm water management. Emergency Operation Plan update planned for 2023 to include any updates from hazard mitigation plan and climate adaptations.
- Building Code review proposed
- **Zoning Code** Update is proposed to occur in conjunction with the General Plan Update in FY 2022/23 and will likely include updates to/creation of ordinances related to water conservation, water efficient landscaping, and/or prevention of hazards attributed to the built environment.
- **Disaster Debris Management Plan** San Mateo County Debris Management Plan. This annex will provide a framework for organizing the rapid, safe, and cost-effective separation, removal, collection, recycling, and disposal of disaster related debris; and minimizing debris-related threats to public health, safety, and the environment following an event or a major disaster.
- **Community Wildfire Protection Plan** The Plan identifies fire protection agencies with jurisdiction, volunteer organizations, large landowners, communities, neighborhoods, open spaces, and other environmental resources in the planning area that may be at risk of fire hazards.
- Climate Action Plan The County of San Mateo has an Office of Sustainability. There may be opportunities for future partnerships with this County agency.
- **Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan** a comprehensive plan to manage multiple uses and activities to protect and conserve natural and cultural resources.
- Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA) Future assessments could be done in conjunction with State agencies, such as the State Water Board, who currently provide advice and guidance. Future integration could involve a more hands on approach by the State to prevent potential vulnerabilities to the local drinking water sources. The SFPUC, who provides the wholesale water to the Town could also be an active participant in the future.
- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan** Includes a set of strategies to assist a community in rebuilding after a disaster occurs. This also can include either preventive or corrective actions to lessen the impacts of a reoccurring disaster, such as severe weather.
- Continuity of Operations Plan A continuity of operations plan addresses emergencies from an allhazards approach. It establishes policy and guidance ensuring that critical functions continue, and that personnel and resources are relocated to an alternate facility in case of emergencies. The plan has procedures for alerting, activating, and deploying employees, identifying critical business functions, establishing an alternate facility, and roster of personnel with authority and knowledge of functions.

11.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

11.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 11-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 11-11. Past Natural Hazard Events					
Type of Event FEMA Disaster # Date Damage Assessmen					
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 - present	Unknown		
Severe Storms	N/A	2011	Not collected		
Severe Storms	N/A	2006	Not collected		
Severe Storms	N/A	2005	Not collected		
Severe Storms	N/A	1998	Not collected		
Severe Storms	N/A	1997	Not collected		
Severe Storms	N/A	1995	Not collected		
Earthquake (Loma Prieta)	DR-845	1989	Not collected		
Severe Storms	N/A	1983	Not collected		
Severe Storm	N/A	1982	Not collected		

11.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 11-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions target hazards with high and medium rankings.

	Table 11-12. Hazard Risk Ranking					
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Landslide/Mass Movements	51	High			
2	Wildfire	51	High			
3	Earthquake	36	High			
4	Dam Failure	24	Medium			
5	Severe Weather/Extreme Weather	24	Medium			
6	Flood	15	Low			
7	Drought	9	Low			
8	Sea level Rise / Climate Change	0	Low			
9	Tsunami	0	Low			

11.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0 •
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0 •

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

No jurisdiction-specific issues were identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources.

11.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 11-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

			Removed;	Carried C Up	ver to Plan date
Action Item		Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
HLS 1- Esta	blish open space fire fuels management – fire zones			\checkmark	HLS-7
Comment:	The Town continues its annual open space vegetation management an	d wildfire prepa	ration outreach	۱.	
HLS 2 - Dev	elop and monitor a Storm Water Improvement Plan			\checkmark	HLS-8
Comment:	Plan developed in 2014; continuous monitoring/updating should occur.				
HLS 3 - Retriction	ofit of historic buildings (old fire and police station) – wood and stucco			~	HLS-9
Comment:	Building assessment completed in October 2018				
HLS 4 - Dev	elop Water Conservation Plan Outreach & Education			\checkmark	HLS-10
Comment:	Ongoing outreach and education; still a priority, should remain.				
HLS 5 – Dev	elop Urban Forest Maintenance and Management Plan			\checkmark	HLS-11
Comment: The Town completed a windshield tree maintenance survey, identified numerous right-of-way potential tree hazards and is noticing property owners. The Town has conducted an inventory of all Town-owned trees on Town property and has implemented a priority-based maintenance plan/schedule for them.					
HLS 5 – Cor first respond agencies.	ntinue to participate in developing and maintaining communications for ers from cities and counties, special districts, state, and federal			~	HLS-12
Comment: CCFD Community Risk and Resiliency Specialist continues to serve as Vice President on the Board of the San Mateo County Emergency Managers Association (EMA) and participates on the Bay Area Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) Alert & Warning and Golden Eagle Exercise workgroups and serves on the Bay Area Joint Information System leadership committee to assist with improvement and utilization of Mass Notification and Response Systems that include SMCAlert, WebEOC and Zonehaven throughout the Bay Area Region. In November 2020 the Town hosted two Zonehaven "Know Your Zone" information sessions prior to the launch of the outreach campaign.				Mateo e (UASI) eadership MCAlert, "Know	

able 11-13. Status of Flevious Flat Action	able 11-13.	Status of F	Previous F	Plan Ac	tions
--	-------------	-------------	------------	---------	-------

Action Item No longer Check if Action Item HLS 6 – Continue to sponsor the training and maintenance of CERT Program with residents ✓ HLS-1 Comment: CCFD continues to sponsor the CERT Program for the Town of Hillsborough in collaboration with the Hillsborough Neighborhood Network volunteers and CERT Volunteer Coordinators to provide ongoing training opportunities for resider virtually. The program secured funding from Cal OES for FY 2019/2020 for training equipment and supplies. In June 2021 the program conducted the first in person hands-on skills day since COVID-19 began. The CCFD CERT Program will continue to provide a hybrid CERT online curriculum via the Cal OES Learning Management System as well as in person	n # in ate -13 -13 ents 21, in -14 -15						
 HLS 6 – Continue to sponsor the training and maintenance of CERT Program with residents Comment: CCFD continues to sponsor the CERT Program for the Town of Hillsborough in collaboration with the Hillsborough Neighborhood Network volunteers and CERT Volunteer Coordinators to provide ongoing training opportunities for resider virtually. The program secured funding from Cal OES for FY 2019/2020 for training equipment and supplies. In June 2021 the program conducted the first in person hands-on skills day since COVID-19 began. The CCFD CERT Program will continue to provide a hybrid CERT online curriculum via the Cal OES Learning Management System as well as in person 	-13 ents 21, m -14						
Comment: CCFD continues to sponsor the CERT Program for the Town of Hillsborough in collaboration with the Hillsborough Neighborhood Network volunteers and CERT Volunteer Coordinators to provide ongoing training opportunities for resider virtually. The program secured funding from Cal OES for FY 2019/2020 for training equipment and supplies. In June 2021 the program conducted the first in person hands-on skills day since COVID-19 began. The CCFD CERT Program will continue to provide a hybrid CERT online curriculum via the Cal OES Learning Management System as well as in person	ents 21, in -14						
training to reach more residents.	-14 -15						
HLS 7 – Update GIS Mapping Storage and Accessibility ✓ HLS-1	-15						
Comment: Regularly updated and integrated with other systems (e.g., Zonehaven)	-15						
HLS 8 – Conduct sod removal / turf replacement plan through BAWSCA 🗸	-15						
Comment: Completed in 2015.	-15						
HLS 9 – Integrate updated hazard mitigation plan into plans, ordinances, and codes							
Comment: The Town continues to update its hazard mitigation plan into plans, ordinances, and codes. The Town City Council adopt the revised Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) on September 9, 2019 which integrates the San Mateo County LHMP.	oted						
HLS 10 – Maintain and monitor Wildland Urban Fire Interface V HLS-1	-16						
Comment: City Council adopted the revised WUI ordinance that confirms structure hardening and fuel modification on properties in t WUI areas. The revised ordinance went into effect January 1, 2021 due to COVID-19. Ongoing inspections by CCFD Fire Prevention staff continue. Town staff continues to conduct fuel modification and reduction on Town open space to reduce the wildfire risk.	the re xe						
HLS 11 – Conduct Street improvements and mitigation measures from flood waters and landslides	-17						
Comment: Still relevant – should remain.							
HLS 12 – Develop a Water Supply Improvement Plan ✓ HLS-1 Comment: Plan developed in 2016 – still relevant, should remain.	-18						
HLS 13 – Strengthen Fire Hydrant Distribution System	-19						
Comment: Still relevant – should remain.							
Action G-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase, or relocation of structures in hazard-prone areas to prevent future structure damage. Give priority to properties with exposure to repetitive losses.	-20						
Comment: The Town continues to work on this project and is reviewing options for grant funding. The Town continues to support and promote community education and involvement in programs such as California Earthquake Authority's Earthquake Brace & Bolt (EBB) Program. General Plan Update process to occur. action should remain.							
Action G-2—Consider participation in incentive-based programs such as the Community Rating System, Tree City, and StormReady.	-21						
Comment: The Town receives annual grant funding from Plan JPA, formally ABAG. The Town received annual grant funding from Plan JPA, formally ABAG to consider CRS, Tree City, and a Storm Ready programs.	Plan						
Action G-3—Maintain good standing under the National Flood Insurance Program by implementing programs that meet or exceed the minimum NFIP requirements. Such programs include enforcing an adopted flood damage prevention ordinance, participating in floodplain mapping updates, and providing public assistance and information on floodplain requirements and impacts. Comment: Program reviewed by FEMA (approx. 2016) ordinance updated. We have very few properties impacted by the Flood Zone	-22 ne						
Action G-4—Where feasible, implement a program to record high water marks	-						
following high-water events. Comment: NA - We don't have homes/ structures in the flood zone, just a few back vard areas.							

		Removed;	Carried C Up	ver to Plan date
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
Action G-5—Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, programs, or resources that dictate land use or redevelopment.			\checkmark	HLS-23
Comment: No record of progress on this to date - General Plan Update process to	occur, action s	hould remain.		
Action G-6—Consider the development and implementation of a Capital Improvements Program (CIP) to increase regulatory, financial, and technical capability to implement mitigation actions.	✓			
Comment: Master plans done in 2015 to develop a proper CIP in sewer, water, and	d storm			
Action G-7—Provide incentives for eligible non-profits and private entities, including homeowners, to adapt to risks through structural and nonstructural retrofitting.			\checkmark	HLS-24
Comment: No record of progress on this to date – should remain.				
Action G-8— Support the County-wide initiatives identified in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.			✓	HLS-25
Comment: Ongoing support of LHMP maintenance program.				
Action G-9— Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.			\checkmark	HLS-26
Comment: Attendance at MJLHMP virtual steering committee meetings.				

11.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 11-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 11-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 11-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 11-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix							
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Dbjectives Met Lead Agency		Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action HLS-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.							
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass	Movements, Earthqua	ake, Severe Weather				
Existing	7, 8, 9, 13	Public Works	CCFD	High	HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Short-term	
Action HLS-2— Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, ordinances and programs that dictate land use decisions in the community, including General Plan Update, Housing Element, and Zoning Code							
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Tsunami	Movements, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Dam Failu	ire, Severe W	eather, Flood, Drought, Clima	ite Change,	
New & Existing	3, 5, 6, 7, 10	Building & Planning	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing	

Damafitan				E.C.		
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timelinea
Action HLS -3—A	ctively participate	in the plan maintenanc	e protocols outlined in '	Volume 1 of th	his hazard mitigation plan.	
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass	Movements, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Dam Failu	re, Severe W	eather, Flood, Drought, Clima	te Change,
New & Existing	9, 10, 12	Public Works	CCFD	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
Action HLS -4-C	ontinue to maintai	n good standing and co	ompliance under the NF	IP through in	plementation of floodplain ma	anagement
 programs that, at a Enforce the floor Participate in floor Dravide public a 	minimum, meet t d damage preven odplain identificat	he NFIP requirements: tion ordinance. ion and mapping updat	es.	U		5
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood		rements and impacts.			
New & Existing	1. 8. 14	Public Works	City Manager's Office	Low	Staff Time. General Funds	Onaoina
Action HLS -5—Id	entify and pursue	strategies to increase	adaptive capacity to clir	mate change	including but not limited to the	following:
Continue partneComply with SBOthers?	rship with Peninsi 1383 requiremen	ula Clean Energy ts to reduce organics d	lisposal			
Hazards Mitigated:	Climate Change	9				
New & Existing	5, 7	City Manager's Office	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term
Action HLS-6— Pu Administration (SC	urchase generator ADA), Police Dep	s for critical facilities ar artment, Fire Stations,	nd infrastructure that la Town Hall	ck adequate b	backup power, including Public	c Works
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam failure, ea	rthquake, flooding, land	dslide, severe weather,	tsunami, wild	fire	
Existing	9, 11	Public Works	City Manager's Office			
Action HLS -7—C	ontinue open spac	ce fire fuels manageme	nt – fire zones			
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire					
Existing	8, 9, 14	CCFD	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
Action HLS -8—M	onitor and update	Storm Water Improver	nent Plan			
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Earthqua	ake, Severe/Extreme W		Low	Staff Time, Canaral Funda	Ongoing
	0, 7, 0, 9 strofit of bistoria b	PUDIIC WOIKS	IN/A	LOW	Stall Time, General Funds	Ungoing
Hazards Mitigatod:	Earthquake Se	vere Westber/Extreme	Meather		GIUCUON	
New	6 8 10 13	City Manager's Office	CCED	High	Outside funding staff time	l ona-term
Action HI S -10	Execute Water Co	nservation Plan outrea	ch and education	riigii	Outside funding start time	Long-torm
Hazards Mitigated:	Drought, Flood	Severe/Extreme Weat	her			
Existing	1, 2, 3	Public Works	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
Action HLS -11-	Develop Urban Fo	rest Maintenance and I	Management Plan		,	0 0
Hazards Mitigated:	Severe/Extreme	e Weather, Drought	5			
Existing	1, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13	Public Works	N/A	Medium	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing
Action HLS -12—	Continue to partic	ipate in developing and rencies	d maintaining communi	cations for firs	t responders from cities and o	counties,
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass	Movements, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Dam Failu	re, Severe W	eather, Flood, Drought, Clima	te Change,
Existing	2, 10, 12	CCFD	N/A	Low	Staff Time. General Funds	Onaoina
Action HLS -13—	Continue to spons	sor the training and mai	intenance of CERT Pro	gram with res	idents	
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass	Movements, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Dam Failu	re, Severe W	eather, Flood, Drought, Clima	te Change,
Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 10	CCFD	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		
Action HLS -14-	Update GIS Mapp	oing Storage and Acces	ssibility					
Hazards Mitigated: Landslide/Mass Movements, Wildfire, Earthquake, Dam Failure, Severe Weather, Flood, Drought, Climate Change, Tsunami								
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11	Public Works	N/A	Medium	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
Action HLS-15—	Integrate updated	hazard mitigation plan	into plans, ordinances,	and codes				
Hazards Mitigated: Landslide/Mass Movements, Wildfire, Earthquake, Dam Failure, Severe Weather, Flood, Drought, Climate Change Tsunami								
New	1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 13	Building & Planning	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
Action HLS-16-	Maintain and mon	itor Wildland Urban Fire	e Interface					
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire, Severe	e Weather/Extreme We	ather					
New & Existing	1, 5, 6, 8, 13, 14	CCFD	City Manager's Office	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
Action HLS -17—	Conduct Street in	provements and mitigation	ation measures from flo	od waters and	d landslides			
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass	Movements, Earthqua	ike, Flood	1				
New & Existing	6, 8, 13, 14	Public Works	N/A	High	FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grants	Long-Term		
Action HLS -18—	Implement Water	Supply Improvement F	lan					
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire, Droug	ht						
Existing	1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10	Public Works	CCFD	High	General Fund	Long-Term		
Action HLS -19—	Strengthen Fire H	lydrant Distribution Sys	tem					
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire, Drougl	ht	1					
Existing	2, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11	Public Works	CCFD	High	General Fund	Long-Term		
Action HLS-20— Structure damage.	Where appropriate Give priority to pro	e, support retrofitting, p operties with exposure	urchase, or relocation c to repetitive losses.	of structures ir	n hazard-prone areas to preve	ent future		
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Tsunami	Movements, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Dam Failu	re, Severe W	eather, Flood, Drought, Clima	te Change,		
New & Existing	6, 8, 10, 11, 13	City Manager's Office	N/A	High	FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grants	Long-Term		
Action HLS -21— StormReady.	Consider participa	ation in incentive-based	I programs such as the	Community F	Rating System, Tree City, and			
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Tsunami	Movements, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Dam Failu	re, Severe W	eather, Flood, Drought, Clima	te Change,		
New & Existing	1, 2, 5, 10, 11, 12	CCFD	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Long-term		
Action HLS -22— the minimum NFIP	Maintain good sta requirements. Su	Inding under the Natior ch programs include er	al Flood Insurance Pro	gram by implo od damage pr	ementing programs that meet evention ordinance, participat	or exceed ing in		
floodplain mapping	updates, and pro	viding public assistanc	e and information on flo	odplain requi	rements and impacts.			
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood							
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 5, 6	Public Works	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		
Action HLS -23—	Integrate the haza	ard mitigation plan into	other plans, programs,	or resources	that dictate land use or redev	elopment.		
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Tsunami	Movements, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Dam Failu	re, Severe W	eather, Flood, Drought, Clima	te Change,		
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10	Building & Planning	City Manager's Office	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing		

Benefits New or	Objectives Met	Lood Agonov	Support Agonov	Estimated	Sources of Euroding	Timolinoa	
Action HI S -24	Provide incentive	s for eligible non-profits	support Agency	cluding home	owners to adapt to risks thro	uah	
structural and nons	structural retrofittir	ig.	and private criticos, in			ugn	
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass	Movements, Earthqua	ake, Severe Weather, F	lood			
New & Existing	6, 8, 9, 13	Building & Planning	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing	
Action HLS -25-	Support the Count	ty-wide initiatives identi	fied in Volume I of the I	nazard mitigat	tion plan.		
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Tsunami	Movements, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Dam Failu	re, Severe W	eather, Flood, Drought, Clima	ite Change,	
New & Existing	1, 2, 12	City Manager's Office	N/A	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing	
Action HLS -26-	Ongoing support	of LHMP maintenance	program.				
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Tsunami	Movements, Wildfire,	Earthquake, Dam Failu	re, Severe W	eather, Flood, Drought, Clima	ite Change,	
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 10, 11, 12	City Manager's Office	CCFD, San Mateo County	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing	
Action HLS -27 -	Develop and imp	lement a program to ca	apture perishable data a	after significar	nt events (e.g. high water mar	ks,	
preliminary damag hazard mitigation p	e estimates, dama olan.	age photos) to support	future mitigation efforts	including the	implementation and maintena	ance of the	
Hazards Mitigated:	Climate Change	e/Sea Level Rise, Floo	d, Severe Weather, Tsu	unami		I	
New & Existing	1, 5, 6, 7, 8	Flood & Sea Level	County, all	Medium	General Funds	Short-Term	
		RISE DISI. (FOLKRD)	including				
			Hillsborough				
Action HLS -28— into land use plann their General Plans	Action HLS -28— Incorporate consideration of the FEMA 100-year tide and sea level rise, and climate change-driven extreme storms, into land use planning and shoreline development. This includes new policies by local jurisdictions, and County and City actions regarding their General Plans, Climate-related Plans, and the development applications.						
New & Existing		EVEL RISE, FIOU		Low	Conoral Fund Private	Ongoing	
	9, 13, 14	FJERRD	municipalities including	LOW	Developer, Town Capital Project Funding	Ongoing	
			Hillsborough		.,		
Action HLS -29 — generators, tide ga	Continue to identities, stream gages	tify and plan upgrades of s, open channel, and cu	of utility systems, equip Ilvert/pipeline infrastruc	ment, and cri ture.	tical facilities, including pump	stations,	
Hazards Mitigated:		e/Sea Level Rise, Floor	d, Severe Weather	Madiuma	Tay Fundad Flood Zanaa	Onnaina	
New & Existing	2, 0, 7, 0	FSLKKD	municipalities including Hillsborough, San Mateo Resource Conservation District	Medium	State Grants, Federal Grants (FEMA BRIC/HMGP)	Ungoing	
Action HLS -30— elements into haza	Support green inf	rastructure projects that the projects where feasible.	t enhance resiliency to	natural disas	ters and incorporate green de	sign	
Hazards Mitigated:	Climate Chang	e/Sea Level Rise, Land	Islide, Flood, Severe W	eather, Droug	ght		
New & Existing	2, 6, 7, 8, 14	County, C/CAG	FSLRRD, all	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood Zones,	Ongoing	
		(Action will be jointly implemented by both agencies)	municipalities including Hillsborough, San Mateo Resource		Property/Vehicle Fees, Stormwater Fees, State Grants (Caltrans, CA DWR), Federal Grants		
			Conservation District		(EPA), City Capital Project Funding		

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Obiectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a		
Action HLS -31 -	- Improve stormwa	ater drainage to alleviat	e repeated localized flo	oding, especi	ally storm drain systems conr	nected to		
FSLRRD Flood Zone channels and infrastructure.								
Hazards Mitigated:	Climate Change	e/Sea Level Rise, Floo	d, Severe Weather					
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 7, 8	FSLRRD	All municipalities including Hillsborough, County	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood Zones, Property/Vehicle Fees, Stormwater Fees, State Grants (Caltrans, CA DWR), EPA Grants, City Capital Project Funding	Ongoing		
Action HLS -32-	Plan, design, and	implement long-term r	esilience to sea level ris	se, extreme st	torms, and coastal erosion for	culverts,		
roadways, and brid Priorities Report.	lges in the vicinity	of other flood protectio	n projects, including as	sets identified	I in the Caltrans District 4 Ada	aptation		
Hazards Mitigated:	Climate Change	e/Sea Level Rise, Land	Islide, Severe Weather					
New & Existing	2, 4, 6, 7, 8, 13	FSLRRD	Caltrans, County, all municipalities including Hillsborough, San Mateo Resource Conservation District	Medium	State Grants (Caltrans), Federal Grants (FEMA BRIC/HMGP)	Ongoing		
Action HLS -33 — FSLRRD projects.	- Identify and purs	ue strategies to enhand	ce recycled water infras	tructure planr	ning/implementation in the vic	inity of		
Hazards Mitigated:	Drought					1		
New & Existing	1, 6, 7, 8	FSLRRD	County, all municipalities including Hillsborough, San Mateo Resource Conservation District	Medium	State Grants (CA Resilience Challenge, CA DWR, Prop 68), Federal Grants (EPA, FEMA BRIC/HMGP)	Ongoing		
Action - Upgrade and exp - Conduct commun	HLS -34— Impro and the countywic nity flood preparati	ve community response le flood early warning s on, education, and reco	e to flood emergencies system. overv outreach.	in various wa	ys, including but not limited to):		
Hazards Mitigated:	Climate Change	e/Sea Level Rise, Floo	d, Severe Weather					
New & Existing	2, 3, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11	FSLRRD	County, all municipalities including Hillsborough	Low	State Grant (CA DWR SWERG)	Short-term		
Action HLS -35 — Advance the long-term resilience of Hillsborough and Portola Valley to extreme storms, as well as provide environmental, recreation, and community/connectivity enhancements where possible. This may include regional stormwater capture projects that also benefit downstream, flood-prone communities.								
Now & Evicting		FSI RRD San Mateo	Hillshorough Portola	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood Zones	Ongoing		
NEW & EXISTING	2, 4, 0, 7, 0, 14	Resource Conservation District (Action will be jointly implemented by both agencies)	Valley, C/CAG	Medium	Property/Vehicle Fees, Stormwater Fees, State Grants (Caltrans, CA DWR), Federal Grants (EPA), City Capital Project Funding	Ungoing		
a. Short-term = C no completion	Completion within to date	5 years; Long-term = C	ompletion within 10 yea	ars; Ongoing=	Continuing new or existing p	rogram with		

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 11-15. Mitigation Action Priority									
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	ls Project Grant- Eligible?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Outside Funding Source Pursuit Priority ^a	
1	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	
2	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
3	3	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
4	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
5	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Medium	
6	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	
7	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	High	
8	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	High	
9	4	Low	High	No	Yes	Yes	Low	Low	
10	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Medium	
11	8	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
12	3	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
13	7	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
14	9	Low	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	
15	8	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
16	6	High	High	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
17	4	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Medium	Low	
18	8	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Medium	Low	
19	6	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Medium	Low	
20	5	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	High	High	
21	6	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
22	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
23	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	No	Medium	Low	
24	4	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Low	Low	
25	3	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
26	6	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	
27	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	
28	9	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	
29	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	
30	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	
31	6	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	
32	6	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	
33	4	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	
34	7	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Low	
35	6	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

	Table 11-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions							
			Action Addr	essing Hazaro	l, by Mitigatio	n Type ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building
High-Risk Hazar	ds							
Landslide/ Mass Movements	HLS-2, HLS-3, HLS-13, HLS-15, HLS-23, HLS-24, HLS-25, HLS-26, HLS-30, HLS-32	HLS-1, HLS-2, HLS-6, HLS-15, HLS-17, HLS-23, HLS-24	HLS-13, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23, HLS-24	HLS-2, HLS-15, HLS-23, HLS-32	HLS-6, HLS-12, HLS-23	HLS-1, HLS-17, HLS-20, HLS-23, HLS-24, HLS-30	HLS-23, HLS-30, HLS-32	HLS-3, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23
Wildfire	HLS-2, HLS-3, HLS-7, HLS-13, HLS-16, HLS-15, HLS-16, HLS-18, HLS-23, HLS-25, HLS-26	HLS-2, HLS-6, HLS-7, HLS-15, HLS-16, HLS-19, HLS-23	HLS-13, HLS-14, HLS-16, HLS-21, HLS-23	HLS-2, HLS-7, HLS-15, HLS-16, HLS-18, HLS-23	HLS-6, HLS-7, HLS-12, HLS-16, HLS-19, HLS-23	HLS-16, HLS-20, HLS-23	HLS-16, HLS-18, HLS-23	HLS-3, HLS-14, HLS-16, HLS-21, HLS-23
Earthquake	HLS-2, HLS-3, HLS-8, HLS-9, HLS-13, HLS-15, HLS-23, HLS-24, HLS-25, HLS-26	HLS-1, HLS-2, HLS-9, HLS-15, HLS-17, HLS-23, HLS-24	HLS-13, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23, HLS-24	HLS-2, HLS-15, HLS-23	HLS-12, HLS-23	HLS-1, HLS-8, HLS-9, HLS-17, HLS-20, HLS-23, HLS-24	HLS-23	HLS-3, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23
Medium-Risk Ha	zards							
Dam Failure	HLS-2, HLS-3, HLS-13, HLS-15, HLS-23, HLS-25, HLS-26	HLS-2, HLS-6, HLS-15, HLS-23	HLS-13, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23	HLS-2, HLS-15, HLS-23	HLS-6, HLS-12, HLS-23	HLS-20, HLS-23	HLS-23	HLS-3, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23
Severe Weather/ Extreme Weather	HLS-2, HLS-3, HLS-8, HLS-9, HLS-10, HLS-11, HLS-13, HLS-15, HLS-16, HLS-23, HLS-24, HLS-25, HLS-26, HLS-27, HLS-28, HLS-30, HLS-32	HLS-1, HLS-2, HLS-6, HLS-9, HLS-10, HLS-15, HLS-16, HLS-23, HLS-24	HLS-13, HLS-14, HLS-16, HLS-21, HLS-23, HLS-24, HLS-34	HLS-2, HLS-10, HLS-11, HLS-15, HLS-16, HLS-23, HLS-32, HLS-35	HLS-6, HLS-12, HLS-16, HLS-23	HLS-1, HLS-8, HLS-9, HLS-16, HLS-20, HLS-23, HLS-24, HLS-27, HLS-30, HLS-31	HLS-10, HLS-11, HLS-23, HLS-27, HLS-28, HLS-29, HLS-30, HLS-31, HLS-32, HLS-35	HLS-3, HLS-14, HLS-16, HLS-21, HLS-23, HLS-27, HLS-28, HLS-29, HLS-34

	Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building
Low-Risk Hazard	ds							
Flood	HLS-2, HLS-3, HLS-4, HLS-8, HLS-10, HLS-13, HLS-15, HLS-21, HLS-22, HLS-23, HLS-24, HLS-25, HLS-26, HLS-27, HLS-28, HLS-30, HLS-32	HLS-2, HLS-6, HLS-10, HLS-15, HLS-21, HLS-21, HLS-22, HLS-23, HLS-24	HLS-4, HLS-13, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-22, HLS-23, HLS-24, HLS-34	HLS-2, HLS-4, HLS-10, HLS-15, HLS-23, HLS-32, HLS-35	HLS-6, HLS-12, HLS-23	HLS-8, HLS-17, HLS-20, HLS-23, HLS-24, HLS-27, HLS-29, HLS-30, HLS-31	HLS-10, HLS-23, HLS-27, HLS-28, HLS-29, HLS-30, HLS-31, HLS-32, HLS-35	HLS-3, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23, HLS-27, HLS-28, HLS-34
Drought	HLS-2, HLS-3, HLS-10, HLS-11, HLS-13, HLS-15, HLS-18, HLS-23, HLS-25, HLS-26, HLS-30, HLS-33	HLS-2, HLS-15, HLS-19, HLS-23	HLS-10, HLS-13, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23	HLS-2, HLS-10, HLS-11, HLS-15, HLS-18, HLS-23	HLS-12, HLS-19, HLS-23	HLS-20, HLS-23, HLS-30	HLS-10, HLS-11, HLS-18, HLS-23, HLS-30, HLS-33	HLS-3, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23
Sea Level Rise/ Climate Change	HLS-2, HLS-3, HLS-5, HLS-13, HLS-15, HLS-23, HLS-25, HLS-26, HLS-27, HLS-28, HLS-30, HLS-32	HLS-2, HLS-15, HLS-23	HLS-13, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23, HLS-34	HLS-2, HLS-15, HLS-23, HLS-32	HLS-12, HLS-23	HLS-20, HLS-23, HLS-27, HLS-29, HLS-30, HLS-31	HLS-5, HLS-23, HLS-27, HLS-28, HLS-29, HLS-30, HLS-31, HLS-32, HLS-34	HLS-3, HLS-5, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23, HLS-27, HLS-28
Tsunami	HLS-2, HLS-3, HLS-13, HLS-15, HLS-23, HLS-25, HLS-26, HLS-27	HLS-2, HLS-6, HLS-15, HLS-23	HLS-13, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23	HLS-2, HLS-15, HLS-23	HLS-6, HLS-12, HLS-23	HLS-20, HLS-23, HLS-27	HLS-23, HLS-27	HLS-3, HLS-14, HLS-21, HLS-23, HLS-27

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

11.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 11-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 11-17. Local Public Outreach							
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved					
LHMP Survey #1 – advertised in weekly town e-announcements	March - April	~ 20					
LHMP Survey #1 – advertised in weekly town e-announcements	June	~20					
LHMP Public meeting	3/25/2021	Unknown					
Neighborfest Annual Preparedness Event	9/22/2019, 9/12/2020	800, 82					
Hillsborough neighborhood network	Ongoing	~500					
CERT Program (monthly newsletter)	Ongoing	165					
Assemblyman Kevin Mullins Events: (1) Are You Ready? (2) Wildfire Preparedness	10/29/2020, 5/26/2021	424, 433					
Firewise USA Group	Ongoing	~14					

11.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **Town of Hillsborough Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **Town of Hillsborough Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- Town of Hillsborough General Plan (Housing Element) Existing General Plan was reviewed to identify opportunities for action plan integration.
- **Town of Hillsborough Climate Action Plan** The Climate Action Plan was reviewed to identify opportunities for plan integration.
- **Bay Area Earthquake Plan** The Bay Area Earthquake Plan is a component of the Concept of Operations for the joint state and federal response to a catastrophic incident in California.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.































12. CITY OF MENLO PARK

12.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Brian Henry Assistant Public Works Director 701 Laurel Avenue Menlo Park, CA 94025 650-330-6799 E-mail: bphenry@menlopark.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Chuck Andrews Assistant Community Development Director 701 Laurel Avenue Menlo Park, CA 94025 650-330-6757 E-mail: chandrews@menlopark.org

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 12-1.

Table 12-1. Local Willigation Planning Team Members						
Name	Title					
Chuck Andrews	Assistant Community Development Director					
Calvin Chan	Senior Planner					
Joanna Chen	Management Analyst I					
Brian Henry	Assistant Public Works Director					
Chris Lamm	Assistant Public Works Director					
Scott Mackdanz	Police Dept. Administrative Sergeant					
Justin Murphy	Deputy City Manager					
Nicole Nagaya	Public Works Director					
Ryan Zollicoffer	Fire District Disaster Response Manager					

12.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

12.2.1 Location and Features

Menlo Park is a city of beautiful, tree-lined neighborhoods and active commercial districts. Located conveniently between the major metropolitan areas of San Francisco and San Jose, Menlo Park is home to over 35,000 residents in its approximately 19 square miles. The stunning natural surroundings of the city afford views of the San Francisco Bay to the east and the Pacific Coast Range to the west.

The city's proximity to Stanford University and Menlo College provide a multitude of academic, cultural, and athletic event opportunities. Located in the heart of Menlo Park is a downtown featuring unique and upscale shops and restaurants. Known worldwide as the "Capital of Venture Capital," Menlo Park is well situated to benefit

from and shape new technologies originating from Silicon Valley. The city is home to such notable employers as SRI, Facebook, and Pacific Biosciences.

The City of Menlo Park climate is mild during the summer when temperatures tend to be in the 60's and cool during the winter when temperatures tend to be in the 50's. The warmest month of the year is July with an average maximum temperature of 78 degrees Fahrenheit, while the coldest month of the year is December with an average minimum temperature of 39 degrees Fahrenheit. On average, there are 265 sunny days per year with 56 days of measurable precipitation.

1.2.2 History

In 1854, Menlo Park received its official name when two Irishmen, Dennis J. Oliver and D. C. McGlynn, whose wives were sisters, purchased 1,700 acres (some sources say it was 640 acres) bordering County Road, now El Camino Real, and built two houses with a common entrance.

Across the drive, they erected a huge wooden gate with tall arches on which the name of their estate was printed in foot-high letters: "MENLO PARK," with the date, August 1854, underneath it. When the railroad came through in 1863, this station had no name, it was just the end of the line, but it needed a designation. During a discussion about the choice of a name, a railroad official looked over at the gates and decided that "MENLO PARK" would be appropriate, and so the name was officially adopted. This station is now California State Landmark No. 955, the oldest California station in continuous operation.

On March 23, 1874, Menlo Park became the second incorporated city in San Mateo County, although only for a short time. The purpose was to provide a quick way to raise money for road repairs.

This incorporation, which included Fair Oaks (later Atherton) and Ravenswood (later East Palo Alto) lasted only until 1876. Little occurred to change the rural flavor of the community until the first World War when, almost overnight, Menlo Park was populated by 43,000 soldiers in training at Camp Fremont, on land which extended from Valparaiso Avenue to San Francisquito Creek, and El Camino Real to the Alameda de las Pulgas, with the Base Hospital and other facilities on Willow Road where the Veterans Administration Medical Center now stands.

Following the war, enough service center activity remained to prompt an effort to reincorporate Menlo Park in 1923 with much the same boundaries as the earlier town. Incorporation planning involving Menlo Park and Atherton culminated in a dramatic race to the County Courthouse to file differing plans. Atherton representatives arrived only minutes before those from Menlo Park who had wished to include Atherton in their plans. Final incorporation of Menlo Park took place in November 1927.

12.2.2 Governing Body Format

Menlo Park is a general law city under the State of California and operates under the Council-Manager form of government. The City Council is the city's governing body for the City of Menlo Park. In general, municipal elections, its members are elected from five districts to four-year overlapping terms. The Mayor and Mayor Pro Tempore each serve one-year terms and are selected annually by the City Council at its first regular meeting in December. The Mayor, who represents the City of Menlo Park at ceremonial and public functions, also serves as the presiding officer of the City Council.

The City Council appoints the City Manager and the City Attorney. The City is organized into operating departments including Administrative Services, City Manager's Office, Community Development, Library and Community Services, Police, and Public Works. The City of Menlo Park assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the Community Development, Public Works, and Police Departments will oversee its implementation.

12.3 CURRENT TRENDS

12.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of Menlo Park as of January 2020 was 35,254 persons. Since 2016, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.99 percent.

12.3.2 Development

Table 12-2 summarizes development trends in the performance period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 12-2. Recent and Expected Future Development Trends						
Criterion	Response					
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan? If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures.	No					
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan? If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses. If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas?	None The City has had interest from the West Menlo Park triangle area to be annexed by the City. The area represents approximately 14 acres of residential property. The City does not believe the area has been identified as any type of hazard risk, but additional investigations would be required prior to annexation. Reference Staff Report 11/5/2019 (19-230-CC).					
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas	Yes The City has ongoing development in both the Bayfront and Downtown Areas of Menlo Park. Projects in the Bayfront Area must comply with Special Hazard Flood Area construction requirements as required by City ordinance. Development Projects can be found at: <u>https://www.menlopark.org/projects</u> . The City is in the process of updating the General Plan Housing Element for the planning period of 2023-2031, which is expected to identify additional areas for residential development.					
How many permits for new construction were issued in your jurisdiction since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan?		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
	Single-Family	19	32	44	54	50
	Multi-Family	1	10	1	3	3
	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	1	5	7	8	7
	Total	21	47	52	65	60

Criterion	Response
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: 74 Landslide: 0 High Liquefaction Areas: 162 Tsunami Inundation Area: 0 Wildfire Risk Areas: 0 Comments: There are 56 new-construction permits in both the Special Flood Hazard Area and High Liquefaction Area
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	Not applicable – There is no more land to be developed in non-hazard areas.

12.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 12-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 12-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 12-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 12-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 12-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 12-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 12-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 12-10.
| | Table 12-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability | | | | | | | |
|-------------|--|--|---------------------------------|---------------------------|-------------------|--|--|--|
| | Other Jurisdiction Integration | | | | | | | |
| | | Local Authority | Authority | State Mandated | Opportunity? | | | |
| Codes, Ord | linances, & Requirements | | | | | | | |
| Building Co | ode | Yes | No | Yes | No | | | |
| Comment: | Comment: Menlo Park Municipal Code, Title 12, CA Building Code 2019. The Community Development, Building and Planning Divisions, adopted the code on 12/17/2019 and it became effective on 1/1/2020. | | | | | | | |
| Zoning Cod | le | Yes | No | No | Yes | | | |
| Comment: | <i>t:</i> Menlo Park Municipal Code, Title 16. The Community Development, Planning Division, implements this code. The Zoning Ordinance was adopted in November 2016. | | | | | | | |
| Subdivisio | ns | Yes | No | No | No | | | |
| Comment: | Menlo Park Municipal Code, Title 15,
Works, Engineering Division, implement | adopted in 1977. The
ent this code. | e Community Developme | nt, Planning Division, a | nd the Public | | | |
| Stormwate | r Management | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | | | |
| Comment: | Menlo Park Municipal Code, Title 7.42 | 2, adopted in 1994. S | Stormwater Management I | Program complies with | the California | | | |
| | Regional Water Quality Control Board | San Francisco Bay | Region Municipal Region | al Stormwater NPDES | Permit. Updated | | | |
| | permit requirements were last issued | in November 2015, a | and further updates are cu | urrently being considere | ed and are | | | |
| | expected to be adopted in late 2021 of | r early 2022. The Pu | ublic Works, Engineering & | & Maintenance Division | s, and the City | | | |
| | Manager's Office, Sustainability Progr | ams, implement this | permit. | | | | | |
| Post-Disas | ter Recovery | Yes | No | No | Yes | | | |
| Comment: | t: The City does not have a specific Municipal Code or ordinance for Post Disaster Recovery. The City activates the emergency | | | | | | | |
| | operations center for oversight and tasks related to recovery actions and activities working alongside partner agencies. The | | | | | | | |
| | City Emergency Operation Plan addresses establishing a Recovery Task Force to commence planning for transition to long | | | | | | | |
| | term recovery. The City is also working with the County on turning the Countywide Debris Management Plan into a stand- | | | | | | | |
| | alone junsuictional annex. The City will align its recovery actions with the National and State Disaster Recovery Framework
Plan | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | Menlo Park Municipal Code Chapter 2 | 2.44. Emergency Ser | rvices: | | | | | |
| | https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/M | /lenloPark/#!/html/Me | enloPark02/MenloPark024 | 14.html | | | | |
| Real Estate | Disclosure | No | No | Yes | No | | | |
| Comment: | California Civil Code Section 1103 | | | | | | | |
| | https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces | /codes_displaySecti | on.xhtml?sectionNum=11 | 03.&lawCode=CIV | | | | |
| Growth Ma | nagement | Yes | No | No | Yes | | | |
| Comment: | : Between 2015 and 2020, Menlo Park saw a population increase of 5.4 percent, compared to a 1.5 percent increase | | | | | | | |
| | countywide. During this time period, the | ne number of house | holds in Menlo Park increa | ased by 5.6 percent, co | mpared to a 1.5 | | | |
| | percent increase countywide. Average | e persons per house | hold remained relatively the | ne same for both Menlo | Park and | | | |
| | countywide, with Menlo Park having 2 | 2.64 persons per hou | sehold and 2.88 persons | per household countyw | vide in 2020 (CA | | | |
| | Department of Finance, E-5 Report). | | | | | | | |
| | According to the According of Day A | raa Cavaramanta' (/ | | inations for the nine as | untion that | | | |
| | comprise the Bay Area region, betwee | rea Governments (rand 2020) to | ADAG) Fidil Day Alea pluj | A 3 percent and total bo | | | | |
| | increased 4.4 percent Average perso | in 2013 and 2020, it | mained the same during t | his time period with 2 | 69 nersons ner | | | |
| | household (ABAG Projections 2040) | | mained the same during t | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | The city's development pipeline includ | les approximately 3. | 878 residential units, 4.9 r | million square feet of of | fice space, | | | |
| | 317,000 square feet of retail space, 4 | 0,000 square feet of | school space, and 642 ho | otel rooms (December 2 | 2020). | | | |
| Site Plan R | eview | Yes | No | No | No | | | |
| Comment: | The Building Division of Community D | evelopment reviews | all site plans for conformation | ance to the Menlo Park | Municipal Code, | | | |
| | Title 12. The Planning Division of Con | nmunity Developmer | nt reviews all site plans for | r conformance to the M | enlo Park | | | |
| | Municipal Code, Title 15, and Title 16 | . The Engineering Di | ivision of the Public Works | s Department reviews s | ite plans for all | | | |
| | projects for conformance to the Menlo | Park Municipal Cod | le, Title 7. | | | | | |

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?					
Environmental Protection	Yes	No	No	Yes					
Comment: The City has several ordinances and	t: The City has several ordinances and policies related to environmental protection:								
 In 2015, the Integrated Pest Mar free 	 In 2015, the Integrated Pest Management Policy was updated. Currently, all City parks are herbicide- and pesticide- free 								
 In January 2020 the City adopted 	 In January 2020, the City adopted reach codes for new construction to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from the 								
building sector and to encourage	building sector and to encourage the use of renewable and clean energy. Menlo Park residents receive energy from								
Peninsula Clean Energy, which	Peninsula Clean Energy, which provides a minimum of 50% renewable energy and 90% greenhouse gas (carbon) free								
electricity at a cost slightly less t	electricity at a cost slightly less than PG&E. Electrifying buildings would maximize the community's renewable power								
available and reduce GHG emis	available and reduce GHG emissions by slowly phasing out the use of natural gas.								
The City's Climate Action Plan w	as adopted in July 2	020 and several of its goa	Is are related to enviro	nmental					
protection. I wo of the goals are	related to electric vel	hicles: to promote the pure	chase of electric vehicle	es and increase					
EV charging stations in multi-tan	nily and commercial i	buildings; and to reduce gi	reennouse gas emission	City floot vobiolog					
Another goal is to eliminate the u	use of natural das fro	m municipal operations. A	s a pilot program in 20	121 Public Works					
maintenance staff is in the proce	ess of converting gas no	-powered maintenance eq	uipment to electric to r	educe noise					
pollution and greenhouse gas er	nissions.								
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	No	No	Yes					
Comment: Menlo Park Municipal Code, Title 12.	42, adopted in 1988	and amended in 2016. Th	e Public Works Depart	ment, Engineering					
Division, implements this Code section	n.		•						
Emergency Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes					
Comment: Menlo	Park Municipal Code	e, Chapter 2.44 Emergend	y Services						
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/I	MenloPark/html/Menl	oPark02/MenloPark0244.	html						
Climate Change	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes					
Comment: The 2030 Climate Action Plan (CAP) was adopted in July 2020. One of the CAP goals and City Council 2021 work plan									
priority projects is to develop a climate adaption plan to address sea level rise and flooding. Staff plans to:									
Opdate the Safety Element in Mi	 Update the Safety Element in Menio Park's General Plan to bring it into compliance with recent changes in General Plan law, including SB 379 								
Await notification on the SAFER	Await notification on the SAFER Bay grant application from the FEMA Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities program								
 Continue progress on identifying 	 Continue progress on identifying funding and partnership opportunities for implementing SAFER Bay; and 								
Continue to participate in and me	onitor with San Mate	o County Flood and Sea L	evel Rise District.						
Planning Documents		•••							
General Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes					
Is the plan compliant with Assembly Bill 2140?	Yes	monlonark arg/146/Conor	ol Dian. The Open Spe	an/Concervation					
Noise and Safety Elements (adopted	Sed al. https://www. I May 21, 2013) addr	memopark.org/140/Generation	urenaredness snecifi	ice/Conservation,					
(Safety Goals, Policies, and Impleme	(Safety Goals, Policies, and Implementing Programs) and Section VII (Safety Rackground). The Plan "provides policies and								
standards for the type, location, inten	standards for the type, location, intensity and design of development in areas of potential hazards" (Safety Goal S1).								
	, 0		()	,					
Other General Plan Elements include: Land Use and Circulation Elements (adopted November 29, 2016) and the 2015-2023									
Housing Element (adopted April 1, 20	Housing Element (adopted April 1, 2014). The City is in the process of updating the Housing Element for the period of 2023-								
2031 and will concurrently prepare updates to the Satety Element and the preparation of a new Environmental Justice									
Canital Improvement Plan	Vaa	No	No	Vaa					
Capital Improvement Plan How often is the plan undated? Appually	Tes	INO	NU	Tes					
Comment: The Capital Improvement Plan involves the implementation of infrastructure projects, such as the upgrade of storm water									
pumping facilities and the construction of emergency wells. to improve the City's resiliency to hazards.									
Planning is made on a 5 year basis, v	Planning is made on a 5 year basis, with annual updates.								

			Other Jurisdiction		Integration			
		Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?			
Disaster De	bris Management Plan	Yes		No	Yes			
Comment:	I ne City is also working with the County on turning their Countywide Debris Management Plan into a stand-alone debris							
	management annex for Mento Fark. According to the City's halfchise agreement, Recology findy provide emergency							
	a major accident, disruption, or natura	al calamity.	ang, composting, recycling	inaterials, or dispositi	y soliu waste altei			
Floodplain	or Watershed Plan	No	Yes	No	No			
Comment:	The City maintains FEMA floodplain n	naps and provides ir	formation related to flood	zones to the public wh	en requested.			
Stormwater	r Plan	Yes	Yes	No	Yes			
Comment:	The engineering division is in the proc	cess of updating its 2	2003 stormwater master pl	an. The plan, when co	mpleted, will model			
	the entire City storm drain network and identify areas vulnerable to localized flooding and identify capital projects to mitigate							
	the flooding in these areas. The plan also identifies measures to comply with State mandated requirements under the							
	NPDES permitting requirements.							
Urban Wate	er Management Plan	Yes	Yes	Yes	No			
Comment:	The City will be updating its 2015 UW	MP with a 2020 UW	MP by July 1, 2021. The p	blan additionally identifi	es water			
	conservation measures that will be tal	ken in the event of a	drought with 'stages' iden	itified at 10%, 20%, 30	%, 40%, 50%, and			
Labitat Car		No	No	No	No			
	While the City does not have a Habita	INU Int Concentration Plan	the City amonded its Her	INU itaga Trag Ordinanga i	in 2010 and			
Comment.	implemented it on July 1 2020 to hel	n preserve the Menl	o Park's urban canony. In	2021 Menlo Park has	heen recognized			
	as a Tree City USA for 21 years and a	as a member of the	Arbor Day Foundation's "G	Frowth" group for 5 yea	rs The City also			
	partners with Canopy, a nonprofit orga	anization, to help pla	ant street trees around the	neighborhoods to prov	vide shade, habitat			
	for the wildlife, and add beautification in the area.							
	As part of the South Bay Salt Pond Restoration project, the Ravenswood Ponds Levee Maintenance and Habitat							
	Enhancement project is currently underway and will enhance the habitat environment at the Refuge's Ravenswood Ponds,							
	on lands south of Bedwell Bayfront Pa	ark.						
	The Open Space/Conservation Eleme	ont of the Coneral Pl	an combines the Open Sr	ace and Conservation	Elements required			
	hy State law. Open Space issues inclu	ude policies and pro	grams to maintain expand	and improve Menlo P	ark's open space			
	and recreation areas (including parks)) while Conservation	institutes policies and pro	arams to conserve nat	tural resources.			
	Preservation of scenic, habitat, and recreational resources in Menlo Park is key to retaining the city's special sense of place.							
	Among its many natural features, Menlo Park is known for its high-quality active and passive recreation areas, including							
	Bedwell Bayfront Park, which is a regional draw. Menlo Park highly values ongoing restoration and conservation efforts in the							
	Baylands, which provide habitat for a wide variety of plants and animals in the Don Edwards National Wildlife Refuge.							
	The Zoning Code (Municipal Code Tit	le 16) includes an O	pen Space and Conserva	tion District (Chapter 1	6.48). The purpose			
	and intent of this district is:							
	I o protect the public health, satety and weitare							
	To protect and preserve open space iand as a limited and valuable resource To protect and evailability for the following: As agricultural land, seenia land, representing land, seenia land, representing land, seenia la							
	or natural resource land: for	the containment of	urban sprawl and the stru	cturing of urban develo	inment and for the			
	retention of land in its natural or near natural state to protect life and property in the community from the bazards of							
	fire, flood, and seismic activity; and							
	To coordinate with and carr	y out federal, state, i	regional, county and city o	pen space plans.				
Economic I	Development Plan	Yes	No	No	No			
Comment:	The City's Economic Development Pla	an (adopted July 207	15) can be accessed at:					
	https://www.menlopark.org/1123/Ecor	nomic-development-	<u>plan-and-goals</u> . The Plan	consists of three main	elements: a			
	Comparative Economic Advantages S	Study (CEAS), the G	oals, and a series of Strate	egic Policy Recommen	dations towards			
	implementing the Goals. The CEAS la	ays the toundation fo	r the Economic Developm	ient Plan by outlining N	Ienlo Park's			
	economic advantages, opportunities,	and challenges in re	iation to other similar cities	s in the Silicon Valley r	egion and the			
	DIVAUEI SAILFTAILUSCU DAY ATEA.							

Doreline Management Plan Yes No State Mandaced Opportunity Comment: The City of Menio Park shoreline is subject to San Francisco Bay Conservation & Development Commission regulations. The City does not have a Shoreline Management Plan; however, the City has several ongoing projects to help manage the nisks associated with the shoreline along the Bayfront Canal-Atherton Channel and the former salt ponds. • The SAFER Bay project objective is to protect against 100-year flood, remove properties from FEMA floodplain, sustain marsh habitat, and facilitate marsh restoration. The plan identifies protection measures for 3-feet of sea level rise. • The FEMA Sulfing Resilience Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant project would provide treve improvements a onigh the majority of Menio Park storeline. The source s150 cares of tomer salt ponds. • The EFMA Sulfing Resilience Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant project would provide treve improvements and ing the majority of Menio Park storeline. The source s150 cares of tomer salt ponds. The avarded, the estimated project timeline is five years, including design and construction. • The Bayfront Canal and Atherton Channel Flood Management and Restoration project is anticipated to begin construction this year (2021) and involves installing underground pipes connecting Bayfront Canal to the Ravenswood Ponds to reduce the impact of flooding. • One of City Council's 2021 work plan project is to develop a climate adaption plan. Community Wildfire Protection Plan No No				Other Jurisdiction		Integration				
Comment: The City of Menio Park shoreline is subject to San Francisco Bay Conservation & Development Commission regulations. Tes The SAFER Bay project objective is to protect against 100-year flood, remove properties from FEMM floodplain, sustain marsh habitat, and facilitate marsh restoration. The plan identifies protection measures for 3-feed of saa level rise. The SAFER Bay project objective is to protect against 100-year flood, remove properties from FEMM floodplain, sustain marsh habitat, and facilitate marsh restoration. The plan identifies protection measures for 3-feed of sea level rise. The FEMA Building Resilience Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant project would provide level improvements along the majority of Menio Park's shoreline. The grant awards up to \$20 million, but the project cost estimate is \$56 million, but the project cost estimate is \$50 million, but the project is anticipated to begin construction this year (2021) and involves installing underground pipes connecting Bayfront Canal to the Ravenswood Ponds to reduce the impact of flooding. Community Wildiffe Protection Plan No No No No Community Wildiffe Protection Plan inder projection services to the City of Menio Park. The California Department of Forestry and File Pr	Charalina I	Acres are mant Dian	Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?				
The City does not have a Shoreline along the Bayfront Canal-Atherton Channel and the former sait ponds. • The SAFER Bay project objective is to protect against 100-year flood, remove properties from FEMA floodplain, sustain marsh habitat, and facilitate marsh restoration. The plan identifies protection measures for 3-feet of sea level rise. • The FEMA Building Resilience Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant project would provide leve improvements along the majority of Meno Park's shoreline. The grant awards up to \$20 million, but the project cost estimate is \$56 million, including Resilience Sign and construction. • The BAFfont Canal and Atherton Channel Flood Management and Restoration project is antiopated to begin construction this year (2021) and involves installating underground pipes connecting Bayfront Canal to the Ravenswood Ponds to reduce the impact of flooding. • One of City Council's 2021 work plan project is to develop a climate adaption plan. Community Wildfre Protection Plan No No No No Community Wildfre Protection Plan No No No No No Community Wildfre Protection Plan No No No No No No No Community Wildfre Protection Plan No No No No No No Community Wildfre Protection Plan No No No No No No No No No <th>Comment:</th> <th colspan="8"><i>mment:</i> The City of Menlo Park shoreline is subject to San Francisco Bay Conservation & Development Commission regulations.</th>	Comment:	<i>mment:</i> The City of Menlo Park shoreline is subject to San Francisco Bay Conservation & Development Commission regulations.								
The SAFER Bay project objective is to protect against 100-year flood, remove properties from FEMA floodplain, sustain marsh habitat, and facilitate marsh restoration. The plan identifies protection measures for 3-feed sea level rise. The FEMA floodplain, Resilinee Infrastructure and Communities (REIC) grant project would provide leve improvements along the majority of Menio Park's shoreline. The grant awards up to \$50 million, but the project exist sises improvements along the majority of Menio Park's shoreline. The grant awards up to \$50 million, but the project sis anticipated to begin construction this year, (2021) and involves installing underground help provide flood protection and sea level rise resiliency while preserving habitat restoration of over 550 acres of former salt ponds. If awarded, the estimated project timeline is five years, including design and construction. The Bayfront Canal and Atheton Channel Flood Management and Restoration project is anticipated to begin construction this year (2021) work plan project is to develop a climate adaption plan. Community Wildfifer Protection flooding. One of City Council's 2021 work plan project is to develop a climate adaption plan. Forest Management Plan No No No No No Comment: The Henio Park Fire District provides fire suppression and fire protection services to the City of Menio Park as being in an area known to be considered as a "wildland urban interface" environment. The Fire District boundaries do not warrant a Community Wildfifer Protection Fire Ordection Plan. Comment: The Parine District provides three supression and fire protection services to the City of Menio Park as being in an area known to be considered as a "wildland urban interface" environment. The Fire District boundaries do not warrant a Cortexito Management Plan. Yes No Yes Yes Comment: The purpose of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) is present researched strategies that will		The City does not have a Shoreline Management Plan; however, the City has several ongoing projects to help manage the risks associated with the shoreline along the Bayfront Canal-Atherton Channel and the former salt ponds.								
Community Wildfire Protection Plan No No No No Comment: The Fire District provides fire suppression and fire protection services to the City of Menlo Park. The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection does not acknowledge the City of Menlo Park as being in an area known to be considered as a "wildland urban interface" environment. The Fire District boundaries do not warrant a Community Wildfire Protection Plan. Forest Management Plan No No No No Comment: The Menlo Park Fire District provides fire suppression and fire protection services to the City of Menlo Park. The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (Cal Fire) does not acknowledge the City of Menlo Park as being in an area known to be considered as a "wildland urban interface" environment. The Fire District boundaries do not warrant a Forest Management Plan. Yes No Yes Yes Comment: The purpose of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) is to present researched strategies that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions originating in Menlo Park, based on the findings of the City's greenhouse gas emissions originating in Menlo Park, based on the findings of the City's greenhouse gas emissions originating in Menlo Park based area caroon by 2030. For 2021, one of the City Council adopted the 2030 Climate Action Plan (CAP) in July 2020 and approved amendments to it in April 2021. The CAP outlines six goals to reach zero carbon by 2030. For 2021, one of the City of Menlo Park is explore policy/program options to convert 95 percent of existing buildings to all-electric by 2030. The remaining CAP		 The SAFER Bay project objective is to protect against 100-year flood, remove properties from FEMA floodplain, sustain marsh habitat, and facilitate marsh restoration. The plan identifies protection measures for 3-feet of sea level rise. The FEMA Building Resilience Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant project would provide levee improvements along the majority of Menlo Park's shoreline. The grant awards up to \$50 million, but the project cost estimate is \$66 million, including matching funds from private partners. This would help provide flood protection and sea level rise resiliency while preserving habitat restoration of over 550 acres of former salt ponds. If awarded, the estimated project timeline is five years, including design and construction. The Bayfront Canal and Atherton Channel Flood Management and Restoration project is anticipated to begin construction this year (2021) and involves installing underground pipes connecting Bayfront Canal to the Ravenswood Ponds to reduce the impact of flooding. One of City Council's 2021 work plan project is to develop a climate adaption plan. 								
Comment: The Fire District provides fire suppression and fire protection services to the City of Menlo Park. The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection does not acknowledge the City of Menlo Park as being in an area known to be considered as a "wildland urban interface" environment. The Fire District boundaries do not warrant a Community Wildlife Protection Plan. Forest Management Plan No No No No No Comment: The Menlo Park Fire District provides fire suppression and fire protection services to the City of Menlo Park. The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (Cal Fire) does not acknowledge the City of Menlo Park as being in an area known to be considered as a "wildland urban interface" environment. The Fire District boundaries do not warrant a Forest Management Plan. Climate Action Plan Yes No Yes Yes Comment: The purpose of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) is to present researched strategies that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions originating in Menlo Park, based on the findings of the City's greenhouse gas emissions inventory analysis that is completed annually. The plan provides strategies that may be implemented over the next few years by the City, its residents, and its businesses. The CAP is updated every year as research continues to provide more emissions reduction data and as new technologies arise and economic conditions change. The Menlo Park City Council adopted the 2030 Climate Action Plan (CAP) in July 2020 and approved amendments to it in April 2021. The CAP outlines six goals to reach zero carbon by 2030. For 2021, one of the City Council priorities is to explore policy/program options	Community	Wildfire Protection Plan	No	No	No	No				
Forest Management Plan No No No No No Comment: The Menlo Park Fire District provides fire suppression and fire protection services to the City of Menlo Park. The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (Cal Fire) does not acknowledge the City of Menlo Park. The California Management Plan. Climate Action Plan Yes No Yes Yes Comment: The purpose of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) is to present researched strategies that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions originating in Menlo Park, based on the findings of the City's greenhouse gas emissions inventory analysis that is completed annually. The plan provides strategies that may be implemented over the next few years by the City, its residents, and its businesses. The CAP is updated every year as research continues to provide more emissions reduction data and as new technologies arise and economic conditions change. The Menlo Park City Council adopted the 2030 Climate Action Plan (CAP) in July 2020 and approved amendments to it in April 2021. The CAP outlines six goals to reach zero carbon by 2030. For 2021, one of the City Council priorities is to explore policy/program options to convert 95 percent of existing buildings to all-electric by 2030. The remaining CAP goals are to:	Comment:	The Fire District provides fire suppres Forestry and Fire Protection does not "wildland urban interface" environment	sion and fire protect acknowledge the Ci it. The Fire District b	ion services to the City of ty of Menlo Park as being oundaries do not warrant a	Menlo Park. The Califo in an area known to b a Community Wildfire I	rnia Department of e considered as a Protection Plan.				
Comment: The Menlo Park Fire District provides fire suppression and fire protection services to the City of Menlo Park. The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (Cal Fire) does not acknowledge the City of Menlo Park as being in an area known to be considered as a "wildland urban interface" environment. The Fire District boundaries do not warrant a Forest Management Plan. Climate Action Plan Yes No Yes Yes Comment: The purpose of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) is to present researched strategies that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions originating in Menlo Park, based on the findings of the City's greenhouse gas emissions inventory analysis that is completed annually. The plan provides strategies that may be implemented over the next few years by the City, its residents, and its businesses. The CAP is updated every year as research continues to provide more emissions reduction data and as new technologies arise and economic conditions change. The Menlo Park City Council adopted the 2030 Climate Action Plan (CAP) in July 2020 and approved amendments to it in April 2021. The CAP outlines six goals to reach zero carbon by 2030. For 2021, one of the City Council priorities is to explore policy/program options to convert 95 percent of existing buildings to all-electric by 2030. The remaining CAP goals are to: Increase access to EV charging infrastructure in multi-family and commercial properties Reduce vehicle miles traveled by 25 percent or an amount recommended by the Complete Streets Commission Eliminate the use of fossil fuels from municipal operations; and Develop a climate adaption plan. Emergency Operation Standardized Emergency Management Sys	Forest Man	agement Plan	No	No	No	No				
Climate Action Plan Yes No Yes Yes Comment: The purpose of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) is to present researched strategies that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions originating in Menlo Park, based on the findings of the City's greenhouse gas emissions inventory analysis that is completed annually. The plan provides strategies that may be implemented over the next few years by the City, its residents, and its businesses. The CAP is updated every year as research continues to provide more emissions reduction data and as new technologies arise and economic conditions change. The Menlo Park City Council adopted the 2030 Climate Action Plan (CAP) in July 2020 and approved amendments to it in April 2021. The CAP outlines six goals to reach zero carbon by 2030. For 2021, one of the City Council priorities is to explore policy/program options to convert 95 percent of existing buildings to all-electric by 2030. The remaining CAP goals are to: Increase electric vehicle ownership and decrease gasoline sales Increase access to EV charging infrastructure in multi-family and commercial properties Reduce vehicle miles traveled by 25 percent or an amount recommended by the Complete Streets Commission Eliminate the use of fossil fuels from municipal operations; and Develop a climate adaption plan. Emergency Operation Plan Yes Comment: City adopted an Emergency Operation Plan in 2014. The plan still aligns with the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and the California Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS). The Plan provides the City of Menlo Park Emergency Operations Center (EOC) responders with procedures, documentation, and user friendly checkli	Comment:	<i>t:</i> The Menlo Park Fire District provides fire suppression and fire protection services to the City of Menlo Park. The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (Cal Fire) does not acknowledge the City of Menlo Park as being in an area known to be considered as a "wildland urban interface" environment. The Fire District boundaries do not warrant a Forest								
Comment: The purpose of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) is to present researched strategies that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions originating in Menlo Park, based on the findings of the City's greenhouse gas emissions inventory analysis that is completed annually. The plan provides strategies that may be implemented over the next few years by the City, its residents, and its businesses. The CAP is updated every year as research continues to provide more emissions reduction data and as new technologies arise and economic conditions change. The Menlo Park City Council adopted the 2030 Climate Action Plan (CAP) in July 2020 and approved amendments to it in April 2021. The CAP outlines six goals to reach zero carbon by 2030. For 2021, one of the City Council priorities is to explore policy/program options to convert 95 percent of existing buildings to all-electric by 2030. The remaining CAP goals are to: Increase access to EV charging infrastructure in multi-family and commercial properties Reduce vehicle miles traveled by 25 percent or an amount recommended by the Complete Streets Commission Eliminate the use of fossil fuels from municipal operations; and Develop a climate adaption plan. Emergency Operation Plan Yes No Yes Yes Comment: City adopted an Emergency Operation Plan in 2014. The plan still aligns with the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and the California Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS). The Plan provides the City of Menlo Park Emergency Operations & and it also provides detailed information of supplemental requirements such as Public Information, Damage Assessment, and Recovery Operations. Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Comment: The City utilizes the Local Hazard Mititigation Plan and the	Climate Ac	tion Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes				
Eliminate the use of fossil fuels from municipal operations; and Develop a climate adaption plan. Emergency Operation Plan Yes No Yes Yes Comment: City adopted an Emergency Operation Plan in 2014. The plan still aligns with the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and the California Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS). The Plan provides the City of Menlo Park Emergency Operations Center (EOC) responders with procedures, documentation, and user friendly checklists to effectively manage emergencies, and it also provides detailed information of supplemental requirements such as Public Information, Damage Assessment, and Recovery Operations. Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Yes Yes No Yes Assessment (THIRA) Comment: The City utilizes the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and the Fire District's Community Risk Assessment: Standards of Coverage report to support the THIRA process. A consultant has not been hired to conduct an independent THIRA for the City.	Comment:	 nent: The purpose of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) is to present researched strategies that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions originating in Menlo Park, based on the findings of the City's greenhouse gas emissions inventory analysis that is completed annually. The plan provides strategies that may be implemented over the next few years by the City, its residents, and its businesses. The CAP is updated every year as research continues to provide more emissions reduction data and as new technologies arise and economic conditions change. The Menlo Park City Council adopted the 2030 Climate Action Plan (CAP) in July 2020 and approved amendments to it in April 2021. The CAP outlines six goals to reach zero carbon by 2030. For 2021, one of the City Council priorities is to explore policy/program options to convert 95 percent of existing buildings to all-electric by 2030. The remaining CAP goals are to: Increase electric vehicle ownership and decrease gasoline sales Increase access to EV charging infrastructure in multi-family and commercial properties Reduce vehicle miles traveled by 25 percent or an amount recommended by the Complete Streets Commission 								
Emergency Operation Plan Yes No Yes Yes Comment: City adopted an Emergency Operation Plan in 2014. The plan still aligns with the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and the California Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS). The Plan provides the City of Menlo Park Emergency Operations Center (EOC) responders with procedures, documentation, and user friendly checklists to effectively manage emergencies, and it also provides detailed information of supplemental requirements such as Public Information, Damage Assessment, and Recovery Operations. Yes No Yes Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA) Yes Yes No Yes Comment: The City utilizes the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and the Fire District's Community Risk Assessment: Standards of Coverage report to support the THIRA process. A consultant has not been hired to conduct an independent THIRA for the City. Standards of		 Eliminate the use of fossil fuels fi Develop a climate adaption plan. 	rom municipal opera	tions; and						
Comment: City adopted an Emergency Operation Plan in 2014. The plan still aligns with the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and the California Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS). The Plan provides the City of Menlo Park Emergency Operations Center (EOC) responders with procedures, documentation, and user friendly checklists to effectively manage emergencies, and it also provides detailed information of supplemental requirements such as Public Information, Damage Assessment, and Recovery Operations. Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Yes Yes No Yes Comment: The City utilizes the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and the Fire District's Community Risk Assessment: Standards of Coverage report to support the THIRA process. A consultant has not been hired to conduct an independent THIRA for the City.	Emergency	Operation Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes				
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Yes Yes No Yes Assessment (THIRA) The City utilizes the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and the Fire District's Community Risk Assessment: Standards of Coverage report to support the THIRA process. A consultant has not been hired to conduct an independent THIRA for the City.	Comment:	<i>ient:</i> City adopted an Emergency Operation Plan in 2014. The plan still aligns with the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and the California Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS). The Plan provides the City of Menlo Park Emergency Operations Center (EOC) responders with procedures, documentation, and user friendly checklists to effectively manage emergencies, and it also provides detailed information of supplemental requirements such as Public Information, Damage Assessment, and Recovery Operations.								
Assessment (THIRA) Comment: The City utilizes the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and the Fire District's Community Risk Assessment: Standards of Coverage report to support the THIRA process. A consultant has not been hired to conduct an independent THIRA for the City.	Threat & Ha	azard Identification & Risk	Yes	Yes	No	Yes				
	Assessmer Comment:	nt (THIRA) The City utilizes the Local Hazard Mit Coverage report to support the THIRA City.	igation Plan and the A process. A consult	Fire District's Community ant has not been hired to o	Risk Assessment: Sta conduct an independer	ndards of ht THIRA for the				

		Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?		
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan		No	Yes	No	Yes		
Comment: The City Emergency Operation Plan addresses establishing a Recovery Task Force to commence planning for transition long term recovery. The City is also working with the County on turning their Countywide Debris Management Plan into stand-alone jurisdictional annex. The City will align its recovery actions with the National and State Disaster Recovery Framework Plan. The City is working toward developing a stand-alone Post Disaster Recovery Plan. City staff have been assigned training in G270 Disaster Recovery as part of their State EOC Credentialing Training Plan.					g for transition to ent Plan into a er Recovery staff have been		
Continuity of Operations Plan		No	No	No	Yes		
Comment:	omment: Within the City of Menlo Park, the following offices: Human Resources, City Clerk, and City Manager's Office, are responsible for the preservation of vital records. The City will follow standard practices or policies according to the lines of succession in the absence of the City Manager based on organization hierarchy. Each department has a continuity plan for maintaining essential services during a significant event. COOP was exercised during the COVID-19 pandemic.						
Public Hea	th Plan	No	Yes	No	No		
Comment: San Mateo County Public Health							

Table 12-4. Development and Permitting Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department?	Yes Community Development Department, Building Division			
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	Yes			
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	No			

Table 12-5. Fiscal Capability					
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?				
Community Development Block Grants	Yes				
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes				
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes				
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes (Utility users' tax on all except sewer)				
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes				
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes				
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No				
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes (City Council authorization required)				
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes Office of Traffic Safety Citizens Options for Public Safety Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund California Governor's Office of Emergency Services Alcoholic Beverage Control Funding for Belle Haven Child Development Center childcare				
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes				
Flood Control / Sea Level Rise Hazard District	No				

Table 12-6. Administrative and Technical Capability					
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?	Department/Agency/Position			
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes	Public Works; Community Development (Planning & Building Divisions)			
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	Public Works; Community Development, (Planning & Building Divisions)			
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes	Public Works; Community Development, (Planning & Building Divisions)			
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis	Yes	Public Works (Engineering Division), Community Development			
Surveyors	Yes	Public Works and Consultants			
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications	Yes	Public Works, Community Development, Information Technology Division			
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area	No	N/A			
Emergency manager	Yes	Police Department and Menlo Park Fire District			
Grant writers	Yes	Police, Public Works, Community Development, Management Analysts (various departments) Menlo Park Fire District			
Other					

Table 12-7. Education and Outreach Capability					
Criterion	Response				
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes				
	The City of Menlo Park has three designated Public Information Officers. These individuals train for and execute their PIO roles during EOC exercises and are aligned with meeting the PIO State EOC credentialing requirement.				
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes				
	The City Manager's Office maintains the City website and is tasked with updating and coordinating public information. Personnel are trained and skilled in website use.				
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes The City of Menlo Park has hazard mitigation information available on its website. The City also has second party web links available (Menlo Park Fire, American Red Cross, Federal Emergency Management Agency, etc.) for more information. Hazard Mitigation information is posted based on relevance of the season (summer, fall, winter, and spring).				
	*Summer: Extreme heat, wildland fire and water drought hazard mitigation information may be posted.				
	*Winter: Storm/flooding hazard mitigation information may be posted. *Fall: National preparedness month may include hazard mitigation information on earthquake safety.				
	*Spring: An all hazard mitigation campaign may be posted on "Get Ready" and "What to do in the next 72 hours" for citizens to take advantage of the FEMA Community Emergency Response Team training provided by the Menlo Park Fire District.				
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes The City of Menlo Park primarily uses Facebook, Nextdoor and Twitter accounts. The City				
•	posts relevant hazard mitigation educational information to the public through these social media and alert notification platforms.				

Criterion	Response
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes The Planning Commission serves as a recommending body to the City Council for major
	subdivisions, rezoning, conditional development permits, Zoning Ordinance amendments, General Plan amendments and the environmental reviews. The Environmental Quality Commission advises the City Council on matters involving environmental protection, sustainability, and sea level rise. The City of Menlo Park, in partnership with the Fire District, participates in volunteer forum meetings to discuss emergency preparedness and mitigation efforts within the City.
Do you have any other programs already in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? If yes, briefly describe.	Nixle, programmable message boards
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes In addition to social media and the City website, the City also participates in and uses the
	countywide SMC Alert system that provides emergency notifications via voice calls, SMS texts, and email.

Table	12-8	National	Flood	Insurance	Program	Compliance
Iabic	12-0.	national	11000	mourance	riogram	Compliance

Criterion	Response
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works, Engineering Division
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Assistant Public Works Director
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	1988 (with amendments in 1993, 1999, 2002, 2005)
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements?	Meets minimum requirements of 44 CFR 60.3 (e)
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	2/16/2011
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed? <i>If so, state what they are.</i>	No
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction? If so, state what they are.	No
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	Yes
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed?	Yes The City of Menlo Park would require another Certified Floodplain Manager in the Engineering Division to assist with additional floodplain improvement projects.

Criterion	Response
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)?	Yes
If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification?	The City of Menlo Park attained a CRS
If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program?	rating of 8 in October 2020.
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a	640
What is the insurance in force?	\$181,612,000
What is the premium in force?	\$887,969
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a	29
What were the total payments for losses?	\$219,273
a According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2019	

Table 12-9. Community Classifications							
Participating? Classification Date Classified							
FIPS Code	Yes	0608146870	N/A				
DUNS#	Yes	958191975	N/A				
Community Rating System	Yes	8	10/2020				
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	Yes	03	12/2/2020				
Public Protection	Yes	2	2013				
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A				
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A				
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A				

Table 12-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Medium

Comment: Environmental Quality Commission (EQC) and sustainability staff update the Climate Action Plan annually based on the findings of the community's greenhouse gas emissions inventory analysis. The Plan outlines strategies that may take several years to implement by the City, its residents, and businesses.

Building reach codes were implemented on January 1, 2020 to restrict all new construction to be all-electric with some exceptions. This ordinance would reduce greenhouse gas emissions from the building sector and encourage residents to use renewable energy. Staff is working on the next building cycle to update its reach codes, which may include, but not limited to, some restrictions for existing buildings or more stringent reach codes for new construction.

One of the primary anticipated impacts of climate change is sea level rise and more frequent and severe flooding. The City is pursuing the SAFER Bay project through a grant application to FEMA's Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) program to protect the community from sea level rise and flooding. This is consistent with the General Plan Land Use Element Goal LU-7: Promote the implementation and maintenance of sustainable development, facilities, and services to meet the needs of the Menlo Park community. This project application proposes to construct approximately 3.7 miles of nature-based flood control and sea level rise barriers along the San Francisco Bay shoreline. This would be a significant advancement toward the ultimate goal of providing full flood protection for the residents and business near the Bay. As of July 2021, FEMA has selected the SAFER Bay project for further evaluation. Staff has incorporated funding to support this work into the fiscal year 2021-22 capital improvement program. This project aligns with the City's 2030 CAP goal to develop a climate action adaption plan. Because this is a large project, more staff capacity may be needed and is being assessed as the City awaits notification from FEMA regarding the grant award.

Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a			
Jurisdiction	n-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Medium			
Comment:	 The City implemented an online permitting system (Accela), which helps staff analyze the number of projects that trigger the all-electric reach code restrictions. The data collected in Accela would also help analyze and develop a policy/program to help convert 95% of existing buildings to all-electric by 2030. In partnership with the County, air quality monitors were installed for public health and safety and the data is available on 				
	publicly accessible portals. More capacity would be needed to increase monitoring the impacts of clir	nate change.			
Technical r	esources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Low			
Comment:	The City could use more technical resources to assess the proposed strategies for feasibility and ext	ernalities.			
Jurisdiction	n-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Medium			
Comment:	The City could use some improvement in developing the community's greenhouse gas emissions inv	entory.			
Capital plan	nning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Medium			
Comment:	 Ipital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts Medium Imment: The City has a number of ordinances, plans, and projects to address climate impacts through capital planning and land use decisions: Municipal Code Section 16.43.140 is a green and sustainable building ordinance, which requires developers to submit zer waste management plans to showcase how the project will reduce waste during the construction and occupancy phase. The ordinance will help the City meet its zero waste goal of 90% diversion by 2035. The City is updating the Safety Element to comply with the new changes to SB 379. Development projects, both commercial and residential, need to be assessed by the standards set by the California Environmental Quality Act, which may require preparation of environmental impact reports. According to Municipal Code Section 12.16.010, new construction is required to be all-electric, with a few exceptions. For example, the Menlo Park Community Center will be an all-electric building to eliminate the use of natural gas. The City adopted the sustainable fleet policy in 2020, a minimum 50 percent vehicles purchased will be zero-emission by 2025 and 75 percent by 2030. The City has undertaken master planning efforts in most capital planning areas in the last five years. These efforts have be be the divident of the ding and residential of a percent by adopted the vehicles of the ding reports in the last five years. 				
	resources (funding and staff or consultants) will be needed to deliver the needed projects to address impacts. Funds to operate and maintain new infrastructure for adapting to climate change will also be •Potentially more staff resources are needed to process building permits and more outreach is needed about the reach codes.	expected climate e needed. ed to educate the public			

Criterion

Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks

- **Comment:** A councilmember is a board member of Peninsula Clean Energy, which offers renewable energy to Menlo Park residents. Peninsula Clean Energy offers at minimum 50% renewable energy and 90% greenhouse gas free electricity. With renewable energy powering an all-electric building, the occupants and indoor air quality may significantly improve health and safety.
 - Both councilmember and staff participate in South Bay Waste Management Authority and Technical Advisory Committee monthly meets to discuss innovative waste reduction and recycling programs. For instance, the group is discussing the upcoming Senate Bill 1383, which is to enforce a more stringent organics program and surplus food recovery. When food waste decomposes in the landfill without air, it creates methane, which is harmful to the environment.
 - Staff and a councilmember liaison participate in with San Mateo Flood & Sea Level Rise District to discuss climate change
 impacts of sea level rise and flooding across jurisdictional boundaries. Menlo Park City Council also supported pursuit of
 the SAFER Bay project for a FEMA BRIC grant application, which proposes to construct approximately 3.7 miles of
 nature-based flood control and sea level rise barriers along the San Francisco Bay shoreline. This would be a significant
 advancement toward the ultimate goal of providing full flood protection for the residents and business near the Bay. As of
 July 2021, FEMA has selected the SAFER Bay project for further evaluation. Staff has incorporated funding to support
 this work into the fiscal year 2021-22 capital improvement program.
 - The City partners with local organizations to help monitor and implement climate change goals. For instance, Joint Venture Silicon Valley will assist in reaching the goal to increase EV of new vehicle ownerships to 100% by 2025 and to reduce gasoline sales by 10% a year from the 2018 baseline.
 - City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG) staff manage the County's stormwater program
 and permitting requirements. City staff actively participate in C/CAGs stormwater committees, and a City Councilmember
 serves on the C/CAG board.
 - ICLEI is an international non-governmental organization that promotes sustainable development and provides technical
 consulting to help the City meet its sustainability initiatives.
 - BAWSCA and Flows to Bay offer various water conservation programs, such as rain barrel rebates and Lawn Be Gone programs.

Implementation Capacity

Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes

Comment: On December 10, 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6535 declaring a climate emergency. During public decision-making processes, internal and external stakeholders must comply with the City's sustainability-related policies and ordinances. The City would need more capacity or to reduce other projects and priorities to adopt and implement programs, ordinances, or solutions to further advance in climate change adaptation.

Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts

Comment: Menlo Park City Council adopted the 2030 Climate Action Plan (CAP) in July 2020 and approved amendments to it in April 2021. The CAP outlines six goals to reach zero carbon by 2030. Five of these goals address mitigation, as listed below. The CAP goals are to:

- Explore policy/program options to convert 95 percent of existing buildings to all-electric by 2030
- Increase electric vehicle ownership and decrease gasoline sales
- Increase access to EV charging infrastructure in multi-family and commercial properties
- Reduce vehicle miles traveled by 25 percent or an amount recommended by the Complete Streets Commission
- Eliminate the use of fossil fuels from municipal operations.

The scope of work for 2021 implementation are the following:

- Complete a cost effectiveness analysis on various policy/program pathways towards achieving 95% electrification by 2030.
- Collaborate with Joint Venture Silicon Valley to increase the number of new vehicle purchase to be electric vehicles (EV) and decrease the gasoline sales by 10%.
- Promote and market incentives to expand access to EV charging stations in multi-family and commercial properties.
- Reduce vehicle miles traveled through SB2 Housing grant, completion of Transportation Management Association feasibility study, and implementation of vehicle miles traveled guidelines for new development.
- Update the Safety Element of Menlo Park's General Plan to respond to SB 379.

Jurisdiction Rating^a Medium

Medium

Hiah

Jurisdiction Rating^a High

Comment: The sixth goal from the City's Climate Action Plan is to develop a climate adaptation plan. The City has participated in past regional efforts to develop adaptation plans for sea level rise, including the SAFER Bay Feasibility Study, led by the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority; and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission's Dumbarton Bridge West Approach + Adjacent Communities Resilience Study. The City has applied for a FEMA BRIC grant to support implementation of the first phase of the SAFER Bay project and would continue to partner with other stakeholders to complete the project.

Champions for climate action in local government departments

Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts

Criterion

- **Comment:** The City has a sustainability division to implement the climate action plan and collaborates with multiple departments to adopt climate-related policies and initiatives. More capacity is needed to adopt and implement new programs, ordinances, and implement the CAP goals.
 - As of fiscal year 2020-21, the City has 109 fleet vehicles, which include vehicles, motorcycles, and parking enforcement buggies. Out of the total fleet vehicles, twenty-one are hybrids and four are all-electric vehicles. The City is waiting for technology to advance for electric utility vehicles, which may be available within the next three years. Public Works is also transitioning its maintenance equipment to electric.
 - The Building Division implemented local energy code amendments to the building code (reach codes), which went above and beyond State and County recommendations.
 - The Community Development Department implemented a green and sustainable building ordinance.
 - In 2015, several solar photovoltaic panels were installed on various City facilities.
 - The City installed 4 electric vehicle charging stations (with 2 charging ports each) for public use.
 - The Police Department is currently transitioning their paper parking permits to paperless permits.
 - The Community Development and Public Works Departments transitioned from paper permitting applications to electronic submittals.
 - The City's transportation demand management coordinator provides support to local employers and City employees to
 provide information about non-single occupancy vehicle travel options, which can help reduce vehicle miles traveled and
 emissions from transportation mobile sources.

Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies

Comment: •Menlo Park City Council was one of the first cities to adopt reach code, which nearly eliminated natural gas from new buildings. City Council also adopted a resolution to declare climate emergency, which demands accelerated actions on the climate crisis and requests regional collaboration to address climate change. The former mayor also signed a resolution to reaffirm the City's commitment to tackle climate change at a local level.

•All six Climate Action Plan goals are on City Council's 2021 priorities and work plan: two out of nine priority projects are related to CAP.

•Menlo Park City Council also supported pursuit of the SAFER Bay project FEMA BRIC grant application.

•The Environmental Quality Commission continues to advise City Council on implementing the CAP goals.

Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation

Comment: The City filed the FEMA BRIC grant application, which would help develop a climate action adaptation plan to protect the community from sea level rise and flooding. More capacity is likely to be needed in this effort and other climate change adaption.

Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted

Unsure

Medium

Comment: •Code Enforcement officers may be impacted if new building requirement ordinances are adopted that require enforcement resources, but not enough information is known at this time to assign a rating.

•Some business industries (such as restaurants, research and development or life-science) may be negatively impacted by the reach codes; however, those business may be exempted from the reach codes as outlined in the Municipal Code Section 12.16.010.

•Gas and oil manufacturing sectors may be negatively impacted if the City reduces its gasoline consumption (either for vehicles or for building appliances). This impact would be related to the 2030 CAP goals and the reach codes, but not enough information is known at this time to assign a rating.

Medium

High

Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a			
Public Capa	acity				
Local resid	ents knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium			
Comment:	 The Environmental Quality Commission (EQC), a commission body made up of seven Menlo Park r 2030 CAP. The Complete Streets Commission, another resident-based commission body of nine me develop a vehicle miles traveled reduction goal by 2023. Strong advocacy occurs when climate policies are considered by City Council. Several residents expass leaf blowers by adopting an ordinance. More outreach needs to be done to understand the community's knowledge and understanding of cl was approved in April 2021 that approved the scope of work for 2021 implementation of the CAP and about climate emergency and to include health, socio-economic, and racial equity in policymaking and the scope of work for 2021 implementation of the CAP and about climate emergency and to include health. 	esidents, created the embers, is anticipated to pressed interest to ban limate risk. A resolution d to educate residents ad climate solutions.			
Local resid	ents support of adaptation efforts	Unsure			
Comment:	Not enough information is known to assign a rating. More outreach is needed.				
Local resid	ents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure			
Comment:	Not enough information is known to assign a rating. More outreach is needed.				
Local econ	omy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure			
Comment: Not enough information is known to assign a rating. More outreach is needed.					
Local ecos	ystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Unsure			
Comment:	Not enough information is known to assign a rating. More outreach is needed.				
a. High = (Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist but is not used or could use some improve	ement;			

Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure = Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

12.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

12.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- **General Plan**—The Safety Element of the General Plan (adopted May 21, 2013) complies with Assembly Bill No. 2140 and is aimed at reducing potential risk of death, injuries, damage to property, and the economic and social dislocation resulting from fire, flood, geologic and other hazards. The General Plan provides policies and standards for the type, location, intensity, and design of development in areas of potential hazards. The intent is not to remove all risks associated with each specific type of hazard, but to reduce risks to life and property and to make informed decisions about land use and development near these hazards.
- Climate Action Plan/Climate Change—The City's 2030 Climate Action Plan outlines strategies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and fight climate change. These goals were reviewed to identify cross-planning initiates that serve both adaptation and mitigation objectives.

- **Zoning Code**—The Zoning Code (Municipal Code Title 16) includes an Open Space and Conservation District (Chapter 16.48). The purpose and intent of this district is:
 - > To protect the public health, safety, and welfare
 - > To protect and preserve open space land as a limited and valuable resource
 - To assure its continued availability for the following: As agricultural land, scenic land, recreation land, conservation, or natural resource land; for the containment of urban sprawl and the structuring of urban development, and for the retention of land in its natural or near natural state to protect life and property in the community from the hazards of fire, flood, and seismic activity; and
 - > To coordinate with and carry out federal, state, regional, county and city open space plans.
- Stormwater Management—New and redevelopment projects are required to reduce the quantity and improve the quality of stormwater that flows into the City's collection system from private property, local creeks, the San Francisco Bay, and the Pacific Ocean. Depending on the size of the project, the City may require special features that minimize pollutants at their source, infiltrate more rain into the soil and treat stormwater before it leaves the site. For larger projects, an agreement to maintain the stormwater treatment measure is also required.
- **Growth Management**—For each new project, developers are required to conduct an environmental impact report and comply with the California Environmental Quality Act.
- Environmental Protection—The City has ordinances and policies related to environmental protection:
 - In January 2020, the City adopted reach codes for new construction to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from the building sector and encourage the use of renewable and clean energy. The reach codes are local modifications to account for the climatic, topographic, and geographic conditions that exist in Menlo Park.
 - The City's Climate Action Plan was adopted in July 2020 and several of its goals are related to environmental protection. Two of the goals are related to electric vehicles: to promote the purchase of electric vehicles and increase EV charging stations in multi-family and commercial buildings, and to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve air quality.
 - The City adopted a Sustainable Vehicle Fleet Policy to increase the number of zero-emission City fleet vehicles.
 - The City has tree pruning program to ensure dead trees and limbs are removed to reduce wildfire risk. The City is transitioning to plant low-water tolerant replacement trees to adapt to the drought season while maintaining the urban canopy.
- Flood Damage Prevention—The ordinance (Municipal Code Section 12.42.13) minimizes public and private losses due to flood conditions in specific areas by provisions designed:
 - To protect human life and health
 - > To minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects
 - To minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general public
 - > To minimize prolonged business interruptions
 - To minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and gas mains, electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets and bridges located in areas of special flood hazard
 - To help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the second use and development of areas of special flood hazard so as to minimize future flood blight areas
 - > To ensure that potential buyers are notified that property is in an area of special flood hazard; and
 - > To ensure that those who occupy special flood hazard areas assume responsibility for their actions.

- **Capital Improvement Plan**—The capital improvement plan includes projects that can help mitigate potential hazards. The City will act to ensure consistency between the hazard mitigation plan and the current and future capital improvement plans following this update. The hazard mitigation plan may identify new possible funding sources for capital improvement projects and may result in modifications to proposed projects based on results of the risk assessment.
- Urban Water Management Plan—The Urban Water Management Plan assesses the reliability of water sources over a 20-year planning time frame and describes demand management measures and water shortage contingency plans.
- Water Shortage Contingency Plan—The Water Shortage Contingency Plan serves as a standalone document to be engaged in the case of a water shortage event, such as a drought or supply interruption, and defines specific policies and actions that will be implemented at various shortage level scenarios. The primary objective of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan is to ensure that Menlo Park Municipal Water has in place the necessary resources and management responses needed to protect health and human safety, minimize economic disruption, and preserve environmental and community assets during water supply shortages and interruptions. Consistent with California Water Code §10632, the Water Shortage Contingency Plan includes six levels to address shortage conditions ranging from up to 10% to greater than 50% shortage, identifies a suite of demand mitigation measures for Menlo Park Municipal Water to implement at each level, and identifies procedures for Menlo Park Municipal Water to annually assess whether or not a water shortage is likely to occur in the coming year.

12.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment presented in this annex identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- Water System Emergency Action Plan—Required by the State Department of Environmental Health back in 2004. This Plan was written on 12/29/2004 and was updated in 2005, 2011 and 2013, 2016, 2019 and is currently being updated for 2021. The plan can be integrated with the hazard mitigation plan by rewriting it to confirm to the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and attaching it as an appendix.
- **Climate adaptation plan**—The City will develop a climate adaptation plan that would focus on resiliency planning and updating the General Plan Safety Element to comply with recent changes to Senate Bill 379.
- General Plan Update; Housing, Safety, and Environmental Justice Elements—The City is currently working on updating/creating the General Plan Housing, Safety, and Environmental Justice Elements. As part of the sustainable and environmental planning guiding principle, the updates will establish goals, policies, and programs that incorporate mitigation strategies to natural hazards, as appropriate. The Safety Element will be updated to comply with Senate Bill 379.
- **Post-Disaster Recovery Plan**—The City does not have a recovery plan and intends to develop one as a mitigation planning action during the next five years. The plan will build on the goals and objectives identified in the hazard mitigation plan. The City is also working with the County on turning the Countywide Debris Management Plan into a stand-alone jurisdictional annex. The City will align its recovery actions with the National and State Disaster Recovery Framework Plan.
- Stormwater Plan—The Engineering Division is in the process of updating the stormwater master plan. The plan, when completed, will model the entire City storm drain network and identify areas vulnerable to localized flooding and identify capital projects to mitigate the flooding in these areas. The plan also

identifies measures to comply with state mandated requirements under the NPDES permitting requirements.

• Shoreline Management Plan—The City does not have a Shoreline Management Plan; however, the City has a few ongoing projects to help manage the risks associated with the shoreline along the Bayfront Canal-Atherton Channel and the former salt ponds.

12.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

12.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 12-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 12-11. Past Natural Hazard Events							
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment				
Wildfires: poor air quality (CZU Fire)	DR-4558	August 14- September 26, 2020	Unknown				
Covid-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 - present	Unknown				
Severe Winter Storms	DR-4308	February 1-23, 2017	Unknown				
Severe Storm (El Niño)	N/A	December 23, 2012	\$3 million creek bank erosion private property \$820,000 residential and businesses				
Severe Storm (El Niño)	DR-1203	February 9, 1998	Unknown				
Loma Prieta Earthquake	DR-845	October 18, 1989	Unknown				

12.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 12-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 12-12. Hazard Risk Ranking						
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category			
1	Flood	87	High			
2	Earthquake	84	High			
3	Sea Level Rise / Climate Change	72	High			
4	Severe Weather/Extreme Weather	24	Medium			
5	Dam Failure	72	Low*			
6	Landslide/Mass Movements	72	Low**			
7	Drought	9	Low			
8	Tsunami	2	Low			

* After reviewing the Dam Failure map provided by Tetra Tech, City of Menlo Park is not in the Inundation Area.

** The City of Menlo Park does not experience a significant amount of landslides/mass movements, which is why the risk ranking changed from High to Low.

12.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

These public facilities are located in either flood hazard areas, along the fault lines, high liquefaction areas, and/or sea level rise areas:

- Menlo Park Community Center (formerly site of the Menlo Park Senior Center, Onetta Harris Community Center, Youth Center, and Belle Haven Pool)
- Belle Haven Child Development Center
- Menlo Park Police Neighborhood Services Center
- Belle Haven Library
- Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill and Gas Flare
- Chrysler Pump Station
- U.S. Veteran Administration Medical Center
- Nealon Park Little House and Nursery School

Not all structures are listed above because it is assumed the hazards with "High" ranking from Table 12-12 would affect all the structures in the city. Therefore, a comprehensive list of all structures is not needed.

These local street intersections have experienced flooding during heavy rain events:

- Middlefield Rd and Ravenswood Ave.
- Atherton Channel and Haven Ave.
- Pope St. and Elm St. intersection
- Corner of Scott Dr. and Bohannon Dr.
- Campbell Ave. and Scott Dr.
- University Dr. and Middle Ave.
- Menalto Ave. near the Highway 101 sound wall

- Emma Ln.
- O'Brien Dr. and Kavanaugh Dr.
- O'Brien Dr. and Casey Ct.
- Bay Rd. and Menlo Oaks Dr.
- Bay Rd. and Berkeley Ave.
- Laurel St. and Ravenswood Ave.
- El Camino Real and Cambridge Ave.

These are the results from the public survey from residents who live within the 94025 ZIP code:

- Out of 25 natural hazards listed, residents expressed:
 - Extremely concerned for climate change, poor air quality, public health, and wildfire; and
 - > Very concerned about earthquake, drought, power failure, flooding, and extreme heat
- Residents most commonly experienced these hazard events within the past five years:
 - > Poor air quality due to nearby wildfire
 - Public health epidemic or pandemic
 - ➢ Extreme heat
 - Drought; and
 - Climate change

According to the National Climatic Data Center, the City of Menlo Park and its neighboring cities (Atherton, East Palo Alto, Unincorporated West Menlo Park, North Fair Oaks, and Woodside) reported 12 flood hazard events (out of 16 total events) due to heavy rain within the past six years.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan for this annex.

12.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 12-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 12-13. Status of Previous Plan Actions					
	Removed;		Carried Over to Plan Update		
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
MP-1 —Where appropriate, support retro-fitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in high hazard areas and prioritize those structures that have experienced repetitive losses.			~	MPK-1	
Comment . Menlo Park has a Planning Commission that oversees future building de	velopment whi	ch takes into co	onsideration	high risk	

comment: Menlo Park has a Planning Commission that oversees future building development which takes into consideration high risk hazards. Homeowners in high risk areas are required to take out home insurance associated with potential risks that expose their properties.

No city facilities have been vulnerable to recurring loses, so relocation is no longer feasible. On the other hand, the City will continue to support retro-fitting of other structures, but the city's role in this for private property is limited.

			Removed;	Carried C Up	d Over to Plan Update
A - 41 14		O a man la fa al	No longer	Check if	Action # in
Action Item	wate the bazard mitigation plan into other plane, ordinances and	Completed	Feasible	Yes	Update
programs th	at dictate land use decisions within the community.			v	IVIF K-Z
Comment:	The City has incorporated the LHMP in their General Plan Safety Eleme takes into consideration these risks during building development or futur in the process of updating the General Plan Safety Element and will con completion in 2022).	nt pertaining to e land-use plan tinue to integra	any associate ning (adopted te and impleme	d risks or ha May 2013) ent the LHM	azards; and The City is IP (tentative
MP-3—Integ support infra program	prate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans and programs that instructure investments, such as the five-year capital improvement			~	MPK-2
Comment:	The City has integrated its hazard mitigation planning as part of the capit criteria such as public health and safety risks, protecting infrastructure, a support the City's 2030 climate action plan, and relationship to adopted therefore been prioritized include funding for the Bayfront Canal and Ath Francisquito Creek upstream flood protection project, the reconstruction SAFER Bay sea level rise protection project.	ital improvemen ability to reduce plans (including erton Channel of the Chrysler	t program by u greenhouse g the LHMP). P flood protection stormwater pu	ising prioriti as emissior rojects that n project, th ump station	zation Is and have e San and the
MP-4 —Develop and implement a program to capture perishable data after significant events (e.g., high water marks, preliminary damage estimates, damage photos) to support future mitigation efforts including the implementation and maintenance of the hazard mitigation plan					
Comment:	The City developed an application for conducting damage assessment f to record preliminary damage estimates and photos. The program is call City uses several project management tools, including Dropbox, ArcGIS County of San Mateo guidance, the City also adheres to filling out the "S	ollowing the gui led the Damage and Monday.co SMC Initial Dam	delines of ATC Assessment I om for archivin age Estimate"	C-20 that ha Reporting S g informatic sheet.	s the ability ystem. The on. Per
MP-5—Supp mitigation pl	port the County-wide initiatives identified in Volume I of the hazard an.				MPK-3
Comment:	The City continues to partner with the County on all related hazard reduceresponse efforts. Elected Officials serve as part of the San Mateo Count the Joint Powers Agreement. Participation in the Authority is to ensure or participating members and partners are expected to attend all regular ar Council, agree to active participation by their jurisdictions in the develop and training opportunities, and otherwise assist in supporting the implemented of the server and the server as the serve	ction, emergency by Emergency S cooperative eme and special meet ment of plans a mentation of this	cy preparednes ervices Counc ergency plannir ings of the Are nd training pro agreement.	ss, and disa il in accorda ng and resp a Emergen grams, drill	ster ance with onse. All cy Services s, exercises,
MP-6—Activ	vely participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume I of nitigation plan.				MPK-4
Comment:	The Menlo Park Fire Protection District, in partnership with the City of M protocols of the Hazard Mitigation Plan. Each department has taken own provides updates to the Point of Contact related to the completion of prodeveloped to engage the public.	enlo Park, supp nership of their njects annually.	oorts the facilita hazard mitigati GIS mapping t	ation of the on projects ools are be	maintenance and ing

			Removed; No longer	Carried Over to Pl moved; Update		
Action Item		Completed		Check if	Action # in	
MP-7—Conti Flood Insura implementati the requirem Enforcement Participate in Provide publ Comment:	inue to maintain good standing and compliance under the National nce Program (NFIP). This will be accomplished through the ion of floodplain management programs that will, at a minimum, meet ents of the NFIP: to f the flood damage prevention ordinance of floodplain identification and mapping updates; and ic assistance/information on floodplain requirements and impacts. The City of Menlo Park has been recognized for performing floodplain m requirements for the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) I of the City's continuing efforts in floodplain management activities, Menle Community Rating System (CRS) program and received Class 8 effectiv 2023). The City is compliant with NFIP requirements and flood-plain man mapping updates and providing information and assistance to residents The next annual recertification is due by August 1, 2021. The process in the agreed upon activities and undating data	nanagement act National Flood o Park has bee ve of October 1, nagement prog included in the volves certifying	ivities above a Insurance Prog n certified to pa , 2020 (expirati rams including program. g that the City I	nd beyond t ram (NFIP) articipate in on date on coordinatio nave been p	MPK-5 the minimum b. As a result the October 31, n on performing	
MP-8—Work	with building officials to identify ways to improve the jurisdiction's sification					
Comment:	Comment: The concept behind the Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule (BCEGS) is that municipalities with well-enforced building code requirements designed to mitigate losses from natural hazards, demonstrate better loss experience, and can ultimately lower citizens' insurance costs. Effectiveness Classification ranges from Class 1 to Class 10, with Class 1 being the highest/top score. In May 2021, the City of Menlo Park received BCEGS Class 3 for single- and two-family residential property and Class 3 for commercial and industrial property. This is a significant achievement that reflects the City's ongoing					
MP-9—Deve	lop a post-disaster recovery plan and debris management plan.		3 1 1		MPK-6	
Comment:	The County developed a Debris Management plan in August 2020. Men Management Plan. The Public Works Department is reviewing the Coun aligned with the County Plan.	lo Park does no ty plan with the	ot have a stand goal of doing a	-alone Deb an independ	ris dent plan	
MP-10—Dev force protect the City (poli emergency s	relop mitigation controls (continuity of government plans) and ensure ion measures are in place in relation to vulnerable critical facilities within ce stations, fire stations, emergency operation center, City Hall, shelters, etc.)				MPK-7	
Comment:	The City is working with the County to support the development of a Cor countywide plans. The Menlo Park Fire Protection District, in partnership	ntinuity Operation with the City, i	on Plan in orde s working towa	r to align wi Ird developi	th ment.	
MP-11—Dev systems thro pipelines, po Water Agence	velop a plan for expediting the repair and restoration of the water ugh stockpiling of shoring materials, temporary pumps, surface rtable hydrants, and other supplies, such as those available through the cy Response Network (WARN).					
Comment:	The City's 2016 Water System Emergency Response Plan will be update Plan by 12/31/2021. The City has cooperative agreements in place with Public Works Department and Menlo Park Municipal Water has on-call prestoration of water systems in the city. The City has interconnect agree City coordinates with West Bay Sanitary Sewer District with repair and r	ed with a 2021 emergency ser personnel 24/7 ments in place estoration of the	Water System vice/disaster so which coordina with adjacent v e wastewater s	Emergency ervice contr te timely re vater provid ystems.	Response actors. The pairs and ers. The	
MP-12-Con	tinue to participate in the Public Works Mutual Aid Agreement-San					
Mateo Count Comment:	ty in accordance with resource sharing and resource coordination. The City continues to participate in the Public Works Mutual Aid Agreem Emergency Resource Management System, an interactive web-based e also uses the ICS-213RR Resource Request Form.	ent and has als mergency reso	so piloted a sys urces sharing a	tem called application.	the Field The City	

			Removed;	Carried C Up	Over to Plan odate		
Action Item		Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update		
MP-13—Cor loss of powe by alternative	ntinue to ensure that critical intersection traffic lights function following r by testing battery back-ups, emergency generators, or lights powered e energy sources such as solar.						
Comment: The City has an on-call contract with CalWest for emergency response to traffic signal outages and has two portable generators on hand in case of power outages. Monthly maintenance on all generators is completed by the fleet section of the Public Works Department. In addition, the City has secured a set of solar panels and 12-volt batteries. This solar charging station will be installed at the Corporation Yard to provide fully charged patteries on stand by for lighted crosswalks.							
MP-14—Dev	velop emergency plans or MOU agreements with neighboring mutual aid						
Comment:	The City continues to promote Field Emergency Resource Management System, which facilitates our emergency resources sharing capabilities a providers countywide. The system has been tested and exercised. The Committee that is a multi-jurisdictional emergency planning work group. in place by Resolution No. 6547 adopted in March 2020. Through a star Palo Alto, Atherton, Menlo Park, and the Fire District the City maintains	System, Field and MOU agree City also partici The City has a idardized Emer a system of nei	Emergency Re ements among pates in the Dis Public Works I gency Operatic ghboring unity	source Mar neighboring saster Servi Mutual Aid on Plan betw and structu	nagement g mutual aid ice Agreement ween East re.		
MP-15—Imp annual clear waterways, s flood protect	lement maintenance and storm preparedness plans that include the ing of storm water drains and culverts, drainage ditches, and other such as the Atherton Channel and San Francisquito Creek, to maintain ion.			~	MPK-8		
Comment:	The City has a Flood Response Annex which includes the annual clearin ditches, and other waterways, such as the Atherton Channel and San Fr City also participates in the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Author The City conducts an annual inspection of the storm drain system before inspection and cleaning program on a five-year routine basis, the contra CCTV line inspection.	ng of storm wat rancisquito Crea- rity annual Floo e the rainy seas ctor focuses on	er drains and c ek, to maintain d Preparednes son. As part of f root cleaning,	ulverts, dra flood prote s Workshop the City's in line clearin	inage ction. The os. I-house g, and		
MP-16—Cor flood control	tinue to coordinate with the City of Redwood City on the Bayfront Canal improvements.						
Comment:	The City has been working with San Mateo Flood and Sea Level Rise R and the Town of Atherton on the design and construction of the Bayfroni partner agencies in November 2020 and construction commenced in 2020	esiliency Distric t Canal Bypass 21.	et, San Mateo (Project. An M(County, Rec DU was app	dwood City proved by all		
MP-17—Cor Authority on	tinue to coordinate with the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers San Francisquito Creek and SAFER Bay flood control projects.				MPK-9		
Comment:	The City continues to coordinate with the San Francisquito Creek JPA o control projects, as well as the development of the SAFER Bay project. Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grant for several reach JPA, PG&E, and Facebook.	n the Downstre In 2021, the Cit es of the SAFE	am of 101 and y applied for a R Bay Project,	Upstream FEMA Build in partners	of 101 flood ding hip with the		
MP-18—Cor U.S. Fish & ¹	tinue to coordinate with the California Coastal Conservancy and the Wildlife Service on the South Bay Salt Pond Restoration Project.				MPK-10		
Comment:	The coordination work with the California Coastal Conservancy is ongoin with members.	ng. The City is v	working on a le	vee project	currently		
MP-19—Upg Bayfront are	prade the Chrysler Pump Station to improve flood protection in the a.				MPK-11		
Comment:	The design of the Chrysler Pump Station is currently underway, and fund Hazard Mitigation Grant program award. Construction is anticipated to b	ding was secur egin in 2021 ar	ed in 2020 with nd completed b	a \$5 millio y 2023.	n FEMA		
MP-20—Dev quality and f Comment:	velop and implement a Green Infrastructure Plan to improve storm water ood protection. The City Council adopted the Green Stormwater Infrastructure Plan in 2 storm water master plan.	019. The City h	as also hired a	consultant	to develop a		

			Removed;	Carried C Up	over to Plan date	
Action Item		Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
MP-21—Proclimate chan	duce hazards maps that take into account the impacts of flooding due to ge.				MPK-12	
Comment: San Mateo County's Office of Sustainability published the draft Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Assessment for San Mateo County in 2018. The study includes maps for a number of sea level rise scenarios, which includes areas that would be impacted in Menlo Park. The City also has GIS staff that references flood inundation maps to incorporate data into other City planning documents and analyses.						
MP-22—Dev Hazard Mitig	elop an Adaptation to Climate Change Plan and integrate into the Local ation Plan.				MPK-13	
Comment:	In early 2020, the San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise District v San Mateo. The City of Menlo Park is an active member of this agency to of the city vulnerable to sea level rise and climate change. In July 2020, Climate Action Plan that identifies climate change resiliency as a priority	was formed to r hat is developir the City adopte for Menlo Park	epresent all cit ng plans and pi .d, and in April 	ies and the ojects to pr 2021 updat	County of rotect areas red, the	
MP-23—Cor Rise Resilier	ntinue to participate with the San Mateo County Flood and Sea level ncy District on key flood control projects.				MPK-14	
Comment:	Comment: The Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Assessment was completed in 2018 with substantial input from the City of Menlo Park. Following completion of the assessment and the passage of AB825, the San Mateo County Flood and Sea level Rise Resiliency District was formed as noted in MP-17 and MP-22. The City participates in FSLRRD meetings and is a stakeholder/partner on key flood control projects.					
MP-24—Dev ordinance fo service area	velop a recycled water feasibility study and adopt a recycled water r the use of recycled water in the Menlo Pak Municipal Water District					
Comment:	West Bay Sanitary District completed preparation of its recycled water fe May 2019. West Bay also completed construction of the Sharon Heights in October 2020 to provide recycled water to the Sharon Heights Golf an	easibility study of recycled water of Country Club	of the Bayfront project with op	area of Me perations co	nlo Park in ommencing	
MP-25—Plan during times Comment:	n, design and build emergency water supply wells to serve residents of emergencies that result in a loss of water supply. The City began construction of its first emergency water supply well in 20 issuance of permits form the State Department Water Resources, expec second emergency well and/or reservoir in partnership with Ravenswood park sites.	018 and the pro ted in 2021. Th d City School D	oject was comp e City is explo istrict at the Wi	lleted in 202 ring conside illow Oaks \$	20, awaiting erations for a School and	
MP-26—Upo system.	late the Seismic Vulnerability Assessment of the City's water distribution					
Comment:	In June 2021, the City used EPA's Vulnerability Self-Assessment Tool (V to evaluate all risks including seismic assessment of the City's water dist	/SAT) to compl tribution system	ete a Risk and ı.	Resiliency	Assessment	
MP-27—Plan parking area	n, design, and build for the undergrounding of utilities in the downtown s.		\checkmark			
Comment:	The City Council established three underground utility districts in Februa California Public Utilities Commission recently adopted major changes to undergrounding utilities), requiring the City to reassess the viability of this undergrounding of utilities in the downtown parking areas was identified City by the City Council in mid-2021.	ry 2020, one of o the Rule 20A s (or any) unde as a lower prio	which is locate program (whicl rgrounding pro rity area than c	ed downtow h funded ject in 202 ⁻ ther corrido	vn. The 1. The ors in the	

			Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item		Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
MP-28—Dev generators a	velop a program for the installation and replacement of emergency to ritical facilities.				MPK-15
Comment:	The City installed an emergency generator at City Hall in 2018. The City generators at critical facilities with a focus on the delivery of a new comm capabilities in the Belle Haven neighborhood. This new facility would probackups in addition to an emergency generator. All emergency generators backups has been deer the City will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and replated to the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and the city will carry over and modify the Action Item to maintain and the city will carry over and the city will carry over and the city will carry over and the city will be action and the city will be action at the city	r continues to a nunity center w ovide back-up p ors are serviced veloped.	ssess the insta hich would pro ower options u I monthly by the generators at o	llation of er vide emerg sing solar a e Public Wo critical facilit	nergency ency shelter and battery orks fleet ties.
MP-29—Cor	tinue to enforce and or comply with the State-mandated requirement	√	<u></u>		
that site-spe Alquist-Priolo human occu	cific geologic reports be prepared for development proposals within b Earthquake Fault Zones and restrict the placement of structures for pancy.				
Comment:	The City complies with and enforces State mandated requirements. No provide the state of the sta	properties withi	n the City limits	are within	active fault
MP-30—Upo	date as needed and enforce regulations concerning new construction	\checkmark			
(and major in compliant wi	nprovements to existing structures) within flood zones in order to be th federal requirements and the National Flood Insurance Program.				
Comment:	The City continues to enforce regulations concerning new construction v requirements. The City enforces stricter regulations with Ordinance 12.4	vithin flood zon 2.	es complying v	vith federal	
G-1—Consid Rating Syste	der participation in incentive-based programs such as the Community em, Tree City, and StormReady.				MPK-5
Comment:	The City of Menlo Park was certified to participate in the Community Rat of October 1, 2020. The Arbor Day Foundation recognized the City of Me as a Tree Growth City for six years as of June 2021. This Action Item will be carried over and consolidated with MPK-5.	ting System pro enlo Park as a	ogram and rece Tree City for 22	ived Class 2 consecuti	8 effective ve years and
G-2 —Where high-water e	feasible, implement a program to record high water marks following vents.				
Comment:	The City has an emergency flood response annex that has identified the monitors the San Francisquito Creek flood monitors which provide early	appropriate re warning when	sponse triggers limits have bee	s. The City n reached.	also
G-3—Provid homeowners	e incentives for eligible non-profits and private entities, including s, to adapt to risks through structural and nonstructural retrofitting.				MPK-16
Comment:	The City of Menlo Park has been recognized for performing floodplain m requirements for the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) fall, Menlo Park residents and businesses located in the following flood z insurance premium: Flood zone A and AE: 10 percent discount; and Flood zone X: 5 percent discount.	nanagement ac National Flood zones could be	ivities above a Insurance Prog eligible for a d	nd beyond gram. Begir iscount on f	the minimum ning this their flood
	Menlo Park is an active member of the federal flood insurance program commercial structures in areas prone to inundation. The program also so which cities must follow to retain their membership status. Municipalities insurance discounts through the Community Rating System (CRS). The City of Menlo Park has earned certification with a Class 8 rating. Cit https://www.menlopark.org/901/Flood-insurance	that provides fleets minimum st exceeding the ty's flood insura	ood insurance andards for floo se standards n nce webpage:	to residentia odplain mai nay be eligil	al and nagement ble for flood

			Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update		
Action Item		Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
G-4—Suppo mitigation pla	rt the County-wide initiatives identified in Volume I of the hazard an.				MPK-3	
Comment: The City continues to partner with the County on all related hazard reduction, preparedness, and response efforts (CER County Disaster Preparedness Fair, Emergency Managers Association, JPA Emergency Service Council, etc.). These emili continue in the future through the efforts of the emergency management program. The City also participates as a merin the Disaster Service Committee, a local all hazard emergency management committee that deals with multi-jurisdictic hazards collectively. The City adopted Resolution No. 6339 on August 30, 2016, to approve an update to the Menlo Par Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex to the San Mateo County Hazard Mitigation Plan.						
G-5 —Active the hazard n	ly participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume I of nitigation plan.				MPK-3	
Comment:	The City continues to review the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan maintenal achieving many of the tasks outlined in the plan; based on staffing and b the local hazard mitigation projects are reviewed, and where budget allo This Action Item is repetitive. See Action Item MP-6.	nce protocols a oudget capabilit ws, funds are d	nd strives to as ies. Through de lirected toward	sess its cap epartment r such projec	pabilities in neetings, cts.	

12.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 12-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 12-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 12-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 12-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix										
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a				
Action MPK-1— Where appropriate, support retro-fitting in high hazard areas and prioritize those structures that have experienced repetitive losses. This may include, but not limited to, an inventory of city structures known to be at seismic risk.										
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Floo	d		I						
Existing	6, 7, 9, 11, 13	Public Works	Community Development	High	Grant funding	Ongoing				
Action MPK-2—Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, ordinances, and programs that dictate land use decisions within the community, including the General Plan Safety Element.										
New and Existing	2, 4, 6, 7	Community Development		Low	Staff time, General Fund	Ongoing				
Action MPK-3—Inte capital improvement	egrate the hazard mi program.	tigation plan into oth	er plans and programs	that support int	frastructure investments	, such as the				
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Flood, Earthquak	e, Climate Change,	Drought, Sea Level Rise	e						
New and Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 7, 8, 13	Public Works		Medium	Staff time, General Funds, Grant funding	Ongoing				
Action MPK-4—Support the County-wide initiatives and actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.										
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Earthquake,	Drought, Climate Cl	hange, Sea Level Rise							
New and Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14	Public Works	Community Development	Low	Staff time, General Funds	Ongoing				

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a			
 Action MPK-5—Continue to participate in Tree City USA, CRS, BCEGS, and maintain good standing and compliance under the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). This will be accomplished through the implementation of floodplain management programs that will, at a minimum, meet the requirements of the NFIP: Enforcement of the flood damage prevention ordinance Participate in floodplain identification and mapping updates; and Provide public assistance/information on floodplain requirements and impacts. 									
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Climate Ch	hange							
New and Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14	Public Works		Low	Grant funding, General Fund	Ongoing			
Action MPK-6-Dev	elop a post-disaster	recovery plan, post	-earthquake operation p	lan, and debris	s management plan.				
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Earthquak	Э							
New and Existing	1, 2, 6, 8, 9,11	City of Menlo Park and Menlo Park Fire Protection District		Medium	Staff Time, General Funds, Emergency Management Performance Grants	Ongoing			
Action MPK-7—Develop mitigation controls (continuity of government plans) and ensure force protection measures are in place in relation to vulnerable critical facilities within the city (e.g., police stations, fire stations, emergency operation center, City Hall, emergency shelters, etc.)									
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Floo	d, Climate Change,	Sea Level Rise						
New and Existing	6, 9, 13	City of Menio Park	Protection District	wealum	Grant funding	Snort-term			
Action MPK-8—Imp drainage ditches, and <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	lement maintenance d other waterways, s Flood, Climate Cha	and storm prepare such as the Athertor nge	dness plans that include Channel and San Fran	the annual cle cisquito Creek	earing of storm water dra , to maintain flood prote	ains and culverts, ction.			
New and Existing	8,9	Public Works	it- Ottit-D		Grant funding				
Bay flood control pro	jects.	with the San Franci	squito Creek Joint Powe	ers Authority or	1 San Francisquito Cree	K and SAFER			
Hazards Mitigated:	Dam Failure, Floo	od, Landslide, Sever	e Weather, Climate Cha	inge, Sea Leve	el Rise				
Existing	1, 4, 7, 8, 9, 10, 14	Public Works	San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority	Medium	Staff Time, General Fund, Grant funding	Ongoing			
Action MPK-10—Co Salt Pond Restoratio	ntinue to coordinate n Project.	e with the California	Coastal Conservancy ar	nd the U.S. Fis	h & Wildlife Service on t	he South Bay			
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Climate Ch	nange, Sea Level Ri	se						
Existing	1, 4, 7, 8, 9, 10, 14	California State Coastal Conservancy	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Fund	Ongoing			
Action MPK-11—Up	grade the Chrysler	Pump Station to imp	rove flood protection in	the Bayfront A	rea.				
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Severe We	eather, Climate Char	nge, Sea Level Rise						
Existing	1, 6, 8,9	Public Works		Medium	Grant funding	Short-term			
Action MPK-12—Pro	oduce hazards map	s that take into acco	unt the impacts of flood	ing due to climation	ate change.				
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Climate Ch	nange, Severe Weat	her, Sea Level Rise		0				
New and Existing	1, 3, 4, 5, 8, 10, 11	Public Works	Information Technology	Low	Grant funding	Short-term			

		1								
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a				
Action MPK-13—Pr	epare a climate ada	ption and resiliency	plan including, but not li	mited to, the fo	ollowing strategies:					
 Identify local ris increased socia 	 Identify local risks of climate change (e.g., sea level rise, air quality, water supply, energy outages, vector control, extreme heat, increased social unrest) 									
• Identify what the	e City can do in the	short-term while long	g-term planning is under	way						
Identify in the lo	ong-term plan to incl	ude strategies that a	ddress further increases	s in global tem	peratures beyond 2040					
Conduct genera	al engagement and e	education to develop	the plan (city staff and	the community	')					
 Address existing are likely to be 	g and future equity i most impacted and v	ssues through resea vulnerable to climate	arch and engagement wi e change	th low to mode	rate income community	members that				
 Address mitigat 	ion and resiliency th	rough capital improv	vement projects, city ope	erations, and d	evelopment projects					
Evaluate wheth Park's local nee	er federal, state, and eds for climate adap	d regional sea level tation/resiliency with	rise district and San Fra a focus on equity	ncisquito Cree	k agencies holistically a	ddress Menlo				
Provide a roadr	nap for the City to fo	ollow over the next 1	0 years and/or beyond;	and						
Revise policies	and/or create progra	ams to improve clim	ate resilience.							
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u>	Flood, Climate Cl	hange, Drought, Sev	vere Weather, Sea Leve	Rise						
New and Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 10, 14	City Manager's Office	Public Works, Community Development	Low	Staff time, General Fund, Grant funding	Short-term				
Action MPK-14—Co	ontinue to participate	e with the San Mateo	County Flood and Sea	Level Rise Re	siliency District on flood	l control projects.				
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Sea Level R									
Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 10, 14	County of San Mateo	Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Fund	Short-term				
Action MPK-15-De	evelop a program for	r maintaining and re	placing the emergency of	enerators at c	ritical facilities.					
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood. Climate Cha	inge. Earthquake. Se	evere Weather	,						
New and Existing	6. 7. 8	Public Works		Medium	Grant funding	Onaoina				
Action MPK-16—Pr	ovide incentives for	eligible non-profits a	and private entities inclu	iding homeowr	ners to adapt to risks th	rough structural				
and nonstructural ret	trofitting.	engiele nen prente e		iang nonioom		i ough oli dolara				
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Climate Cha	inge. Severe Weathe	er. Earthquake. Dam Fa	ilure						
Existing	2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 13	City of Menlo Park	-,,	High	Grant funding	Ongoing				
Action MPK-17—Up mitigate those areas	odate the City's stor	mwater master plan	to identify areas vulnera	ble to localized	d flooding and identify c	apital projects to				
Hazards Mitigated	Flood, Climate Cha	inge, Severe Weathe	er							
Existing	1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 13	Public Works		\$330,000	General Fund	Short-term				
Action MPK-18—De and wildlife refuge.	evelop a shoreline m	nanagement plan to	protect coastline from so	oil erosion and	enhance the coastline v	with trails, parks,				
Hazards Mitigated	Flood, Climate Cha	inge								
New	1, 4, 7, 8, 9, 13, 14	Public Works		Low/Medium	Staff time, General Fund, Grant funding	Medium-term				
Action MPK-19—Reto, the City's bi-annu	eview and update the all resident survey a	e City's 2014 Emerg	ency Operation Plan. In ual report on LHMP.	corporate outre	each, which may include	ə, but not limited				
Hazards Mitigated	Flood, Earthquake, Sea Level Rise	Climate Change, Da	am Failure, Landslide/M	ass Movement	s, Severe Weather, Dro	ought, Tsunami,				
Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12	City of Menlo Park	Menlo Park Fire Protection District		Staff time	Short-term				
Action MPK-20-Pr	ovide training oppor	tunities for City staff	to be certified floodplain	n managers.						
Hazards Mitigated	Flood									
New	1, 5, 7, 8, 9,13	City of Menlo Park		Low	Staff time, General Fund	Ongoing				

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Obiectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action MPK-21—Pr	rovide education to o	community members	and City staff about the	e City's 2030 C	limate Action Plan goals	s and present
strategies to achieve	e those goals.	na Laval Dian				
<u>Hazards Mitigated</u>	Limate Change, S	ea Level Rise		Low	Staff time, Conoral	Short term
New and Existing	8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14	City of Menio Park		LOW	Fund	Short-term
Action MPK-22—De reservoir to provide	evelop an emergeno emergency water su	cy water storage and upply to residents due	supply project which ma ring times of emergencie	ay include, but es.	is not limited to, a new	underground
<u>Hazards Mitigated</u> New	Flood, Earthquake, 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9	Climate Change, Se Menlo Park Municipal Water	evere Weather, Drought	\$27M	Staff time, Water Fund. Loans	Medium-term (5-10 vears)
Action MPK-23—Reensure continued put	eplace the roof on R Iblic health protectio	eservoir 2, which is n, system reliability,	deteriorating and at the and ensure the function	end of its life e ality of the exis	xpectancy. The replace sting emergency water s	ment would storage.
Hazards Mitigated	Earthquake, Climat	te Change, Severe V	Veather, Drought			
Existing	1, 4, 6, 8, 9,13	Menlo Park Municipal Water		\$4.6M	Water Fund	Short-term
Action MPK-24—PI upgrade infrastructu	an, design, and imp re in the Menlo Park	lement the water infr Municipal Water se	astructure improvement rvice area to meet fire fl	ts recommende ow demands.	ed in the Water System	Master Plan to
Hazards Mitigated	Severe Weather					.
Existing	1, 4, 6, 8, 9,13	Menlo Park Municipal Water		\$1.6M	Water Fund	Short-term
Action MPK-25—As alternative emergen	s part of the Water S cy water supply sou	System Master Plan o rces.	capital improvement pro	jects, two wate	er interconnection projec	ts would provide
Hazards Mitigated	Earthquake, Droug	ht, Severe Weather				
New	1, 2, 4, 6, 8, 9, 13	Menlo Park Municipal Water		\$2M	Water Fund	Short-term
Action MPK-26—In into land use plannir their General Plans,	corporate considera ng and shoreline dev Climate-related Pla	tion of the FEMA 10 velopment. This inclu ns, and the developr	0-year tide and sea leve ides new policies by loca nent applications.	I rise data and al jurisdictions,	climate change-driven and County and City ad	extreme storms ctions regarding
<u>Hazards Mitigated</u>	Flood, Climate Cha	ange, Sea Level Rise)			
New and Existing	1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 13, 14	SMC Flood & Sea Level Rise Resiliency District	County and Menlo Park	Low	General Fund, Private Developers, City Capital Project Funding	Ongoing
Action MPK-27—Co	ontinue to identify ar	nd plan upgrades of	utility systems, equipme	nt, and critical	facilities, including pum	p stations,
generators, tide gate <u>Hazards Mitigated</u>	es, stream gages, op Climate Change, F	pen channel, and cul lood, Severe Weathe	vert/pipeline infrastructu er	ire.		
New and Existing	2, 6, 7,8	SMC Flood & Sea Level Rise Resiliency District	Menlo Park, County and San Mateo Resource Conservation District	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood Zones, Grant funding	Ongoing
Action MPK-28—Su	upport green infrastr	ucture projects that	enhance resiliency to na	tural disasters	and incorporate green	design elements
Into nazard mitigatio	n projects where tea	ASIDIE.	lide Flood Severe Wes	athar Drought	Sea Lovel Piso	
New and Existing	2 6 7 8 14	Menlo Park	SMC Flood & Sea	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood	Ongoing
	_, 0, 1, 0, 11		Level Rise Resiliency District, and San	inculum	Zones, Property/Vehicle	Grigority
			Conservation District		Fees, Grant funding	

Benefits New or	Objectives Met		Support Agonov	Estimated	Sources of Funding	Timeline 2
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency		Sources of Funding	
FSLRRD projects.	entity and pursue str	rategies to enhance	recycled water intrastru	cture planning/	Implementation in the vi	cinity of
Hazards Mitigated	Drought					
New and Existing	1, 6, 7,8	Menlo Park, SMC Flood & Sea Level Rise Resiliency District	County of San Mateo, San Mateo Resource Conservation District, and West Bay Sanitary Sewer District	Medium	Grant funding	Ongoing
Action MPK-30- Ir	nprove community re	esponse to flood em	ergencies in various wa	ys, including b	ut not limited to:	
- Upgrade and expa - Conduct communit	nd the countywide flo y flood preparation,	ood early warning sy education, and reco	very outreach.			
Hazards Mitigated	Climate Change, Fl	ood, Severe Weath	er	L		
New and Existing	2, 3, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11	Level Rise Resiliency District	County and Menio Park	Low	Grant funding	Short-term
Action MPK-31-De	evelop Emergency A	ction Plans for Bayf	ront Canal and Atherton	Channel.		
Hazards Mitigated	Climate Change, Fl	ood, Severe Weath	er, Sea Level Rise			
Existing	3, 4, 7, 8, 9,11	SMC Flood & Sea Level Rise Resiliency District	Redwood City, County of San Mateo, Menlo Park, and Atherton	Low	Grant funding	Long-term
Action MPK-32—Ac Francisco Bay shore enhancements when	dvance long-term res line south of Whippl e possible.	silience to sea level e Avenue to Marsh	rise and extreme storms Road, as well as provide	for the commu e environmenta	unities and critical asset al, recreation, communit	s along the San y/connectivity
Hazards Mitigated	Climate Change, Fl	ood, Severe Weath	er, Sea Level Rise			
New and Existing	6, 7, 8,14	SMC Flood & Sea Level Rise Resiliency District	Redwood City, County, and Menlo Park	High	Private Developers, Grant funding	Long-term
Action MPK-33—Co Atherton Channel FI	omplete construction ood Protection and I	and oversee ongoi Ecosystem Restorat	ng operation, maintenar ion Project.	nce, and mitiga	tion efforts for the Bayfr	ont Canal and
Hazards Mitigated	Flood, Severe Wea	ther, Sea Level Rise				
Existing	4, 7, 8	SMC Flood & Sea Level Rise Resiliency District	Redwood City, Menlo Park, Atherton, and County	Low	Grant funding, City Capital Project Funding	Short-term
Action MPK-34—Ac San Francisquito Cru environmental, recre <u>Hazards Mitigated</u>	dvance long-term res eek and nearby area eation, community/cc Climate Change, Fl	silience to sea level as of the shoreline w onnectivity enhancer ood, Severe Weath	rise and extreme storms ith the Cities of Menlo P nents where possible. er, Sea Level Rise	ofor the commu ark and East P	unities and critical asset alo Alto, as well as prov	s adjacent to the <i>i</i> ide
New and Existing	4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 14	Menlo Park	Caltrans, and San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority, San Mateo Resource Conservation District	Medium	Grant funding, Federal Grants (FEMA BRIC/HMGP), City Capital Project Funding	Long-term
a. Short-term = C	ompletion within 5 ye	ears; Long-term = C	ompletion within 10 yea	rs; Ongoing= C	Continuing new or existir	ng program with
no completion	date	beginning of this you	ume			

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 12-15. Mitigation Action Priority									
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Eligible for Outside Fundina?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementa tion Prioritv ^a	Outside Funding Source Pursuit Priority ^a	Social Equity Priority ^a
1	5	Hiah	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	Hiah
2	4	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
3	8	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
4	14	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
5	13	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
6	6	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium	Medium
7	3	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium	High
8	2	High	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	High	High
9	7	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	Low
10	7	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	High
11	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	High
12	7	High	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	High	High
13	8	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	High	High
14	8	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
15	8	Low	High	No	No	No	Low	Low	Low
16	10	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Low	Low	High
17	7	High	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
18	7	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	Medium	High
19	9	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	Medium	Medium	High
20	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low	Low
21	14	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Medium	Low	High
22	7	High	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low	High
23	6	Medium	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Low	High
24	6	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	High
25	7	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Low	High
26	9	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	High
27	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	High
28	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	Medium
29	4	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium	Low
30	7	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Low	High
31	6	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Low	High
32	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High	High
33	3	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Low	High
34	6	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High	High

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 12-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions									
			Action Add	ressing Haza	rd, by Mitigati	on Type ^a			
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building	
High-Risk Hazards									
Flood	MPK-2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 22, 26, 27, 28, 32, 33, 34	MPK-1, 2, 3, 7, 9, 11, 15, 16, 18, 26, 27, 28, 32, 34	MPK-5, 7, 12, 13, 16, 19, 30, 31	MPK-9, 10, 18, 26, 28, 32, 33, 34	MPK-4, 6, 7, 8, 11, 15, 19, 22, 27, 30, 31	MPK-2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 10, 11, 16, 17, 22, 27, 28, 33	MPK-2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 18, 26, 27, 28, 32, 33, 34	MPK-1, 2, 5, 7, 16, 20	
Earthquake	MPK-2, 3, 4, 7, 15, 16, 19, 22	MPK-1, 2, 3, 7, 15, 16, 23	MPK-7, 16, 19		MPK-4, 6, 7, 15, 19, 22, 23, 25	MPK-2, 3, 7, 16, 22, 23, 25	MPK-1, 2, 3,7	MPK-1, 2, 7,16	
Sea Level Rise / Climate Change	MPK-2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 22, 26, 27, 28, 32, 34	MPK-2, 3, 7, 9, 11, 15, 16, 18, 23, 26, 27, 28, 32, 33	MPK-5, 7, 12, 13, 16, 19, 21, 30, 31	MPK-9, 10, 18, 21, 26, 28, 32, 34	MPK-4, 7, 8, 11, 15, 19, 22, 23, 27, 28, 30, 31	MPK-2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 10, 11, 16, 17, 22, 23, 27, 28	MPK-2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 18, 26, 27, 28, 32, 34	MPK-2, 3, 5, 7, 16	
Medium-Risk Haza	rds								
Severe Weather/ Extreme Weather	MPK-9, 12, 13, 15, 16, 18, 19, 22, 24, 27, 28, 32, 33, 34	MPK-9, 11, 15, 18, 23, 24, 27, 28, 32, 34	MPK-12, 13, 19, 30, 33	MPK-9, 28, 32, 33, 34	MPK-11, 15, 19, 22, 23, 24, 25, 27, 28, 30, 31	MPK-9, 11, 16, 17, 22, 23, 24, 25, 27, 28, 33	MPK-9, 11, 12, 13, 27, 28, 32, 33, 34	MPK-16	
Low-Risk Hazards									
Landslide/ Mass Movements	MPK-9, 19, 28	MPK-9,28	MPK-19	MPK-9,28	MPK-20,28	MPK-9,28	MPK-9,28		
Dam Failure	MPK-9, 16, 19	MPK-9,16	MPK-16,19	MPK-9	MPK-19	MPK-9,16	MPK-9	MPK-16	
Drought	MPK-3, 4, 13, 19, 22, 28, 29	MPK-3, 23, 28, 29	MPK-13,19	MPK-28	MPK-4, 19, 22, 23, 25, 28, 29	MPK-3, 22, 23, 25, 28,29	MPK-3, 13, 28, 29	MPK-3	
Tsunami			MPK-19		MPK-19				

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

12.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 12-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 12-17. Local Public Outreach	
------------------------------------	--

Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved						
City Council study session	Tentative August 2021	5 Councilmembers + Public						
City of Menlo Park Weekly Digest E-Newsletter Article https://www.menlopark.org/Blog.aspx?IID=1747	5/24/2021	N/A						
City of Menlo Park Weekly Digest E-Newsletter Article https://www.menlopark.org/Blog.aspx?IID=1706	4/5/2021	N/A						
City of Menlo Park Weekly Digest E-Newsletter Article	Week of July 26	N/A						

12.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

- **City of Menlo Park Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- **City of Menlo Park Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- City of Menlo Park 2030 Climate Action Plan—The CAP outlines goals and strategies related to environmental protection and climate change.
- **City of Menlo Park General Plan**—This comprehensive planning document contains many components related to local hazard mitigation planning.
 - > Open Space/Conservation, Noise and Safety Elements (Adopted May 21, 2013)
- Association of Bay Area Governments—Data used for growth management summary (Plan Bay Area 2040)
- **California Department of Finance**—Data used for growth management summary (Table E-5, Population and Housing Estimates).
- Accela—City of Menlo Park online permitting software used for collecting development records.
- City of Menlo Park Emergency Operation Plan—The Plan was reviewed to identify the need to update it.
- Climate Emergency Resolution No. 6535—The resolution shows political support on addressing climate change.
- Climate and Sustainability Resolution No. 6493—The resolution shows political support to support the implementation of climate change adaptation strategies.
- Amend the 2030 Climate Action Plan Resolution No. 6621—The resolution includes the scope of work for 2021 implementation of the climate action plan.
- **Public Works Mutual Aid Agreement Resolution No. 6547**—The resolution enters the City into San Mateo County operational area building safety inspection program mutual aid program.

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

- Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.
- San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District Hazard Mitigation Table—Email correspondence with the District throughout Phase 3.




























Menlo Park

Sea Level Rise

Inundation areas are a combination of Our Coast Our Future 200cm (6.6 feet) of SLR with 100-year storm for the Pacific Ocean coastline, and Adapting to Rising Tides 108 inches (9 feet) of SLR for the San Francisco Bay coastline.

Data Sources: ESRI Basemap, San Mateo Co., ART, OCOF







13. CITY OF MILLBRAE

13.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Bill Reilly, Emergency Services Coordinator 621 Magnolia Avenue Millbrae, CA 94030 650-259-2315 wreilly@smcgov.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Khee Lim, Public Works Director 621 Magnolia Avenue Millbrae, CA 94030 650-259-2347 klim@ci.millbrae,ca.us

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 13-1.

Table 13-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members			
Name	Title		
Bill Reilly	Emergency Services Coordinator		
Khee Lim	Director of Public Works		
Val Mandapat	Deputy Chief Building Official		
Roscoe Mata	Planning Manager		
Christine Reed	Fire Marshal		
Craig Centis	Deputy Public Works Director		

13.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

13.2.1 Location and Features

The City of Millbrae is located on the Peninsula, 15 miles south of San Francisco. The boundaries of this city extend roughly from the Bayshore Freeway on the east to Skyline Boulevard on the west. This distance is approximately 1.7 miles. The distance between the north and south city limit line is approximately 2.05 miles. The City of Millbrae has approximately 100 employees with an operating budget of \$52 million. The City of Millbrae borders the following San Mateo County jurisdictions: Burlingame to the south, Pacifica to the West, San Bruno and South San Francisco to the North.

According to the National Weather Service, Millbrae enjoys a typical Mediterranean climate featuring cool, wet winters and dry, mild summers. Night and morning fog are common during the summer months. Frequent, westerly sea breezes keep temperatures relatively mild throughout the year with highs in the middle fifties and lows in the lower forties during the winter and highs in the lower seventies and lows in the lower fifties during the summer. Annual precipitation ranges from 20 inches in the lowlands to 32 inches in the hills near Skyline Boulevard and I-280; most of the rain falls from November through April. Snow is very rare; the last measurable

occurrence was on February 5, 1976. The nearest National Weather Service station is at the nearby San Francisco International Airport, where records go back to early 1927.

13.2.2 History

The City of Millbrae, incorporated in 1948, was a small settlement largely dependent on market farming, the Mills Estate and Dairy, West Coast Porcelain Works (later the Royal Container Company), and vegetable and flower farming until World War 2. Southern Pacific Railroad, the 40-line streetcar line, El Camino Real and Skyline Road (in the approximate location of I-280) linked the settlement to nearby towns and San Francisco. Millbrae in the period 1920-1950 was beginning its transformation from its roots as a farming village supplying the produce markets of San Francisco to a small town. Development of the town was largely governed by transportation features: the railway, streetcar line, highways, and airport.

13.2.3 Governing Body Format

Millbrae operates as a General Law City, providing for a Council/Manager form of government that clearly distinguishes the legislative power of the City Council from the administrative powers of the City Manager.

The five-member City Council is elected directly by the residents of Millbrae. As the legislative branch of the government, the City Council makes final decisions on all major City matters. The Council adopts ordinances and resolutions necessary for efficient governmental operations, approves the budget, and acts as a board of appeals. The Council appoints the City Manager and City Attorney, as well as the members of the City's boards and commissions.

The City Council assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the City Manager will oversee its implementation.

13.3 CURRENT TRENDS

13.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of Millbrae as of January 2020 was 22,832. Since 2016, the population has decreased at an average annual rate of 0.33 percent.

13.3.2 Development

The City of Millbrae recently amended its Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan to allow Level 2 Biotechnology use south of Millbrae Avenue. Since the last Plan update, the Gateway at Millbrae Station mixed use development has begun construction. The project includes 400 residential housing units, 217,000 square feet of Class A office and a 162-room hotel.

The City of Millbrae will be updating its General Plan shortly as well as introducing a Downtown Plan and El Camino Real Specific Plan. These plans are intended to up-zone the commercial core area by allowing high density mixed use developments along El Camino Real Corridor.

The City of Millbrae has also received numerous applications for mixed use developments and commercial nonresidential developments. The City of Millbrae envisions high density mixed use development in the near to mid-term with very few infill single family residential developments.

Identifying previous and future development trends is achieved through a comprehensive review of permitting since completion of the previous plan and in anticipation of future development. Tracking previous and future growth in potential hazard areas provides an overview of increased exposure to a hazard within a community. Table 13-2 summarizes development trends in the performance period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 13-2. Rece	ent and Expected Future Develop	ment Tr	ends				
Criterion	Re	Response					
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan? If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures.	No						
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan? If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses. If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas?	No						
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas	Yes Development in the El Camino, downtown area, and Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan None of which are in known hazard risk areas						
How many permits for new construction were		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	
issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	1	3	0	0	0	
preparation of the previous hazard mitigation	Multi-Family	1	0	0	0	0	
	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	1	1	3	0	2	
	Total	3	4	3	0	2	
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: 1 Landslide: 0 High Liquefaction Areas: 0 Tsunami Inundation Area: 0 Wildfire Risk Areas: 0 						
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	There are at least: 5 vacant lots for single family 3 vacant lots for multi-family 3 vacant lots for commercial						

13.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this

annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 13-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 13-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 13-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 13-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 13-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 13-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 13-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 13-10.

Table 13-3. Planning and Regulatory Capability				
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements				
Building Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Local Building Official and Fire Mars 2019 Edition, 11/16/2020, Ordinance	hal for Standards Co 783	des – Muni Code 9.05.010	– Adopted California E	Building Code,
Zoning Code	Yes	No	No	No
Comment: Community Development MMC 10.0	5, Adoption of Zoning	, Plan, Adopted 10/13/09	Ordinance 726MMC 1	0.05
Subdivisions	Yes	No	No	No
Comment: Public Works & Community Develop	ment MMC 10.15, Ad	lopted 6/17/51, Ordinance	69,	
Stormwater Management	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Comment: Public Works MMC 8.70 & MRP 2.0	Order No. R2-2015-0	049 NPDES Permit No. C	AS612008	
Post-Disaster Recovery	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Community Development with Public Works. San Mateo County Public Works Mutual Aid Resolution 074124 adopted 10/20/05 Community Development with Building Dept. San Mateo County Operational Area Building Safety Inspection Program Mutual Aid Agreement Resolution 21-13 adopted 2/09/21				
Real Estate Disclosure	No	Yes	Yes	No
Comment: County Assessor's Office. CA. State of any and all real property.	Civil Code 1102 requ	uires full disclosure on Nat	ural Hazard Exposure	of the sale/re-sale
Growth Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment: Community Development. The City of following land use goals: Preserve th Design and Property Maintenance, n Enhance Commercial Areas, and Pro guidance on managing future growth issues, presents current traffic count plans. Recommended policies and in Element provides goals and objective and projections.	of Millbrae General Pl ne Quality of Residen naintain a Variety of L ovide Adequate Serve . The Chapter 4 Circl s for City arterials and nplementing actions es to guide housing r	an (1998-2015) addresses tial Neighborhoods, Promo and Uses, Support Econo ices and Facilities. The Ho ulation Element identifies o d adjoining freeways, and address current and antici equirements, needs, polici	s growth management of Property Site Plann omic Development and using and Circulation E current traffic, circulatic discusses relevant reg pated needs. The Chap ies, programs and addi	through the ing, Architectural revitalize and Elements provide on, and parking ional transportation oter 5 Housing ress future trends

					In the second second
		Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?
Site Plan R	eview	Yes	No	No	Yes
 Comment: Community Development. The City of Millbrae addresses Site Plan Review in the General Plan (1998-2015) Land Use Goa 2 (LU2): Promote Proper Site Planning, Architectural Design and Property Maintenance. The City of Millbrae Planning and Zoning Code (effective November 13, 2009) establishes the requirements for the project site plan design review and entitlement process. In addition to Planning, all proposed projects are reviewed by the Building, Public Works, and Fire Departments to ensure they meet all local, state, and federal requirements and obtain all the necessary permits and entitlements, including Planning Commission and/or City Council approval before construction. 					
Environme	ntal Protection	Yes	No	Yes	No
Comment:	Community Development with Public projects for environmental impacts un (CEQA/NEPA)	Works. The Commu der the California Er	nity Development Departn wironmental Quality Act/N	nent evaluates all prop ational Environmental	osed development Protection Act
Flood Dama	age Prevention	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Public Works. MMC 8.50, Flood Dama	age Prevention, Ado	pted 9/23/03, Ordinance 6	88MMC 8.50	
Emergency	Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Contract with San Mateo County Offic Annually (Municipal Code with Title 19	e of Emergency Sei 9, Division 2)	vices to provide Emergen	cy Management Servic	ces. Renewed
Climate Cha	ange	Yes	No	No	Yes
	policies, programs, and projects to The following are the City's Goals a Climate Protection and Sustainabil U.S. Mayor's Climate Pr Participated in ICLEI- Ci Resolution 09-68 adopte	address the reduction and Policies: otection Agreement ties for Climate Proton ad 9/22/09: Establish	on of GHG emissions and i es: , Adopted 6/12/07, Resolu rection Campaign, Adopted nes specific Green House	related efforts to improv tion 07-31. 1 6/12/07, Resolution 0 Gas (GHG) emissions	ve sustainability. 7-32. reduction goals
 for municipal operations and communitywide GHG emissions sources in the City of Millbrae. Currently participating in the countywide RICAPS program for regionally-integrated climate action planning, GHG inventories and CAP development. Currently preparing a draft CAP pursuant to adopted targets and in coordination with RICAPS. 					ction S.
The Safety Element of the City of Millbrae General Plan (1998) contains policies related to climate change effects and adaptation:					
 Policy S1.1 Location of A Future Development; Policy S1.8 Reforestation Policy S1.12 Ordinances and Codes Policy S1.17 Drainage Channels, Hydraulic Pumps and Conduits Policy S1.18 Hazards Policy S1.19 Rise in Sea level Policy S2.2 Emergency Services Facilities Policy S2.3 Hazardous Awareness 					
	The San Mateo County Sea-Level assessment to inventory of all asse	Rise Vulnerability As Its vulnerable to sea	ssessment: The City of Mil -level rise, identify specific seuros, and improve fleedii	Ibrae participated in the vulnerabilities of 30 re	is regional epresentative

assessment to inventory of all assets vulnerability Assessment: The City of Millibrae participated in this regional assessment to inventory of all assets vulnerable to sea-level rise, identify specific vulnerabilities of 30 representative assets, issue initial recommendations on adaption measures, and improve flooding and sea-level rise mapping. The assessment was completed 2016. High Line Canal and Millbrae Water Pollution Control Plant as well as the Millbrae Intermodal Station were included as critical assets.

			Other Jurisdiction		Integration		
		Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?		
Planning Do	ocuments		1				
General Pla	in	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Is the plan	compliant with Assembly Bill 2140?	No					
Comment:	Comment: The City of Millbrae has begun a two-year process to update the General Plan, which was last adopted in 1998. The General Plan will guide decision making for land use, transportation, infrastructure, community design, environmental issues, and other important topics that impact the community. The General Plan is a long-range planning document that will look ahead to 2040. The General Plan Update will include a specific plan for the Downtown Priority Development Area and an Active Transportation Plan. The City contracted the consultant, Mintier Harnish to prepare the General Plan. The project is estimated to be completed in the fall of 2022. The Updated General Plan will include linkages to the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan.						
Capital Imp	rovement Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
How often i	is the plan updated? Annually						
Comment:	Public Works with Finance						
Disaster De	ebris Management Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment:	Currently developing Disaster Debris	Management Plan ir	n cooperation with San Ma	ateo County.			
Floodplain	or Watershed Plan	No	No	No	Yes		
Comment: Public Works. MMC 8.50, Flood Damage Prevention, Adopted 9/23/03, Ordinance 688. Includes subsections such as 8.50.040 Basis for establishing the areas of special flood hazard, 8.50.080 Warning and disclaimer of liability, and 8.50.110 Designation of the floodplain administrator. The City Engineer or Director of Public Works are appointed to administer and enforce policies outlined in this chapter. Section 8.50.050 Compliance required ensures public safety by prohibiting construction in floodplains without proper permitting and code compliance. MMC 8.50							
Stormwater	r Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: Public Works with Community Development. MMC 8.70, Adopted in 6/14/94. Ordinance 607, The purpose of this chapter is to ensure the future health, safety, and general welfare of city citizens: Eliminating non-storm water discharges to the municipal separate storm sewer; Controlling the discharge to municipal separate storm sewers from spills, dumping or disposal of materials other than storm water; Reducing pollutants in storm water discharges to the maximum extent practicable. The intent of this chapter is to protect and enhance the water quality of our watercourses, water bodies and wollands in a manner pursuant to and consistent with the Clean Water Act. (Ord. 607, § 1: 1976 Code § 8 14.02) MMC 8 70.							
Urban Wate	er Management Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes		
Comment:	City of Millbrae Resolution 21-32 ado	oted the 2020 Urban	Water Management Plan	on May 25, 2021			
Habitat Cor	servation Plan	No	No	No	No		
Comment:	N/A – if one developed would be defin	ned by Community D	Development				
Economic [Development Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: Community Development, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 2013 Millbrae Economic Development Plan. Adopted 2/12/13. (By William R. Kelly, Kelly Associates Management Group). There was an update to the 2013 Millbrae Economic Development Plan completed Feb. 2015 by William R. Kelly. The 2013 Economic Development Plan provides an analysis of City's current economic profile, identifies certain financial issues facing the City that are interrelated with economic development, assesses the relative strengths, weakness, opportunities, and threats that are perceived by community stakeholders, and offers short-term and long-term strategies for addressing economic needs.							
Shoreline M	lanagement Plan	No	Yes	No	No		
Comment:	Managed by Bay Area Conservation I	Development Distric	with U.S. Fish and Wildlit	e Service			

			Other Jurisdiction		Integration
		Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?
Community	Wildfire Protection Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment:	 Annex to 2010 Association of Bay Area Governments Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, Millbrae The Annexation to the MJ-LHMP outlines mitigation measures that Millbrae is required to implement to decrease the loss or risk to life and property in event of a hazard, including fire. Exhibit C to the annex lists mitigation actions and priorities adopted by Millbrae to address fire hazards. The Plan identifies the Fire Chief as a liaison between the Millbrae Fire Department and the City in terms of emergency response issues, and the City's Emergency Response Operating Center. Community Wildfire Protection Plan In 2010, a collaborative group consisting of CAL FIRE, Resource Conservation District of Santa Cruz County, San Mateo Resource Conservation District, and the US Fish and Wildlife Service worked together to create a draft Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) which includes the city of Millbrae in the planning area. The Plan identifies fire protection agencies with jurisdiction, volunteer organizations, large landowners, communities, neighborhoods, open spaces, and other environmental resources in the planning area that may be at risk of fire hazards. Municipal Code Chapter 9.30 (Fire Code) Chapter 9.30 of the Millbrae Municipal Code (Fire Code) was last updated as a result of Ordinance 774 passed October 22, 2019. The code identifies safety information, restricted use of flammable materials, and other detailed rules for handling combustible or flammable goods. The code also identifies climate conditions, geographical conditions, and topographical conditions that may exacerbate fire hazards in the city of Millbrae. Some of these conditions include prolonged periods of drought in combination with warm western winds and increasing temperatures due to climate change and increasing response times for fire equipment and other emergency services due to urban				
Forest Man	agement Plan	No	No	Yes	No
Comment:	National Forest Service				
Climate Act	ion Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment: Public Works with Community Development. The City adopted a Climate Action Plan in 2020. The City has implemented a number of policies, programs, and projects to address the reduction of GHG emissions and related efforts to improve sustainability. Please Climate Change Section for more details.					
Emergency	Operations Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment:	Emergency Management Service Millbrae is a member of the San Mater 0/28/14	es provided through o o County Emergency	contract with San Mateo C / Services Joint Powers A	County Office of Emerg greement. Resolution	ency Services. 14.09 adopted

as regulates the manner in which materials are stored.

		Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?	
Threat & Hazard Iden Assessment (THIRA)	tification & Risk	Yes No No				
Comment: Commu The Cit local ag Hazard MMC 4	 <i>nt:</i> Community Development to align with General Plan. Update, which is currently underway. The City of Millbrae addresses the following hazard and safety issues as required by federal, state, regional and local agencies: Emergency Preparedness, Seismic and Geologic Hazards, Flood Hazards, Fire Hazards, Aviation Hazards, Hazardous Materials and Noise (Ground Transportation, Aircraft, Non-Transportation). MMC 4.65, Adopted 12/27/83, Ordinance 476. Chapter 4.65 addresses the storage of hazardous materials to 					

In 2010 Millbrae officials, in cooperation with the San Mateo County Fire Department and the San Mateo County Sheriff's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Services, drafted the Millbrae Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex (LHMP) to ensure the most effective and economical allocation of resources for protection of human health, property and the environment in the event of an emergency or disaster.

2015 Multijurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and Millbrae Annex: In September of 2015, the San Mateo County Emergency Manager's Associate selected a consultant to update the 2010 Multijurisdictional Plan. The consultant has been working on the update and it is anticipated that the update will be completed in the summer of 2016. In addition to the Multijurisdictional Annex, individual jurisdictions and districts within the County will be preparing their own specific Annex which will tier off of the County-wide plan. The City of Millbrae will be preparing an updated Annex as part of this process.

Geologic and Seismic Hazards: MMC Chapter 9.05 adopts the 2013 City Building Code (CBC). The CBC contains requirements for seismic safety. All new development in the city is required to adhere to the standards and regulations in the code. Chapter 9.65 of the municipal code addresses the seismic identification program for unreinforced masonry buildings.

Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: Included in the Emergency Operations Plan which will be updated within the next few years.						
Continuity of Operations Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: Included in the Emergency Operations Plan.						
Public Health Plan	No	Yes	No	No		
Comment: San Mateo County Health System						
Other	Yes	No	No	Yes		
Comment: Urban Water Management Plan (2010, 2015), Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan (2016)						

Table 13-4. Development and Permitting Capability				
Criterion	Response			
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department?	Yes Community Development Dept – Building Division			
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area?	No			
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory?	No			

Table 13-5. Fiscal Capability				
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?			
Community Development Block Grants	No			
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes			
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	No			
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes, Water and Sanitation			
Incur Debt through General Obligation Bonds	Yes			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	Yes			
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	No			
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	No			
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes			
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes			
Other	No			

Table 13-6. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?	Department/Agency/Position		
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes	Community Development / Municipal / Contract Support/Public Works		
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	Community Development / Municipal / Contract Support/Public Works		
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes	Local/ Contract Support/Public Works		
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis	Yes	Local/ Contract Support		
Surveyors	Yes	Contract Support (San Mateo County Public Works)		
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications	Yes	Community Development\Local/ Contract Support/Public Works		
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area	Yes	Local/ Contract Support		
Emergency manager	Yes	Contract Support through San Mateo County Office of Emergency Services		
Grant writers	Yes	Local/ Contract Support/Public Works		

Criterion	Response
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes Link to the last Hazard Mitigation Annex and Emergency Preparedness information
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes We use Nextdoor, Facebook, Instagram, and Twitter
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes Muni Code - Emergency Services Disaster Board

Criterion	Response
Do you have any other programs already in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes SMC Alert and Millbrae CERT program
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes SMC Alert, AWS, and Telephone Emergency Warning System (TENS)

Table 13-8. National Flood Insurance Program Cor	npliance
Criterion	Response
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Public Works & Community Development
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Public Works Director
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	Ordinance 688, 1976
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements? <i>If exceeds, in what ways?</i>	Meet
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	11/20/2007
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed? If so, state what they are.	No
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction? If so, state what they are.	No
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	Yes
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed?	Yes Staff participated in DWR and FEMA training. <u>Asfpm Beyond Local Boundaries.mp4</u> Click on link above to view staff presentation at the May 2021 Association of State Floodplain Managers Annual Conference
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program?	No No. The City studied the cost to participate in the CRS and decided against participating at this time due to insufficient staff and resources.
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a What is the insurance in force? What is the premium in force?	128 \$43,384,500 \$107,767
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a What were the total payments for losses?	41 \$178,561
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021	

Table 13-9. Community Classifications								
Participating? Classification Date Classif								
FIPS Code	Yes	0608147486	N/A					
DUNS #	Yes	091847517	N/A					
Community Rating System	No	N/A	N/A					
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule – Currently participating in the process to receive a rating.	Yes	TBD	TBD					
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A					
Storm Ready	No	N/A	N/A					
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A					
Tsunami Ready	No	N/A	N/A					

Table 13-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical Capacity	
Jurisdiction-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	Medium
Comment: Medium – performed high level assessment of Sea Level Rise on Bayfront and creeks	
Jurisdiction-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Medium
Comment: Medium – continuing to work with County for further studies on Sea Level Rise	
Technical resources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Medium
Comment: Medium – Would need to work with consultant who performed assessment for Sea Level Rise	
Jurisdiction-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	High
Comment: High – Completed GHG emission Inventory as part of Millbrae Climate Action Plan adopted Oct. 202	20
Capital planning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	Low
Comment: Low: Need to plan and develop policies building codes for future urban uses	1
Participation in regional groups addressing climate risks	High
Comment: High: Participating in the County's Climate Ready SMC	
Implementation Capacity	
Clear authority/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes <i>Comment: N/A</i>	Unsure
Identified strategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Hiah
Comment: High – Adopted Climate Action Plan with GHG mitigation measures	5
Identified strategies for adaptation to impacts	Unsure
Comment:	1
Champions for climate action in local government departments	Medium
Comment: Medium - one FTE to fulfill climate action, GHG reduction, community outreach and engagement, re	porting and other duties
Political support for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	High
Comment:	
Financial resources devoted to climate change adaptation	Low
Comment: Low – City limited financial resources. Need to add to budget for each project/program	
Local authority over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Medium
Comment:	

Criterion	Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Public Capacity	
Local residents' knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	Medium
Comment: Medium – continual education throughout CAP development, sea level rise assessment and for all e	nvironmental programs
Local residents support of adaptation efforts	Low
Comment:	
Local residents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	
Local economy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	
Local ecosystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low
Comment:	

High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist but is not used or could use some improvement;
 Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating.

13.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

13.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- General Plan The general plan includes a "Safety" element to protect the community from unreasonable risk by establishing policies and actions to avoid or minimize the following hazards:
 - Geologic and seismic hazards
 - ➢ Fire hazards
 - Hazardous materials
 - Impacts from climate change
- General Plan Community Development & Public Works: The City is in the process of updating its General Plan and Downtown & El Camino Real Specific Plan. These plans will have local hazard mitigation components. The Master Plan Update, in the Hazards & Safety Element will link with LHMP.
- Climate Action Plan The Millbrae City Council adopted the Climate Action Plan in 2020. The CAP contains many of the climate change and sea level rise measures to combat rising sea level and mitigate climate change.
- Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District (One Shoreline) The City is a member and is working with the District to secure federal funding to implement sea level rise and resiliency projects.

- New FEMA maps The City of Millbrae has received the FEMA Flood Map Update in 2018 and Public Works will update flood insurance information as needed based on the updated maps
- Environmental Protection The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) analyzes hazards and hazardous materials as part of the CEQA checklist. Specific questions being analyzed include: whether a project is a significant hazard to the public or environment, emits hazardous emissions, is located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous material sites, expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death.

13.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment presented in this annex identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

- Grant participation opportunities (FEMA) which the city will collaboratively work on, with the Fire and Sheriff's departments
- Participation in more rating programs and will work collaboratively with the Fire and Sheriff's departments
- **Mutual Aide Agreements** San Mateo County Public Works Mutual Aid Agreement has been established in 2015. Protocols and Standard Operating Procedures have also been established. Building Safety Inspection Program Mutual Aid.
- Update Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance to 2004 standards
- Increased integration with public outreach initiatives
- **General Plan**—The city is updating its General Plan to plan for future growth through 2040. Included in the update, the City will update its Safety Element to address hazard risks. The General Plan update is expected to be complete at the end of 2022 or beginning of 2023.
- Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk this could be potentially integrated under the Safety Element of the General Plan Update.
- **Growth Management**—As part of the General Plan update, the City will consider addressing growth management and how it addresses risk from hazards as the city continues to increase its population.
- **Zoning Code**—After the General Plan update, the zoning code may be amended to address and ingrate hazard in further detail although funding for an overhaul of the zoning code has yet to be identified.
- **Subdivisions**—After the General Plan update, the subdivision section of the municipal code may be amended although funding for this work has yet to be identified.

13.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

13.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 13-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction. Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 13-11. Past Natural Hazard Events							
Type of Event							
COVID-19 Pandemic	DR-4482	January 20, 2020 -present	Not available				
Severe Winter Storm, Flooding, and Mudslides	DR-4308	February 1-23, 2017	Not available				
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding and Mudslides	DR-4305	January 18-23, 2017	Not available				
Severe Winter Storms, Flooding and Mudslides	DR-1646	March 29-April 16, 2006	Not available				
Crestview Landslide & Pinehurst Court		February 2000	\$11,000,000				
Sleepy Hollow, Clearfield & Morningside Landslide	DR-1203	February 1998	Not available				
1989 Loma Prieta Earthquake	DR-845	October 1989	Not available				
Landslide @ 21 & 25 & 29 Via Canon	DR-677	February 1983	Not available				

13.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 13-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property, and the economy. Mitigation actions target hazards with high and medium rankings.

Table 13-12. Hazard Risk Ranking							
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category				
1	Landslide/Mass Movements	51	High				
2	Earthquake	36	High				
3	Sea level Rise / Climate Change	27	Medium				
4	Severe Weather/Extreme Weather	24	Medium				
5	Flood	18	Medium				
6	Drought	9	Low				
7	Tsunami	6	Low				
8	Dam Failure	0	Low				
9	Wildfire	0	Low				

13.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 1
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 1
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- Landslides
- Earthquake
- Climate Change
- Severe Weather/Extreme Weather
- Flood.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan for this annex.

13.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 13-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

Table 13-13. Status of Previous Plan Actions						
		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update			
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update		
Action #MB-1: Water System Inter-Tie with San Francisco Airport Comment: The SFO inter-tie project was completed in 2019	\checkmark					
Action #MB-2: Water Storage Tanks Seismic Upgrade/Retrofit/Replacement Comment: Project to be completed by winter 2022			~	MIL-9		
Action #MB-3: Tree Trimming Program Comment: This is an ongoing activity			✓	MIL-18		
Action #MB-4: Emergency Evacuation Warning System & Shelter Comment: Zonehaven Evacuation plan complete -SMCAlert & TENS warning system	 ✓ ems 					
Action #MB-5: Construct New Public Works Corporation Yard West of US101 Comment: Project is no longer financially feasible due to high land cost		\checkmark				
Action #MB-6: Inspect and Retrofit Millbrae Avenue Overpass Comment: This is programmed for FY2023			✓	MIL-8		
Action #MB-7: Retrofit, acquire, or relocate the identified severe repetitive loss property within Millbrae.		\checkmark				
Action G-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase, or relocation of structures in hazard-prone areas to prevent future structure damage. Give priority to properties with exposure to repetitive losses.			√	MIL-1		
Comment: Conducted community meeting in summer of 2019 t share Shoreline Pr Action G-2 —Consider participation in incentive-based programs such as the Community Rating System, Tree City, and StormReady.	otection Plan/S	ea Level Rise	Plan with re	esidents		
Comment: Millbrae is certified as a Tree City, Storm Ready. CRS is not feasible du	e to insufficient	t staff and reso	urces.			

		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update
Action G-3—Maintain good standing under the National Flood Insurance Program by implementing programs that meet or exceed the minimum NFIP requirements. Such programs include enforcing an adopted flood damage prevention ordinance, participating in floodplain mapping updates, and providing public assistance and information on floodplain requirements and impacts.			V	MIL-4
Action G-4—Where feasible, implement a program to record high water marks			✓	MIL-10
following high-water events.				
Comment: Millbrae is considering re-activating this project in the near future when	the City re-vam	p its SCADA		
Action G-5—Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, programs, or resources that dictate land use or redevelopment.			~	MIL-2
Comment: This is ongoing. Millbrae recently adopted the Climate Action Plan and t of the Hazard Mitigation Plan	the measures ir	n the CAP are	compliment	ary to those
Action G-6 —Provide incentives for eligible non-profits and private entities, including homeowners, to adapt to risks through structural and nonstructural retrofitting.				
Comment: This is currently financially not feasible.				
Action G-7— Support the County-wide initiatives identified in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.			~	MIL-3
Comment: Ongoing				
Action G-8— Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.			~	MIL-3
Comment: Ongoing				

13.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 13-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 13-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 13-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 13-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix						
Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action MIL-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase or relocation of structures located in hazard areas, prioritizing those that have experienced repetitive losses and/or are located in high- or medium-risk hazard areas.						
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Flooding	, Landslide, Extrem	e Weather, Sea Lev	el Rise		
Existing	1, 6, 7, 10, 13	Millbrae Community Development	Millbrae Public Works	High	HMGP, BRIC, FMA	Short-term
Action MIL-2— Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, ordinances and programs that dictate land use decisions in the community, including General Plan, Climate Action Plan						
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Flooding	g, Landslide, Sea Le	evel Rise			
New & Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 8,13	Millbrae Community Development	Millbrae Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action MIL-3—Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols and support County initiatives outlined in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.							
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Flooding	g, Landslide & Extre	me Weather, Sea Le	vel Rise			
New & Existing	1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 10, 12	Millbrae Community Development	Millbrae Public Works	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	
Action MIL-4—Co programs that, at a • Enforce the floo • Participate in flo • Provide public a Hazards Mitigated	ntinue to maintain good minimum, meet the NF d damage prevention o odplain identification ar ssistance/information o	standing and comp IP requirements: rdinance. nd mapping updates n floodplain require	liance under the NFI s. ments and impacts.	P through impler	nentation of floodplain mar	agement	
New & Existing	1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8,10	Millbrae Public Works	Millbrae Community Development	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Ongoing	
Action MIL-5—Ide • Sea Level Rise, Hazards Mitigated:	ntify and pursue strated Climate Change, Urban Severe Weather, Wil	jies to increase ada n Heat Island dfire, Sea Level Ris	ptive capacity to clim e	ate change inclu	ding but not limited to the f	ollowing:	
Existing	1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 10, 14	Millbrae Public Works	Millbrae Community Development	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short-term	
Action MIL-6— Pu Evacuation Center	irchase generators for c s	critical facilities and	infrastructure that lac	k adequate back	up power, including Fuel S	upplies,	
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Existing	Dam failure, earthqua 6, 9, 11,	ake, flooding, landsl Public Works	ide, severe weather, Finance	tsunamı, wildfire Medium	General Fund Grant Funding	Short-term	
Action MIL-7—Re	construct failed undergr	ound Millbrae Cree	k culvert				
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood Control & Prop	erty Damage, Sea l	Level Rise				
Existing	6, 9, 11	Millbrae Public Works	Millbrae Community Development	High	General Funds Staff Time	Long-Term	
Action MIL-8—Ins	pect and Retrofit Millbra	ae Avenue Overpas	S				
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Landslid	le & Severe Weathe	er				
New & Existing	6, 9, 11	Millbrae Public Works	Millbrae Community Development	High	General Funds & Transportation Funds	Long-Term	
Action MIL-9-Wa	ater Storage Tanks Seis	mic Upgrade/Retro	fit/Replacement				
Hazards Mitigated:	Earthquake, Wildfire,	Flooding					
New & Existing	6, 9, 11	Millbrae Public Works	Millbrae Finance	High	Water Enterprise Fund	Short-Term	
Action MIL-10 - De	evelop and implement a	program to capture	e perishable data afte	er significant eve	nts (e.g., high water marks,	preliminary	
mitigation plan.	, damage photos) to sup	evel Rise Flood St	on eπorts including th evere Weather Tsun	e implementation	n and maintenance of the n	azaro	
New & Existing	1. 5. 6. 7. 8	SM Flood & Sea	Millbrae Public	Medium	General Fund	Short-Term	
	., ., ., ., .	Level Rise Dist. (FSLRRD)	Works				

Benefits New or				Estimated			
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action MIL -11 - Incorporate consideration of the FEMA 100-year tide and sea level rise, and climate change-driven extreme storms, into land use planning and shoreline development. This includes new policies by local jurisdictions, and County and City actions regarding their General Plans, Climate-related Plans, and the development applications.							
New & Existing	1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 13, 14	FSLRRD	Millbrae Public Works	Low	General Fund, Private Developers, City Capital Project Funding	Ongoing	
Action MIL-12 - Con generators, tide gate Hazards Mitigated:	ntinue to identify and p es, stream gages, ope Climate Change/Sea	blan upgrades of util n channel and culve a Level Rise, Flood,	ity systems, equipme ert/pipeline infrastruct Severe Weather, Se	ent, and critical fa ture. a Level Rise	acilities, including pump sta	tions,	
Hew & Existing	2, 6, 7,8	FSLRRD	Millbrae Public Works	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood Zones, State Grants, Federal Grants (FEMA BRIC/HMGP)	Ongoing	
Action MIL-13 - Sup into hazard mitigatio	pport green infrastruct n projects where feas	ure projects that enlible.	nance resiliency to na	atural disasters a	and incorporate green desig	n elements	
Hazards Mitigated	Climate Change/S	ea Level Rise, Land	slide, Flood, Severe	Weather, Droug	ht, Sea Level Rise		
New & Existing	2, 6, 7, 8, 14	FSLRRD	Millbrae Public Works	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood Zones, Property/Vehicle Fees, Stormwater Fees, State Grants (Caltrans, CA DWR), Federal Grants (EPA), City Capital Project Funding	Ongoing	
Action MIL14 - Imp Flood & Sea Level F Hazards Mitigated: (rove stormwater drain Rise Resiliency District Climate Change/Sea L	age to alleviate repe Flood Zone channe evel Rise, Flood, Se	eated localized floodi els and infrastructure evere Weather, Sea	ng, especially sto Level Rise	orm drain systems connecte	ed to the	
New & Existing	1, 2, 4, 6, 7,8	FSLRRD	Millbrae Public Works	Medium	Tax-Funded Flood Zones, Property/Vehicle Fees, Stormwater Fees, State Grants (Caltrans, CA DWR), Federal Grants (EPA), City Capital Project Funding	Ongoing	
Action MIL-15 - Plan, design, and implement long-term resilience to sea level rise, extreme storms, and coastal erosion for culverts, roadways, and bridges in the vicinity of other flood protection projects, including assets identified in the Caltrans District 4 Adaptation Priorities Report. Hazards Mitigated: Climate Change/Sea Level Rise, Landslide, Flood, Severe Weather, Sea Level Rise							
New & Existing	2, 4, 6, 7, 8,13	FSLRRD	Millbrae Public Works	Medium	State Grants (Caltrans), Federal Grants (FEMA BRIC/HMGP)	Ongoing	
Action MIL-16 - Identify and pursue strategies to enhance recycled water infrastructure planning/implementation in the vicinity of the Flood & Sea Level Rise Resiliency District projects.							
New & Existing	1, 6, 7,8	FSLRRD	Millbrae Public Works	Medium	State Grants (CA Resilience Challenge, CA DWR, Prop 68), Federal Grants (EPA, FEMA BRIC/HMGP)	Ongoing	

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a	
Action MIL-17 - Improve community response to flood emergencies in various ways, including but not limited to: - Upgrade and expand the countywide flood early warning system; - Conduct community flood preparation, education, and recovery outreach.							
New & Existing	2, 3, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11	FSLRRD	County	Low	State Grant (CA DWR SWERG)	Short-Term	
Action MIL-18 - Tree Trimming Program							
Existing	1, 6, 7,8	Millbrae Public Works	Millbrae Recreation	Medium	General Fund	Ongoing	
a Short-term = Completion within 5 years: Long-term = Completion within 10 years: Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with							

a. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with no completion date

Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table 13-15. Mitigation Action Priority								
Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	ls Project Eligible for Outside Funding?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Outside Funding Source Pursuit Priority ^a
MIL-1	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
MIL-2	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
MIL-3	3	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
MIL-4	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
MIL-5	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
MIL-6	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
MIL-7	1	Low	High	No	No	No	Medium	Low
MIL-8	4	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
MIL-9	2	High	High	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
MIL-10	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
MIL-11	9	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
MIL-12	4	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
MIL-13	5	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
MIL-14	6	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
MIL-15	6	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	High
MIL-16	4	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Medium
MIL-17	7	High	Low	Yes	Yes	Yes	High	Low
MIL-18	4	High	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

Table 13-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions								
	Action Addressing Hazard, by Mitigation Type ^a							
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building
High-Risk Hazard	ls							
Landslide	4, 5, 12, 13	1, 6, 8,13	5	13	6		5, 6, 13	1, 2, 15
Earthquake	1, 2, 3,8	1, 3, 6,9				8,9	6	1,2
Medium-Risk Hazards								
Sea level Rise / Climate Change	3, 5, 12, 15	3, 5, 6	5	3, 5, 13			5, 13, 14, 15	15
Severe Weather	3, 5, 10, 12, 14, 15	1, 3, 6,15	5	3, 5, 13, 18	6	8	5, 6, 11, 14, 15	1,15
Flood	1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 11, 12, 14, 15, 17	1, 3, 4, 6, 7, 11, 12	4, 5, 17	3, 4, 5, 13, 17			4, 5, 6, 10, 11, 14, 15, 17	1, 2, 15
Low-Risk Hazards								
Drought	16	9		13,16			13,16	
Tsunami	4, 10, 15	11, 12, 15		10,11			10,11	
Wildfire		9,13		13,18			13	

See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types. а.

13.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 13-17 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 13-17. Local Public Outreach					
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved			
Social Media Survey Blast	6/8/2021	Unknown			
CERT Outreach for Survey	6/5/2021	129			
Social Media Blast for Workshop	3/16/2021	Unknown			

13.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed for this annex.

- Millbrae Municipal Code—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for • identifying opportunities for action plan integration.
- Millbrae Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance MMC Title 8 Chapter 50—The flood damage ٠ prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- Millbrae Climate Action Plan Adopted January 24, 2020 •

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.






























14. CITY OF PACIFICA

14.1 LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING TEAM

Primary Point of Contact

Chris Clements, Police Captain 2075 Coast Highway Pacifica, CA 94044 650-738-7314 clementsc@pacificapolice.org

Alternate Point of Contact

Christian Murdock, Deputy Director of Planning 1800 Francisco Boulevard Pacifica, CA 94044 650-738-7341 cmurdock@pacifica.gov

This annex was developed by the local hazard mitigation planning team, whose members are listed in Table 14-1.

Table 14-1. Local Mitigation Planning Team Members		
Name	Title	
Chris Clements	Police Captain	
Christian Murdock	Deputy Director of Planning	
Ryan Marquez	Associate Civil Engineer	

14.2 JURISDICTION PROFILE

14.2.1 Location and Features

The City of Pacifica is located along a six mile length of coastal beaches and hills in northern central California. The city comprises several small valleys spread between Sweeney Ridge in the east, Montara Mountain to the south, and the Pacific Ocean's rocky bluffs to the west. The city's eastern border follows State Route 35. Pacifica is bordered to the north by Daly City, to the east by the cities of South San Francisco and San Bruno, as well as several miles of the Golden Gate National Recreation Area. To the south, Pacifica is bordered by unincorporated San Mateo County.

Pacifica has a cool summer Mediterranean climate typical of coastal areas of California. Based on National Weather Service records, average January temperatures range from 47.6 °F to 56.9 °F and average September temperatures range from 56.2 °F to 72.4 °F. Annual precipitation averages 30.04 inches. There are an average of 69 days annually with measurable precipitation, most of which falls from October through May. Summer fog regularly produces light drizzle overnight into the early morning hours. Condensation from the fog also produces fog drip from trees overnight. No measurable snowfall has been recorded since records began. The southeastern areas of the city are known to be much sunnier than the rest of the city.

14.2.2 History

Before the arrival of European settlers, what is now Pacifica was home to two significant Ohlone Indian villages: Pruristac located at San Pedro Creek near present day Adobe Drive, and Timigtac on Calera Creek in the Rockaway Beach neighborhood. Pacifica is the location of the oldest European discovery of the San Francisco Bay. An expedition led by Gaspar de Portolà sighted the bay by climbing the hills of Sweeney Ridge in Pacifica on October 31, 1769. Before then, earlier Spanish maritime explorers of the California coast (such as Juan Cabrillo and Sebastian Vizcaino) had missed the San Francisco Bay because heavy fog so frequently shrouded the entrance of the San Francisco Bay into the Pacific Ocean (the Golden Gate). Pacifica is also the site of the still extant Mexican-era Sánchez Adobe built in 1846. The city is located on a part of the Mexican land grant Rancho San Pedro given to Francisco Sanchez in 1839.

Pacifica remained a mainly agricultural and undeveloped area until land speculators, stimulated by construction of the Ocean Shore Railroad in 1905, subdivided and developed a series of small coastside communities including Edgemar, Vallemar, Sharp Park, Pedro Point, and Rockaway Beach. These communities, together with Pacific Manor, Westview, Fairway Park, and Linda Mar, incorporated in 1957 as the City of Pacifica. The City grew rapidly in the 1950s and 1960s, and most of its current housing – 54 percent as of 2010 – was built during those decades. Growth slowed in the 1970s, and then slowed further in the following decades, owing to the scarcity of developable land and infrastructure constraints.

14.2.3 Governing Body Format

The City of Pacifica is governed by a city council of five elected members. The mayor is selected from among members of the city council by majority vote of the council, serving as mayor for a one-year term. A City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk are appointed and serve in support of the Council to enact the ordinances passed by the Council, which meets biweekly on the second and fourth Mondays of the month.

The Pacifica City Council assumes responsibility for the adoption of this plan; the Planning Department in conjunction with the Emergency Manager will oversee its implementation.

14.3 CURRENT TRENDS

14.3.1 Population

According to the California Department of Finance, the population of Pacifica as of January 2020 was 38,331. Since 2016, the population has grown at an average annual rate of 0.34 percent.

14.3.2 Development

Development in Pacifica has continued at a slow pace. The notable trend in development has been an increase in accessory dwelling unit development within existing developed areas. The City has received a limited number of development projects in hazard areas (wildland-urban interface, historic landslide, and coastal erosion areas) and is carefully reviewing those projects in light of the applicable hazards.

Table 14-2 summarizes development trends in the performance period since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan, as well as expected future development trends.

Table 14-2. Rece	ent and Expected Future Develop	ment Tr	ends			
Criterion	Re	Response				
Has your jurisdiction annexed any land since the preparation of the previous hazard mitigation plan? If yes, give the estimated area annexed and estimated number of parcels or structures.	No					
Is your jurisdiction expected to annex any areas during the performance period of this plan? If yes, describe land areas and dominant uses. If yes, who currently has permitting authority over these areas?	No					
Are any areas targeted for development or major redevelopment in the next five years? If yes, briefly describe, including whether any of the areas are in known hazard risk areas	Yes 930 Oddstad Blvd.: Redevelop former elementary school into 70 workforce housing units (adjacent to flood zone). Hillside Meadows at Adobe Drive and Higgins Way: New development of 36 housin units (adjacent to very high Fire Hazard Severity Zone).				housing housing	
How many permits for new construction were		2016	2017	2018	2019	2020
issued in your jurisdiction since the	Single Family	8	4	7	9	26
preparation of the previous nazard mitigation	Multi-Family	5	2	0	0	0
	Other (commercial, mixed use, etc.)	0	3	4	0	0
	Total	13	9	11	9	26
Provide the number of new-construction permits for each hazard area or provide a qualitative description of where development has occurred.	 Special Flood Hazard Areas: Monitored at time of building permit application to ensure base flood elevation certificate. No large-scale development in SFHA areas has been proposed. Landslide: Monitored at time of building permit application through preliminary geotechnical investigation to mitigate hazards. No large-scale development in landslide areas has been proposed. High Liquefaction Areas: Monitored at time of building permit application through preliminary geotechnical investigation to mitigate hazards. No large-scale development in landslide areas has been proposed. High Liquefaction Areas: Monitored at time of building permit application through preliminary geotechnical investigation to mitigate hazards. No large-scale development in high liquefaction areas has been proposed. Tsunami lnundation Area: Monitored at time of coastal development permit application through tsunami hazard analysis to mitigate hazards. No large-scale development in tsunami inundation areas has been proposed. Wildfire Risk Areas: Monitored at time of building permit or discretionary permit application through evaluation of applicability of CBC Chapter 7A WUI requirements to mitigate hazards. The City has received some discretionary permit applications for larger developments in these areas. 					
Describe the level of buildout in the jurisdiction, based on your jurisdiction's buildable lands inventory. If no such inventory exists, provide a qualitative description.	Pacifica is mostly built-out on privately o small-scale projects are the m	owned lar nost comr	nds. Spora non types	adic in-fill of develo	developn opment.	nent and

14.4 CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT

This section describes an assessment of existing capabilities for implementing hazard mitigation strategies. The introduction at the beginning of this volume of the hazard mitigation plan describes the components included in the capability assessment and their significance for hazard mitigation planning.

Findings of the capability assessment were reviewed to identify opportunities to expand, initiate or integrate capabilities to further hazard mitigation goals and objectives. Where such opportunities were identified and determined to be feasible, they are included in the action plan. The "Analysis of Mitigation Actions" table in this annex identifies these as community capacity building mitigation actions. The findings of the assessment are presented as follows:

- An assessment of planning and regulatory capabilities is presented in Table 14-3.
- Development and permitting capabilities are presented in Table 14-4.
- An assessment of fiscal capabilities is presented in Table 14-5.
- An assessment of administrative and technical capabilities is presented in Table 14-6.
- An assessment of education and outreach capabilities is presented in Table 14-7.
- Information on National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) compliance is presented in Table 14-8.
- Classifications under various community mitigation programs are presented in Table 14-9.
- The community's adaptive capacity for the impacts of climate change is presented in Table 14-10.

Table 14-3. Legal and Regulatory Capability					
	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Codes, Ordinances, & Requirements					
Building Code	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Pacifica Municipal Code (PMC) Title	8; Ord. 852-C.S,, eff.	1/1/2020			
Zoning Code	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
Comment: PMC Title 9, Chapter 4; Last updated	by Ord. 862-C.S., e	ff. 5/26/2021			
Subdivisions	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: PMC Title 10; Ord. 456-85, eff. 12/25.	/1985				
Stormwater Management	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: PMC Title 6, Chapter 12; Ord. 812-C.	S., eff. 1/12/2017				
Post-Disaster Recovery	No	No	No	No	
Comment:					
Real Estate Disclosure	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: Sewer Laterals: PMC Title 6, Chapter Active Faults: Alquist-Priolo Earthqua CA. State Civil Code 1102 requires fu	[.] 13, Article 6; Ord. 7 ke Fault Zoning Act, Ill disclosure on Natu	84 C.S., eff. 12/28/2011 CA. Iral hazard Exposure of the	e sale/re-sale of any ar	nd all real property.	
Growth Management	Yes	No	No	No	
Comment: PMC Title 9, Chapter 5; Ord. 604-C.S	S., eff. 7/8/1993				
Site Plan Review	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	
<i>Comment:</i> PMC Title 9, Chapter 4, including but not limited to specific plans (Article 22), site development permits (Article 32), and coastal development permits (Article 43)					
Environmental Protection	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	
Comment: California Environmental Quality Act (General Plan Conservation Element; Preservation of Heritage Trees: PMC Clearing and Grubbing Permits: PMC	(CEQA), required for 1980 Title 4, Chapter 12; Title 8, Chapter 20,	all discretionary actions b Ord. 542-C.S., eff. 1/10/19 Ord. 518-C.S., eff. 12/28/1	y City 90 1988		
Flood Damage Prevention	Yes	No	No	Yes	
Comment: PMC Title 7. Chapter 5: Ord. 822-C.S	eff. 10/11/2017				

			Other Jurisdiction		Integration
		Local Authority	Authority	State Mandated	Opportunity?
Emergency	Management	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment:	Comment: PMC Title 4, Chapter 2 §4-2.06				
Climate Ch	ange	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment:	Climate Action Plan, adopted 7/2014.				
Other		Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Title 6, Chapters 6-11, 13 (Sewer Syst	tem and Wastewate	r)		
Planning D	ocuments				
General Pla	<u>ווו</u>	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Is the plan	compliant with Assembly Bill 2140?	No			
Comment:	I he City's 1980 General Plan precede the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHM addresses various potential hazards fa Plan, anticipated to be adopted in 202	ed the Disaster Mitig. <i>I</i> P). However, the G acing the City and po '1, does contain direct	ation Act of 2000 and has eneral Plan contains a Se olicies and action program ct references to the LHMP	not been amended to ismic Safety and Safet is to address them. The and hazards of conce	specifically link to y Element that e Draft General n.
Capital Imp	rovement Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
How often	is the plan updated? Annually				
Comment:	The City of Pacifica's Capital Improve The plan is updated every year identifi- various infrastructure maintenance, sta improvements.	ment Plan (CIP) is a ying new projects an orm drain improvem	planning tool used to pric nd update the status of exi ents, parks and play field	ritize capital projects for sting projects. These p upgrades, and sewer for	or the next 5 years. rojects include acility
Disaster De	bris Management Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment:	Countywide plan under development i	in 2021 would be cor	nsidered for local adoption).	
Floodplain	or Watershed Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment:					
Stormwater	r Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment:	Municipal Regional Permit (MRP) for discharges in new development desig enforcement supplemented by San Fr scheduled for update in 2022.	Stormwater Discharg ns and during constr ancisco Bay Region	ges (Final Order No. R2-2) ruction by requiring Best N al Water Quality Control E	009-0074). Regulates s Ianagement Practices loard. Local Storm Dra	stormwater (BMPs). City in Master Plan
Urban Wate	r Management Plan	No	Yes	No	No
Comment:	The North Coast County Water Distric the City of Pacifica and are responsibl	et (NCCWD) and We le for preparing the L	stborough Water District (JWMP for their service are	WWD) are the potable eas.	water providers for
Habitat Cor	servation Plan	No	No	No	No
Comment:					
Economic I	Development Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes
Comment:	Plan accepted by City Council in 2013	}			
Shoreline M	lanagement Plan	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
Comment:	The City of Pacifica has a Local Coasi	tal Program (LCP) ce	ertified by the California C	oastal Commission (Co	CC) to allow local
	control of development landward of th line and certain other areas in Pacifica updated LCP contains expanded polic	e shoreline. The CC a. The City has appro ies for management	C retains original jurisdicti oved an update to its LCP t of the shoreline.	on for areas seaward of that is pending CCC of that is pending CCC of that is pending CCC of the that is pending the	of mean high tide ertification. The
Community	Wildfire Protection Plan	No	No	No	Yes
Comment:	San Mateo Co. Community Wildfire Pu	rotection Plan, 2018			
Forest Man	agement Plan	No	No	No	Yes
Comment:	A local urban forest management plan non-native species of vegetation which	n is beginning develc h may increase haza	opment in summer of 2021 ard risk .	Also explore removal	of flammable and
Climate Act	tion Plan	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Comment:	Climate Action Plan; 7/14/2014				

	Local Authority	Other Jurisdiction Authority	State Mandated	Integration Opportunity?	
Emergency Operations Plan	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	
Comment: City of Pacifica Emergency Operation San Mateo County Emergency Opera	s Plan 2019, tions Plan w/ Annex	es, fall 2015			
Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment (THIRA)	No	Yes	No	Yes	
Comment: San Mateo County Hazard Vulnerabili	ity Assessment, Jan	2015			
Post-Disaster Recovery Plan	Yes	No	No	Yes	
Comment: No stand-alone plan, but considered in: City of Pacifica Emergency Operations Plan 2019, San Mateo County Emergency Operations Plan. May 2015. w/ Continuity of Operations Plan Annex					
Continuity of Operations Plan Comment: Completed in 2019	Yes	No	No	Yes	
Public Health Plan Comment: San Mateo County Health Department	No t	Yes	No	No	

Table 14-4. Development and Permitting Capability			
Criterion Response			
Does your jurisdiction issue development permits? If no, who does? If yes, which department?	Yes Planning Department		
Does your jurisdiction have the ability to track permits by hazard area? No			
Does your jurisdiction have a buildable lands inventory? No			

Table 14-5. Fiscal Capability			
Financial Resource	Accessible or Eligible to Use?		
Community Development Block Grants	Yes		
Capital Improvements Project Funding	Yes		
Authority to Levy Taxes for Specific Purposes	Yes, public required		
User Fees for Water, Sewer, Gas or Electric Service	Yes, Sewer		
ncur Debt through General Obligation Bonds Yes, public vote required			
Incur Debt through Special Tax Bonds	pecial Tax Bonds Yes, If a bond revenue – Needs revenue stream		
Incur Debt through Private Activity Bonds	Unknown		
Withhold Public Expenditures in Hazard-Prone Areas	Yes		
State-Sponsored Grant Programs	Yes		
Development Impact Fees for Homebuyers or Developers	Yes, in accordance with restrictions applicable to use of the fee		
Other	Yes, Other General Fund Revenue		

Table 14-6. Administrative and Technical Capability				
Staff/Personnel Resource	Available?	Department/Agency/Position		
Planners or engineers with knowledge of land development and land management practices	Yes	Planning Dept: Director, Deputy Planning Director, Assoc. Planner, Asst. Planner.		
Engineers or professionals trained in building or infrastructure construction practices	Yes	Public Works Dept.: Director of Public Works, Deputy Director of Public Works/ Waste Water, City Engineer, Senior Engineer, Assoc. Engineer (x2),		
Planners or engineers with an understanding of natural hazards	Yes	Planning Dept: Director, Deputy Planning Director, Assoc. Planner, Asst. Planner. Public Works Dept.: Director of Public Works, Deputy Director of Public Works/ Waste Water, City Engineer, Assoc. Engineer (x2)		
Staff with training in benefit/cost analysis	No	N/A		
Surveyors	Yes	Contract support- CSG Consultants		
Personnel skilled or trained in GIS applications	Yes	Planning Dept.: Deputy Planning Director		
Scientist familiar with natural hazards in local area	Yes	Contract support- CSG Consultants		
Emergency manager	Yes	Pacifica Police Department Captain		
Grant writers	Yes	No position in the city is wholly dedicated to grant writing. Available personnel have written grants in the past from the following departments and divisions: Planning, Police and Public Works		
Other	No	N/A		

Table 14-7. Education and Outreach Capability			
Criterion	Response		
Do you have a public information officer or communications office?	Yes, Police Administrative Captain		
Do you have personnel skilled or trained in website development?	Yes, Pacifica IT Division		
Do you have hazard mitigation information available on your website? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes A winter storm preparedness page, tsunami preparedness page, wildfire preparedness page, and Emergency Preparedness and Safety Commission links to relevant outside sites		
Do you use social media for hazard mitigation education and outreach? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes Facebook, Next Door, Twitter, and the countywide SMC Alert system refer people to information on the city's website		
Do you have any citizen boards or commissions that address issues related to hazard mitigation? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes The Emergency Preparedness and Safety Commission meets once a month and has a page on the City's website		
Do you have any other programs already in place that could be used to communicate hazard-related information? <i>If yes, briefly describe.</i>	Yes SMC Alert (by Everbridge) is a mass notification system using text and phone.		
Do you have any established warning systems for hazard events? If yes, briefly describe.	Yes The city has three tsunami warning sirens along the coast. The sirens also have voice capability. Zonehaven Evacuation Platform.		

Table 14-8. National Flood Insurance Program Compliance		
Criterion	Response	
What local department is responsible for floodplain management?	Planning Department	
Who is your floodplain administrator? (department/position)	Planning Dept.: Building Official (Contracted)	
Are any certified floodplain managers on staff in your jurisdiction?	No	
What is the date that your flood damage prevention ordinance was last amended?	10/11/2017	
Does your floodplain management program meet or exceed minimum requirements? <i>If exceeds, in what ways?</i>	Meet	
When was the most recent Community Assistance Visit or Community Assistance Contact?	8/15/2016	
Does your jurisdiction have any outstanding NFIP compliance violations that need to be addressed? <i>If so, state what they are.</i>	No	
Are any RiskMAP projects currently underway in your jurisdiction? If so, state what they are.	No	
Do your flood hazard maps adequately address the flood risk within your jurisdiction? <i>If no, state why.</i>	Yes	
Does your floodplain management staff need any assistance or training to support its floodplain management program? If so, what type of assistance/training is needed?	No	
Does your jurisdiction participate in the Community Rating System (CRS)? If yes, is your jurisdiction interested in improving its CRS Classification? If no, is your jurisdiction interested in joining the CRS program?	Yes No	
How many flood insurance policies are in force in your jurisdiction? ^a	384	
What is the insurance in force? What is the premium in force?	\$84,970,800 \$276,647	
How many total loss claims have been filed in your jurisdiction? ^a What were the total payments for losses?	\$782,751	
a. According to FEMA statistics as of March 31, 2021		

Table 14-9. Community Classifications						
Participating? Classification Date Classified						
FIPS Code	Yes	0608154806	N/A			
DUNS#	Yes	091847459	N/A			
Community Rating System	Yes	7	8/4/2020			
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule	No	N/A	N/A			
Public Protection	No	N/A	N/A			
Storm Ready	Yes	Storm Ready	In progress			
Firewise	No	N/A	N/A			
Tsunami Ready	Yes	Tsunami Ready	In progress			

	Table 14-10. Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change	
Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a
Technical O	Capacity	
Jurisdictio	n-level understanding of potential climate change impacts	High
Comment:	Skilled City staff and active and engaged community aware of climate change impacts including fire coastal erosion from sea level rise.	danger, flood risk, and
Jurisdiction	n-level monitoring of climate change impacts	Medium
Comment:	Primary City monitoring involves coastline surveillance related to public infrastructure and the effects erosion and flooding.	s of sea level rise/coastal
Technical r	esources to assess proposed strategies for feasibility and externalities	Low
Comment:		
Jurisdiction	n-level capacity for development of greenhouse gas emissions inventory	Medium
Comment:	The City participates in the RICAPS regional consortium which has engaged a consultant, DNVGL, a emissions inventory.	to prepare a GHG
Capital plan	nning and land use decisions informed by potential climate impacts	High
Comment:	The City's Local Coastal Program update, pending California Coastal Commission Certification, requerelated to sea level rise and its effects on the coastline.	uires assessments
Participatio	n in regional groups addressing climate risks	High
Comment:	The City participates in the RICAPS regional consortium to plan for climate risks.	
Implementa	tion Capacity	
Clear autho	rity/mandate to consider climate change impacts during public decision-making processes	Medium
Comment:	General Plan and Local Coastal Program include policies to consider climate change risks/hazards. with other policies in those documents such as economic development, provision of housing, etc.	These must be balanced
Identified s	trategies for greenhouse gas mitigation efforts	Medium
Comment:	City development policies prioritize in-fill development which can result in reductions to GHG emission	ons.
Identified s	trategies for adaptation to impacts	Medium
Comment:	The Local Coastal Plan update pending California Coastal Commission certification contains adapta level rise.	tion strategies for sea
Champions	for climate action in local government departments	Low
Comment:	The City does not have dedicate climate action/sustainability personnel.	
Political su	pport for implementing climate change adaptation strategies	High
Comment:	The Pacifica City Council recognizes the challenges presented by climate change and supported ad Local Coastal Program update pending certification by the California Coastal Commission.	aptation strategies in the
Financial re	esources devoted to climate change adaptation	Low
Comment:	The City lacks sufficient identified funding sources for this purpose and pursues grants whenever po	ssible.
Local author	prity over sectors likely to be negative impacted	Medium
Comment:	The City can exercise its police power over all inland areas. Certain locations within the Coastal Zon jurisdiction or direct permit authority by the California Coastal Commission, which limits local authori affecting land subject to sea level rise and coastal erosion.	e are subject to appeal ty over certain decisions
Public Cap	acity	
Local resid	ents knowledge of and understanding of climate risk	High
Comment:	Pacifica has an engaged community aware of climate change impacts including fire danger, flood ris from sea level rise.	k, and coastal erosion
Local resid	ents support of adaptation efforts	Medium
Comment:	Climate change adaptation, particularly sea level rise adaptation, has proven to be a divisive issue in strong organized elements on various sides of the issue that seek to advance quite different adaptat	n Pacifica. There are ion approaches.

Criterion		Jurisdiction Rating ^a				
Local resid	ents' capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium				
Comment: Individual residents' resources to adapt to climate impacts varies widely. Additionally, climate change adaptation planning, particularly sea level rise adaptation planning, has not resulted in a consensus approach to the appropriate adaptation strategy.						
Local econ	omy current capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Low				
Comment:	comment: Pacifica's local economy consists mostly of small and medium size businesses with little large-scale commercial development/large corporations. The existing small and medium businesses lack sufficient resources to undertake climate adaptation on their own and have not widely organized for this purpose.					
Local ecos	ystems capacity to adapt to climate impacts	Medium				
Comment: Variable. Some parts of Pacifica are undeveloped and are readily adaptable, such as undeveloped lands along the coastline. However, other areas are highly developed and in some cases are protected by existing shoreline protection devices that limit the ability for natural adaptive processes to sea level rise.						
 High = Capacity exists and is in use; Medium = Capacity may exist, but is not used or could use some improvement; Low = Capacity does not exist or could use substantial improvement; Unsure= Not enough information is known to assign a rating. 						

14.5 INTEGRATION REVIEW

For hazard mitigation planning, "integration" means that hazard mitigation information is used in other relevant planning mechanisms, such as general planning and capital facilities planning, and that relevant information from those sources is used in hazard mitigation. This section identifies where such integration is already in place, and where there are opportunities for further integration in the future. Resources listed at the end of this annex were used to provide information on integration. The progress reporting process described in Volume 1 of the hazard mitigation plan will document the progress of hazard mitigation actions related to integration and identify new opportunities for integration.

14.5.1 Existing Integration

Some level of integration has already been established between local hazard mitigation planning and the following other local plans and programs:

- Public Outreach: The City's public outreach on disaster preparedness incorporates prevention, preparedness, and mitigation recommendations, especially on the Natural Disasters section of the website. The Natural Disasters section of the website includes information on earthquakes, flooding, winter storms, landslides, wildfire and tsunamis, all of which are profiled in the LHMP.
- General Plan: The Safety and Seismic Safety Element of the General Plan incorporates information on pertinent local natural hazards, especially seismic hazards, landslide risks and coastal erosion risks. The General Plan also requires geotechnical hazard studies prior to new development.
- Local Coastal Program: The LCP requires consideration of coastal flooding and erosion.

14.5.2 Opportunities for Future Integration

The capability assessment presented in this annex identified the following plans and programs that do not currently integrate hazard mitigation information but provide opportunities to do so in the future:

• General Plan: The City is undertaking an overall General Plan Update process that will incorporate references to the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan in the Safety Element .

- Local Coastal Program: The LCP requires consideration of coastal flooding and erosion. Similar, but more expansive policies, are contained in the LCP update pending certification by the California Coastal Commission.
- Building Code, Zoning Code, Subdivision Code, Site Plan Review: The City's development review codes, policies, and procedures could be revised to provide a greater emphasis on consideration of hazards when reviewing development.
- Capital Improvement Plan: The CIP could consider more directly whether a project would increase or decrease a known hazard.

14.6 RISK ASSESSMENT

14.6.1 Jurisdiction-Specific Natural Hazard Event History

Table 14-11 lists past occurrences of natural hazards for which specific damage was recorded in this jurisdiction Other hazard events that broadly affected the entire planning area, including this jurisdiction, are listed in the risk assessments in Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan.

Table 14-11. Past Natural Hazard Events							
Type of Event	FEMA Disaster #	Date	Damage Assessment				
Severe Weather/ Erosion	N/A	January 2021	\$250k - increased tidal action caused failure along Beach Blvd. seawall				
Severe Weather	N/A	January 2020	\$40k - increased tidal action caused failure along Beach Blvd. seawall				
Severe Weather/ Erosion	4308	January 2017	\$1.6mil – erosion on Esplanade, debris cleanup, and pump station failure				
Severe Weather/Erosion	CDAA 2016- 01	January 2016	\$3.4mil - Moderate flooding, coastal erosion due to increased tidal action, power outages and debris from trees and sand along the coastline				
Wildfire	N/A	January 2015	Approx. 2.5 acres of trees and brush burned				
Severe Weather/Erosion	N/A	December 14, 2014	\$280,000 - Major flooding, power outages and debris from trees and sand along the coastline				
Tsunami	N/A	March 11, 2011	Warning – no subsequent event, 8.9 earthquake in Japan caused Tsunami warning to West Coast of California				
Severe Weather /Erosion	CDAA-2010- 04	March 2009	Severe coastal erosion prompting red-tagging of adjacent homes and apartments				
Severe Weather/ Erosion	1646	March 29, 2005- April 16, 2006	Moderate flooding, coastal erosion due to increased tidal action, power outages and debris from trees and sand along the coastline				
Severe Weather/ Erosion	1628	December 17, 2005- January 3, 2006	Moderate flooding, coastal erosion due to increased tidal action, power outages and debris from trees and sand along the coastline				
Landslide	N/A	1997	Mudslide in the Pedro Point area of Pacifica washed out a road				
Severe Weather (coastal erosion)	N/A	1997-1998	Seven homes on Esplanade Avenue lost the last 10 feet of their back yards and residents had to evacuate.				
Severe Weather, Flood	N/A	January 4, 1983	On Jan. 4, 1983, more than 5 inches of rain fell in one day. Residents in canoes paddled out of flooded homes in the San Pedro Valley. A mudslide at the top of the valley plowed into three homes, killing three children sleeping in their beds.				

14.6.2 Hazard Risk Ranking

Table 14-12 presents a local ranking of all hazards of concern for which this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments. As described in detail in Volume 1, the ranking process involves an assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for each hazard, along with its potential impacts on people, property and the economy. Mitigation actions target hazards with high and medium rankings.

	Table 14-12. Hazard Risk Ranking								
Rank	Hazard	Risk Ranking Score	Risk Category						
1	Landslide/Mass Movements	54	High						
2	Earthquake	36	High						
3	Severe Weather/Extreme Weather	24	Medium						
4	Sea Level Rise / Climate Change	18	Medium						
5	Flood	18	Medium						
6	Tsunami	12	Low						
7	Drought	9	Low						
8	Wildfire	0	Low						
9	Dam Failure	0	Low						

14.6.3 Jurisdiction-Specific Vulnerabilities

Volume 1 of this hazard mitigation plan provides complete risk assessments for each identified hazard of concern. This section provides information on a few key vulnerabilities for this jurisdiction. Available jurisdiction-specific risk maps of the hazards are provided at the end of this annex.

Repetitive Loss Properties

Repetitive loss records are as follows:

- Number of FEMA-identified Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of FEMA-identified Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties: 0
- Number of Repetitive-Loss Properties or Severe-Repetitive-Loss Properties that have been mitigated: 0

Other Noted Vulnerabilities

The following jurisdiction-specific issues have been identified based on a review of the results of the risk assessment, public involvement strategy, and other available resources:

- The key hazard encountered in the City of Pacifica during the past five years has been coastal erosion at the central and northern extents of the Pacifica coastline.
- Transportation/ Accessibility (arterial highway, bridges over highway, single entry neighborhoods). California State Route 1 (SR-1) is the major roadway that connects City neighborhoods and allows for traffic flow in and out of the City. At the southern city limits, Pacifica is connected to the next community by a bridge and tunnel. At the northern city limits, Pacifica is connected to the City of San Francisco by Interstate 280. Other access in or out of parts of Pacifica is Sharp Park Road, which connects to California State Route 35. Some areas of SR-1 may be susceptible to landslides due to steep grades. There have been minor rock slides in some areas. If areas of SR-1 were blocked due to a landslide or other hazard, the City may be severely limited in access to equipment, parts, and materials to repair damaged infrastructure.

Mitigation actions addressing these issues were prioritized for consideration in the action plan for this annex.

14.7 STATUS OF PREVIOUS PLAN ACTIONS

Table 14-13 summarizes the actions that were recommended in the previous version of the hazard mitigation plan and their implementation status at the time this update was prepared.

	Table 14-13. Status of Previous Pla	an Actions				
			Removed;	Carried C Up	Over to Plan odate	
Action Item		Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in Update	
PA-1— Pacifi flooding to m	fica will build infrastructure to accommodate increases in low impact itigate impacts from expected increases in incidents of shallow flooding 2021 Stormwater Master Plan will assess flooding issues and prioritize	nrojects		✓	PAC-7	
PA-2— Pacifi ensure an ef	fica will be conducting an update of its Emergency Operations Plan to fective and coordinated response to disasters within the city	projecta.		√	PAC-8	
Comment:	The Emergency Operations Plan was last updated in 2017 and plans fo	r an update are	e underway.			
PA-3 Pacifi against dama	ca will update its flood damage prevention ordinance to mitigate age of residential and commercial property in flood prone areas	\checkmark				
Comment:	City Council adopted Ordinance No. 822-C.S. to amend the Pacifica Mu measures. This ordinance went into effect October 11, 2017.	unicipal Code to	incorporate fl	ood damag	e prevention	
PA-4 — Pacit purchase or against dama	fica will seek to encourage and assist in the acquisition of grants for the relocation of property and structures in high hazard areas to mitigate age to vulnerable structures and infrastructure			~	PAC-1	
Comment:	Homes at 532 & 528 Esplanade on an eroding bluff Acquisition & Demo	olition in 2018.				
PA-5— Pacific transportation public safety	fica will pursue opportunities to preserve and protect critical n infrastructure to mitigate against isolation, economic loss and ensure .			~	PAC-9	
Comment:	Two Esplanade infrastructure projects along with Beach Blvd. Infrastructure	ture Resiliency	project are un	derway.		
PA-6— Pacifi ensure provis	fica will seek to replace/upgrade its seismically-vulnerable facilities to sion of vital services following a hazard event.			~	PAC-10	
Comment:	City is currently exploring plans to replace the current Civic Center location 1914.	ted in a structur	re originally bu	ilt as a scho	ol house in	
PA-7— Pacit maintain criti	fica will preserve, protect, or relocate hazard prone infrastructure to cal services and maintain the environment.			~	PAC-11	
Comment:	Two esplanade infrastructure projects, Beach Blvd. Infrastructure Resili	ency project, &	Milagra Outfal	I Repair Pro	oject.	
PA-8 — Pacific against the further resiliency.	fica will develop and deliver business outreach programs to mitigate unctional loss of community businesses and promote business			~	PAC-12	
Comment:	City of Pacifica Emergency Preparedness & Safety Commission produce earthquake preparedness) to distribute to businesses to promote resilie scheduled for this June. Ongoing social media campaign to promote will alert notification systems as fire season approaches.	e information n nce. Communit dfire preparedr	naterials (tsun y event on wild ness and evacu	ami awaren dfire prepar uation plann	ess, edness is ing, and	
PA-9 — Pacifits use of reconcile potable wate	fica will work with contiguous and neighboring utility districts to develop ycled water for irrigation and non-potable uses to reduce reliance on r during periods of drought.			~	PAC-13	
Comment:	The City of Pacifica wastewater treatment plant produces tertiary recycl (NCCWD). The NCCWD continues to promote use of recycled water for	ed water to the r irrigation to cu	North Coast C stomers. This	County Wate	er District ng project.	

		Removed;	Carried Over to Plan Update	
Action Item	Completed	No longer Feasible	Check if Yes	Action # in
 PA-10—Pacifica will continue to do public education outreach to our neighborhoods using the "Map Your Neighborhood" tool to ensure communities can take care of themselves and those who live around them during a disaster event. Work with the Neighborhood Associations Utilize CERT members to assist in this outreach Identify those homes within the neighborhoods that have vulnerable or isolated populations living in them Utilize Social Media and Emergency Alert Systems to communicate preparedness and emergency messaging Comment: Pacifica continues to present CERT courses and other preparedness in our or prep	rograms to pror	note personal	v	PAC-14
 Action G-1—Where appropriate, support retrofitting, purchase, or relocation of structures in hazard-prone areas to prevent future structure damage. Give priority to properties with exposure to repetitive losses. Comment: City of Pacifica acquired and demolished two homes at 532 & 528 Espl damage. 	anade atop an	eroding bluff to	✓ prevent fu	PAC-1
 Action G-2—Consider participation in incentive-based programs such as the Community Rating System, Tree City, and StormReady. Comment: Achieved Tree City USA designation starting in 2019. Community Ratin 2020. 	ng System recei	rtification every	✓ two years,	PAC-15 last done in
Action G-3—Maintain good standing under the National Flood Insurance Program by implementing programs that meet or exceed the minimum NFIP requirements. Such programs include enforcing an adopted flood damage prevention ordinance, participating in floodplain mapping updates, and providing public assistance and information on floodplain requirements and impacts.	for floodplain in	formation and	✓ requiremen	PAC-4
Action G-4—Where feasible, implement a program to record high water marks following high-water events.	iter marks		V	PAC-16
Action G-5—Integrate the hazard mitigation plan into other plans, programs, or resources that dictate land use or redevelopment. Comment: City's draft General Plan (adoption expected summer 2021) references	LHMP.		•	PAC-2
Action G-6—Provide incentives for eligible non-profits and private entities, including homeowners, to adapt to risks through structural and nonstructural retrofitting.			✓	PAC-17
Action G-7— Support the County-wide initiatives identified in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan.			✓	PAC-3
Comment: City is an active member of the San Mateo County Emergency Manage and notification systems, attends various work groups related to disaste preparedness for community members, and has an active CERT progra	ers Association, er response, co am.	participates in nducts classes	countywide on disaste	• warning
Action G-8— Actively participate in the plan maintenance protocols outlined in Volume I of the hazard mitigation plan. Comment: City is an active member of San Mateo County Emergency Mangers As promotes community preparedness through social media comparison of the social media c	ssociation, integ	rated LHMP in	✓ to other Cit	PAC-3 y plans,
personal preparedness. `			num promo	

14.8 HAZARD MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

Table 14-14 lists the identified actions, which make up the hazard mitigation action plan for this jurisdiction. Table 14-15 identifies the priority for each action. Table 14-16 summarizes the mitigation actions by hazard of concern and mitigation type.

Table 14-14. Hazard Mitigation Action Plan Matrix						
Benefits New or	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agonov	Estimated Cost	Sources of	Timelinea
Action PAC-1—Wh have experienced r	ere appropriate, support repetitive losses and/or a	retrofitting, purcha re located in high-	ase or relocation of st or medium-risk haza	ructures located in areas.	hazard areas, prior	ritizing those that
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Mover Wildfire, Sea Level Rise	nents, Earthquake e	e, Severe Weather/Ex	dreme Weather, Cli	mate Change, Floo	od, Tsunami,
Existing	6, 8, 13	Pacifica		High	Grant Funding	Short term
Action PAC-2— Int community, includin	egrate the hazard mitigat ng the General Plan and	ion plan into othei the Local Coastal	r plans, ordinances a Land Use Plan.	nd programs that di	ictate land use dec	isions in the
Hazaros Mitigateo:	Drought, Sea Level Ris	ments, Earthquak Se	e, Severe vveatner/E	xtreme vveatner, C	limate Change, Flo	od, Tsunami,
New and Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 9, 10	Pacifica	California Coastal Commission	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short Term
Action PAC-3—Act hazard mitigation p	ively participate in the pla lan.	an maintenance pi	rotocols and support	the County-wide ini	tiatives outlined in	Volume 1 of this
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Move Drought, Wildfire, Sea I	ments, Earthquak ₋evel Rise	e, Severe Weather/E	xtreme Weather, C	limate Change, Flo	od, Tsunami,
New and Existing	2, 6, 12	Pacifica	San Mateo County	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Short term
Action PAC-4—Co programs that, at a • Enforce the floo • Participate in flo • Provide public a <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> New and Existing	ntinue to maintain good s minimum, meet the NFIF d damage prevention ord odplain identification and ssistance/information on Flood	tanding and comp requirements: inance. mapping updates floodplain require Pacifica	liance under the NFI ments and impacts.	P through implement	ntation of floodplair Staff Time	n management
New and Existing	1, 2, 7, 0, 10, 13	i acilica		LOW	General Funds	Short renn
 Action PAC-5—Identify and pursue strategies to increase adaptive capacity to climate change including but not limited to the following: Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Assessment Pursue strategies outlined in Local Coastal Program Inclusion of climate change within infrastructure planning (Wastewater, water, stormwater, etc.) Hazards Mitigated: Elood Wildfire Sea Level Rise 						
New and Existing	1, 6, 7, 8, 9, 12, 14	Pacifica	FSLRRD	Low	Staff Time, General Funds	Long Term
Action PAC-6— Purchase generators for critical facilities and infrastructure that lack adequate backup power, including Skyridge pump station generator (replacement), EQ Basin backup generator (new), CCWRP (replacement), communications antennas/ repeaters for public safety communications, and multiple tow behind generators (new) to be used as needed.						
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Existing	Eartnquake, Flood, Lai 7, 8, 9	Pacifica	ements, Severe Wea	itner/⊨xtreme weat Medium	ner, Tsunami, Wild Staff time, general funds, Grant Funding	Short term

Benefits New or Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Sources of Funding	Timeline ^a
Action PAC-7—Pac incidents of shallow	cifica will build infrastructur flooding.	e to accommodate	increases in low impa	act flooding to mitiga	te impacts from exp	ected increases in
Existing	1, 3, 6, 8, 14	Pacifica		Medium	Grant Funding, General fund	Medium Term
Action PAC-8—Pac disasters within the <i>Hazards Mitigated:</i>	cifica will be conducting an city. Landslide/Mass Move	update of its Emer ments, Earthquak	rgency Operations Pla e, Severe Weather/E	in to ensure an effec xtreme Weather, C	tive and coordinated limate Change, Flo	l response to od, Tsunami,
New and Existing	Drought, Wildfire, Sea I 1, 2, 7, 11, 12	_evel Rise Pacifica		Low	Staff time, General Fund	Short Term
Action PAC-9—Pac against isolation, ec	cifica will pursue opportuni onomic loss and ensure pu	ties to preserve an ublic safety.	d protect critical trans	portation infrastructu	re (including Beach	Blvd.) to mitigate
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Mover Wildfire, Sea Level Rise	nents, Earthquake e	e, Severe Weather/Ex	ktreme Weather, Cli	mate Change, Floo	od, Tsunami,
New and Existing	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 13	Pacifica	FSLRRD	High	Grant Funding	Short Term
Action PAC-10—Pa	acifica will seek to replace/	upgrade its seismi	cally-vulnerable faciliti	es to ensure provisio	on of vital services fo	ollowing a hazard
<u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Existing	Еагіпquake 1, 4, 6, 8, 9, 13	Pacifica		High	Grant Funding, bonds, General fund	Medium Term
Action PAC-11—Pa	acifica will preserve, protec	ct, or relocate haza	rd prone infrastructure	e to maintain critical s	services and mainta	in the
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Move Wildfire, Sea Level Rise	ments, Earthquak e	e, Severe Weather/E	xtreme Weather, C	limate Change, Flo	od, Tsunami,
Existing	1, 2, 3, 6, 7, 8, 13, 14	Pacifica		High	Grant Funding, bonds, General fund	Long Term
Action PAC-12—Pa and promote busine	acifica will develop and del ss resiliency.	iver business outre	each programs to mitig	gate against the func	tional loss of comm	unity businesses
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Move Drought, Wildfire	ments, Earthquak	e, Severe Weather/E	xtreme Weather, C	limate Change, Flo	od, Tsunami,
New and Existing	1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8	Pacifica		Low	Staff time	Short Term
Action PAC-13—Pa potable uses to redu <u>Hazards Mitigated</u> :	acifica will work with contig ice reliance on potable wa .Drought	uous and neighbor ter during periods o	ring utility districts to d of drought.	evelop its use of rec	ycled water for irriga	ition and non-
Existing	1, 2, 6, 7, 8, 10	Pacifica		Medium	General fund, Staff time	Short Term
Action PAC-14—Pacifica will continue to do public education outreach to our neighborhoods using the "Map Your Neighborhood" tool to ensure communities can take care of themselves and those who live around them during a disaster event. Work with the Neighborhood Associations Utilize CERT members to assist in this outreach Identify those homes within the neighborhoods that have vulnerable or isolated populations living in them Utilize Social Media and Emergency Alert Systems to communicate preparedness and emergency messaging <u>Hazards Mitigated:</u> Landslide/Mass Movements, Earthquake, Severe Weather/Extreme Weather, Climate Change, Flood, Tsunami, Wildfire						
Ŭ					General fund	Ŭ

Benefits New or					Sources of				
Existing Assets	Objectives Met	Lead Agency	Support Agency	Estimated Cost	Funding	Timeline ^a			
Action PAC-15—M StormReady.	Action PAC-15—Maintain status or consider participation in incentive-based programs such as the Community Rating System and StormReady.								
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Severe Weather	Extreme Weather	, Wildfire						
Existing	1, 2, 4, 8, 9, 14	Pacifica		Medium	Staff Time	Long Term			
Action PAC-16-W	Action PAC-16—Where feasible, implement a program to record high water marks following high-water events.								
Hazards Mitigated:	Flood, Climate Change								
Existing	1, 2, 5, 6, 8	Pacifica		Low	Staff Time	Long Term			
Action PAC-17—Pr nonstructural retrofit	ovide incentives for eligible ting.	e non-profits and p	rivate entities, includir	ng homeowners, to a	dapt to risks through	n structural and			
Hazards Mitigated:	Landslide/Mass Move Wildfire	ments, Earthquak	e, Severe Weather/E	xtreme Weather, Cl	imate Change, Flo	od, Tsunami,			
New	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 13	Pacifica		Low	Grant Funding	Short Term			
Action PAC-18— Evaluate potential wildfire risk and mitigation strategies.									
Hazards Mitigated:	Wildfire								
New	1, 2, 5, 7, 8, 9, 11	Pacifica	North County Fire	High	Grant Funding	Long Term			
. Short-term = Completion within 5 years; Long-term = Completion within 10 years; Ongoing= Continuing new or existing program with									

no completion date Acronyms used here are defined at the beginning of this volume.

Table	14-15.	Mitigation	Action	Priority	/
					/

Action #	# of Objectives Met	Benefits	Costs	Do Benefits Equal or Exceed Cost?	Is Project Eligible for Outside Funding?	Can Project Be Funded Under Existing Programs/ Budgets?	Implementation Priority ^a	Outside Funding Source Pursuit Priority ^a
1	3	High	High	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
2	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
3	3	Low	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
4	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
5	7	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Low	Low
6	3	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
7	5	High	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Medium	High
8	5	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
9	9	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	High
10	6	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Medium
11	8	Medium	Medium	Yes	Yes	No	Low	Medium
12	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
13	6	Medium	Medium	Yes	No	Yes	High	Low
14	8	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Low	Low
15	6	Medium	Low	Yes	No	Yes	Low	Low
16	5	Low	Medium	No	No	Yes	Low	Low
17	9	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	Low
18	7	Medium	High	No	Yes	No	Low	High

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of priorities.

	Table 14-16. Analysis of Mitigation Actions							
			Action Ad	dressing Haz	ard, by Mitigat	ion Type ^a		
Hazard Type	Prevention	Property Protection	Public Education & Awareness	Natural Resource Protection	Emergency Services	Structural Projects	Climate Resilience	Community Capacity Building
High-Risk Hazards								
Land Slide/ Mass Movement	PAC-1,3	PAC-1, 2, 4	PAC-12, 14	PAC-1, 2, 4, 5, 7	PAC-6, 8	PAC-1, 9, 11, 17	PAC-5, 7	PAC-14
Sea Level Rise / Climate Change	PAC-3	PAC-2, 4	PAC-12, 13, 14	PAC-1, 4, 5, 7, 13	PAC-6, 8	PAC-1, 9, 11, 17	PAC-5, 7	PAC-14, 15
Flood	PAC-1,3	PAC-2, 4, 16	PAC-12, 14, 16	PAC-1, 2, 4, 5, 7	PAC-6, 8, 16	PAC-1, 9, 11, 17	PAC-5, 7, 16	PAC-14, 15, 16
Earthquake	PAC-1, 3, 10	PAC-10	PAC-10, 12, 14	PAC-10	PAC-6, 8, 10	PAC-1, 9, 10, 11, 17	PAC-10	PAC-10, 14, 15
Medium-Risk Hazard	s							
Severe Weather/ Extreme Weather	PAC-1, 3	PAC-4	PAC-12, 14	PAC-5, 7	PAC-6, 8	PAC-1, 9, 11, 17	PAC-5, 7	PAC-14, 15
Tsunami	PAC-1, 3	PAC-4	PAC-12, 14	PAC-1, 7	PAC-6, 8	PAC-1, 9, 11, 17	PAC-7, 16	PAC-14, 15
Low-Risk Hazards								
Drought	PAC-3	PAC-13	PAC-12, 13, 14	PAC-4, 13	PAC-6, 8	PAC-11, 17	PAC-5	PAC-13, 14
Wildfire	PAC-1, 3, 18	PAC-18	PAC-12, 14, 18	PAC-18	PAC-6, 8, 18	PAC-1, 9, 11, 17	PAC-5, 18	PAC-14, 15, 18
Dam Failure	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-

a. See the introduction to this volume for explanation of mitigation types.

14.9 PUBLIC OUTREACH

Table 1417 lists public outreach activities for this jurisdiction.

Table 14-17. Local Public Outreach							
Local Outreach Activity	Date	Number of People Involved					
General Plan and Local Coastal Program Update Outreach To Emergency Preparedness & Safety Commission Regarding Safety Element and Natural Hazards Chapter	8/21/2019	12					
Survey For LHMP Update Distributed Using Nextdoor, Facebook, CERT Email Distribution List	7/7/2021	90					

14.10 INFORMATION SOURCES USED FOR THIS ANNEX

The following technical reports, plans, and regulatory mechanisms were reviewed to provide information for this annex.

• **City of Pacifica Municipal Code**—The municipal code was reviewed for the full capability assessment and for identifying opportunities for action plan integration.

- **City of Pacifica Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance**—The flood damage prevention ordinance was reviewed for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program.
- 1980 General Plan, Safety & Seismic Safety Element referenced for hazard information.
- 1980 Local Coastal Land Use Plan, referenced for hazard information.
- Draft General Plan, referenced for hazard information.
- Certification Draft Local Coastal Land Use Plan, referenced for hazard information

The following outside resources and references were reviewed:

• Hazard Mitigation Plan Annex Development Toolkit—The toolkit was used to support the identification of past hazard events and noted vulnerabilities, the risk ranking, and the development of the mitigation action plan.

14.11 ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

In the Hazard Risk Ranking, the risk of Wildfire for the City of Pacifica was determined to be "Low Risk." Devastating wildfires across the state in recent years, including the CZU Complex Fire on the southern San Mateo County coastside in 2020, has generated interest in the community about the wildfire risk in Pacifica. This has resulted in an action item being created for this hazard, despite the risk ranking.

The Hazard Risk Ranking also lists Dam Failure as one of the hazards assessed. This hazard is not applicable to the City of Pacifica and is not addressed in this annex. There is significant distance between the City of Pacifica and the closest dam. Although dam failure elsewhere in the County may have substantial impact on the bay side of San Mateo County, it is improbable there would be any impact to the City.

The City of Pacifica will actively participate in the plan maintenance strategy identified in this plan.




























